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MEETING OF THE EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS OF FUTURE CONSUMER LIMITED

CONVENED PURSUANT TO THE ORDER DATED 15T MAY, 2020 READ WITH ORDER DATED 26™ JUNE, 2020 OF THE

Day
Date
Time

Mode

E-Voting

HON’BLE NATIONAL COMPANY LAW TRIBUNAL, SPECIAL BENCH, MUMBAI

Thursday
6™ August, 2020
10.00 A.M.

In view of the nationwide lock down due to COVID-19 pandemic and related social distancing norms and as per the directions of the
Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Special Bench, Mumbai, vide Order dated 26™ June, 2020 the meeting shall be conducted

through Video Conferencing (“VC”) / Other Audio Visual Means (“OVAM”)

: Remote E-voting - Start Date and Time — Monday, 3 August, 2020 at 9.00 a.m.

End Date and Time — Wednesday, 5" August, 2020 at 5.00 p.m.

E-voting facility shall also be available to the Shareholders of the Company during the Meeting.
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FORM NO. CAA 2
[Pursuant to Section 230(3) and Rule 6 and 7]
IN THE HON’BLE NATIONAL COMPANY LAW TRIBUNAL
MUMBAI SPECIAL BENCH
COMPANY SCHEME APPLICATION NO. C.A.(CAA)/984/MB/2020
In the matter of the Companies Act, 2013 (18 of 2013)
AND

In the matter of Sections 230 to 232 and other relevant provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013

AND

In the matter of Scheme of Arrangement between Athena Lifesciences
Private Limited and Future Consumer Limited and their respective
shareholders and creditors

Future Consumer Limited
Act, 1956 and having its registered office at Knowledge House,

Shyam Nagar, Off. Jogeshwari Vikhroli Link Road, Jogeshwari
(East), Mumbai — 400 060 )

)
a company incorporated under the provisions of the Companies )
)
)

................... Applicant Company No. 2

NOTICE OF THE TRIBUNAL CONVENED MEETING OF THE EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS OF FUTURE CONSUMER LIMITED

Notice is hereby given that by an order dated 15t May, 2020 read with order dated 26" June, 2020, the National Company Law Tribunal, Special
Bench, Mumbai (“NCLT” or “Tribunal”, and such order, the “Order”) has directed to convene a meeting of equity shareholders of Future
Consumer Limited (“Shareholders”) for the purpose of considering, and if thought fit, approving the Scheme of Arrangement between Athena
Lifesciences Private Limited (“Transferor Company” or “Applicant Company No 1” or “ALPL”) and Future Consumer Limited (“Resulting
Company” or “Applicant Company No. 2” or “FCL” or “the Company”) and their respective shareholders and creditors (“Scheme”).

In pursuance of the Order and as directed therein, further notice is hereby given that a meeting of Shareholders of the Company will be held
on Thursday, 6" August, 2020 at 10.00 a.m. (IST) (“Meeting”) through Video Conferencing (“VC”) / Other Audio-Visual Means (“OAVM”), at
which time the Shareholders are requested to attend, to consider and if thought fit, pass with or without modification(s) the following Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 230 to 232 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013,
read with Companies (Compromise, Arrangements and Amalgamation) Rules, 2016 (including any amendment(s), statutory modification(s)
or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force), provisions of Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company and subject
to the approval of the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai Bench (“NCLT” or “Tribunal”) and subject to such other approvals,
permissions and sanctions of regulatory and other authorities, as may be necessary and subject to such conditions and modifications as may
be prescribed or imposed by NCLT or by any regulatory or other authorities, while granting such consents, approvals and permissions, which
may be agreed to by the Board of Directors of the Company (hereinafter referred to as “Board” which term shall be deemed to include the
“Committee of Directors” of the Company or any other committee duly constituted or to be constituted and authorized thereof to exercise
its powers under this resolution), approval of the Equity Shareholders of the Company (“Shareholders”) be and is hereby accorded to the
proposed Scheme of Arrangement between Athena Lifesciences Private Limited (“Transferor Company”) and Future Consumer Limited (“the
Company” or “Transferee Company”) and their respective shareholders and creditors (“Scheme”), as enclosed with this Notice.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorized to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things, as it may, in its absolute
discretion deem expedient, desirable, appropriate or necessary to give effect to this resolution and effectively implement the Scheme and
to accept such modifications, amendments, limitations and/or conditions, if any, which may be required and/or imposed by the NCLT while
sanctioning the Scheme or by any authorities under law or as may be required for the purpose of resolving any questions or doubts or difficulties
that may arise including passing of such accounting entries and/or making such adjustments in the books of accounts as considered necessary
in giving effect to the Scheme, as the Board may deem fit and proper without being required to seek any further approval of the Shareholders
or otherwise to the end and intent that the Shareholders shall be deemed to have given their approval thereto expressly by authority under this
resolution and the Board be and is hereby further authorized to nominate one or more representatives of the Company to execute such further
deeds, documents and writings that may be considered necessary, make necessary filings and to carry out any or all activities that the Board is
empowered to do for the purpose of giving effect to this resolution.”

TAKE FURTHER NOTICE THAT in pursuance of the said Order, a Meeting of the Shareholders is scheduled to be held on Thursday, 6" August,
2020 at 10.00 A.M. through VC/ OAVM, when you are requested to attend.

TAKE FURTHER NOTICE THAT in compliance with the provisions of (i) Section 230 read with Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013; (ii)
Rule 6(3)(xi) of the Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016; (iii) Rule 20 and other applicable provisions
of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014; (iv) Regulation 44 and other applicable provisions of the Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015; and (v) Paragraph 9(a) of Circular No. CFD/
DIL3/CIR/2017/21 dated 10" March, 2017 issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI Scheme Circular”), the Company has
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provided the facility of remote e-voting (other than voting at the Meeting) so as to enable the Shareholders, to consider and approve the Scheme
by way of the aforesaid resolution. Accordingly, the Company is offering remote e-voting facility to the Shareholders and the remote e-voting
period commences from 3 August, 2020 at 9.00 a.m. and ends on 5" August, 2020 at 5.00 p.m. In view of the ongoing COVID-19 pandemic
and with the objective to maintain social distancing, the Meeting shall be conducted through VC/OAVM for which the Company is also providing
the facility of e-voting during the Meeting to the Shareholders attending the Meeting.

TAKE FURTHER NOTICE THAT each Shareholder can opt for only one mode of voting i.e. either e-voting at the Meeting or by remote e-voting.
In case of Shareholders exercising their right to vote via both modes, i.e. casting vote by remote e-voting and also during the Meeting, then
remote e-voting shall prevail over voting by the said Shareholder during Meeting. In such cases, the votes cast during the Meeting by the
concerned Shareholder shall be treated as invalid.

The Tribunal has appointed Mr. G. N. Bajpai and failing him, Mr. Kishore Biyani to be the Chairman of the said Meeting including for any
adjournment or adjournments thereof. The Scheme, if approved in the aforesaid Meeting, will be subject to the subsequent approval of the
Tribunal.

Sd/-
Mr. G. N. Bajpai
Dated at this 3 July, 2020 Chairman appointed for the Meeting

Registered Office

Knowledge House, Shyam Nagar,
Off. Jogeshwari Vikhroli Link Road,
Jogeshwari (East), Mumbai — 400 060

Notes:

1. Acopy of the Explanatory Statement, under Sections 230(3), 232(1) and (2) and 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 6 of the
Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016, the Scheme and the other annexures as indicated in the index
are enclosed with this Notice.

2. In view of the nationwide lock down on account of COVID -19 pandemic, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) has vide its circulars
dated 8™ April, 2020, 13" April, 2020 and 15" June, 2020 (collectively referred to as “MCA Circulars”) permitted the holding of the General
Meetings through VC / OAVM, without the physical presence of the Members at a common venue. In compliance with the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”), SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI Listing Regulations”)
and MCA Circulars, the Meeting is being held through VC / OAVM.

3. Pursuant to the provisions of the Act, a Member entitled to attend and vote at the Meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote
on his/her behalf and the proxy need not be a Member of the Company. Since this Meeting is being held through VC / OAVM, physical
attendance of Members has been dispensed with. Accordingly, the facility for appointment of proxies by the Members will not be available
for the Meeting and hence the Proxy Form and Attendance Slip are not annexed to this Notice.

4. Corporate Members can authorize representative(s) to attend the Meeting and are requested to send a certified copy of the Board
Resolution authorizing their representative or the authority letter or power of attorney of the board of directors or other governing
body of the body corporate authorizing their representative to attend and vote on their behalf at the Meeting through email at

investor.care@futureconsumer.in.

5. The quorum of the Meeting of the Shareholders shall be 30 (thirty) shareholders of the Company and the Shareholders attending the
Meeting through VC / OAVM shall be counted for the purpose of reckoning the quorum.

6. The Company has engaged the services of The National Securities Depository Limited (“NSDL”) for facilitating remote e-voting and
e-voting during the said Meeting to be held on Thursday, 6" August, 2020. The Shareholders are requested to follow the instructions
mentioned in Note below.

7. The voting by Shareholders through the remote e-voting shall commence at 9.00 a.m. on Monday, 3 August, 2020 and shall close at 5.00
p.m. on Wednesday, 5" August, 2020. During this period, Members holding shares either in physical form or in dematerialized form, as
on Thursday, 30" July, 2020 i.e. cut-off date, may cast their vote electronically. The remote e-voting module shall be disabled by NSDL
for voting thereafter. Those Members, who will be present in the Meeting through VC / OAVM facility and have not cast their vote on the
Resolution through remote e-voting and are otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be eligible to vote through e-voting system during the
Meeting. Shareholders who have cast their votes through remote e-voting may attend the Meeting but shall not be entitled to cast their vote
during the Meeting.

8. The Shareholders can opt only one mode for voting i.e. remote e-voting or voting during the Meeting. Once the vote on the resolution is
cast by Shareholder, he or she will not be allowed to change it subsequently.

9. In compliance with NCLT Order and pursuant to Section 101 and 136 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the applicable
rules made thereunder (including any statutory modification(s), clarifications, exemptions or re-enactments thereof for the
time being in force) the Notice, together with the documents accompanying the same, is being sent to all the Shareholders
electronically by e-mail to those Shareholders who have registered their e-mail ids with the Company/Registrar and Share
Transfer Agents/ Depositories. For Shareholders who have not registered their E-mail IDs, physical copies shall been sent
by permitted mode. In case any Shareholder wish to receive a copy of the notice they are requested to send an email to
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10.

1.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

investor.care@futureconsumer.in duly quoting his/her DP ID and Client ID or the Folio number, as the case may be and soft copy of this
Notice will be provided to such Shareholder.

Voting rights shall be reckoned on the paid-up value of shares registered in the name of the Member / beneficial owner as on the cut-off
date i.e. 30" July, 2020.

The Members whose names appear in the Register of Members / list of beneficial owners as on the cut-off date 30" July, 2020 only shall
be entitled to vote on the resolution set out in this Notice. Any person who is not a Member as on the cut-off date should treat this Notice
for information purposes only.

Any person who becomes a Member of the Company after dispatch of this Notice and holding shares as on the cut-off date i.e. 30" July,
2020, may obtain the User ID and password for Remote E-voting by sending a request at investor.care@futureconsumer.in. The Notice will
be displayed on the website of the Company www.futureconsumer.in and on the website of NSDL https://www.evoting.nsdl.com.

Mr. Nilesh Shah (having Membership No. FCS- 4554 and COP No. 2631) or failing him, Mr. Mahesh Darji (having Membership No. FCS-
7175 and COP No. 7809) representing M/s. Nilesh Shah and Associates, Practising Company Secretaries has been appointed as the
scrutinizer by the NCLT vide its Order dated 15 May, 2020.

The documents referred to in the accompanying Notice and Explanatory Statement are available for inspection by the Shareholders on the
website of the Company www.futureconsumer.in up to the date of the Meeting.

The notice convening the Meeting will be published through advertisement in e-newspaper (i) Business Standard in the English language;
and (ii) Navshakti in Marathi language, having circulation in Maharashtra.

In accordance with the provisions of Sections 230 to 232 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Scheme shall be acted upon only if a majority
of persons representing three fourth in value of the Shareholders of the Company, voted during the Meeting and through remote e-voting,
agree to the Scheme.

The scrutinizer will submit his combined report to the Chairman of the Meeting after completion of the scrutiny of the votes cast by the
Shareholders of the Company through (i) remote e-voting process; and (ii) voting during the Meeting by VC/OAVM. The scrutinizer’s
decision on the validity of the votes shall be final. The results of votes cast through (i) remote e-voting process and (ii) e-voting during the
Meeting will be announced within 48 hours from conclusion of the Meeting. The results, together with the Scrutinizer’s Reports, will be
displayed on the website of the Company, www.futureconsumer.in and on the website of NSDL at https://www.evoting.nsdl.com, besides
being communicated to BSE Limited and The National Stock Exchange of India Limited.

The Shareholders can join the Meeting through VC/ OAVM mode 15 minutes before the scheduled time of the commencement of the
Meeting by following the procedure mentioned in the Notice and the Company may close the window for joining the VC/OAVM facility 15
minutes after the scheduled time to start the Meeting. The facility of participation at the Meeting through VC/OAVM will be made available
for 1000 members on first come first serve basis. The large shareholders (i.e. shareholders holding 2% or more shareholding), promoters,
institutional investors, directors, key managerial personnel, the Chairperson of the Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration/
Compensation Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee, auditors etc. can attend the Meeting without any restriction on
account of first-come first-served principle.

Any queries/ grievances in relation to the e-voting may be addressed to the Company Secretary of the Company through email at
investor.care@futureconsumer.in or may be addressed to NSDL through e-mail at evoting.nsdl.co.in.

THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING ARE AS UNDER:-

The remote e-voting period begins on Monday, 3 August, 2020 at 9:00 A.M. and ends on Wednesday, 5" August, 2020 at 5:00 P.M.
The remote e-voting module shall be disabled by NSDL for voting thereafter.

The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system consists of “Two Steps” which are mentioned below:

Step 1: Log-in to NSDL e-Voting system at https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/

Step 2: Cast your vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system.

Details on Step 1 are mentioned below:

How to Log-in to NSDL e-Voting website?
1.

Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal
Computer or on a mobile.

Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under ‘Shareholders’ section.
A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password and a Verification Code as shown on the screen.

Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices i.e. IDEAS, you can log-in at https.//eservices.nsdl.com/ with your existing IDEAS
login. Once you log-in to NSDL eservices after using your log-in credentials, click on e-Voting and you can proceed to Step 2 i.e. Cast
your vote electronically.
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4.

7.
8.
9.

Your User ID details are given below :

Manner of holding shares i.e. Demat (NSDL or | Your User ID is:
CDSL) or Physical

a) For Members who hold shares in demat 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit Client ID
account with NSDL. For example if your DP ID is IN300*** and Client ID is 12****** then your user ID
is IN30Q***q2%*****,
b)  For Members who hold shares in demat 16 Digit Beneficiary ID

account with CDSL. For example if your Beneficiary ID is 12************ then your user ID is

(Piiidddiiiiiiiid

c) For Members holding shares in Physical Form. | EVEN Number followed by Folio Number registered with the company

For example if folio number is 001*** and EVEN is 101456 then user ID is
101456001**

Your password details are given below:
a) If you are already registered for e-Voting, then you can use your existing password to login and cast your vote.

b) If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will need to retrieve the ‘initial password’ which was communicated to
you. Once you retrieve your ‘initial password’, you need to enter the ‘initial password’ and the system will force you to change your
password.

c) How to retrieve your ‘initial password’?

(i) If your email ID is registered in your demat account or with the company, your ‘initial password’ is communicated to you on your
email ID. Trace the email sent to you from NSDL from your mailbox. Open the email and open the attachment i.e. a .pdf file.
Open the .pdf file. The password to open the .pdf file is your 8 digit client ID for NSDL account, last 8 digits of client ID for CDSL
account or folio number for shares held in physical form. The .pdf file contains your ‘User ID’ and your ‘initial password’.

(ii) If your email ID is not registered, please follow steps mentioned below in process for those shareholders whose email ids are
not registered.

If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the “ Initial password” or have forgotten your password:

a) Click on “Eorgot User Details/Password?”(If you are holding shares in your demat account with NSDL or CDSL) option available
on www.evoting.nsdl.com.

b) Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are holding shares in physical mode) option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com.

c) If you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can send a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in mentioning your
demat account number/folio number, your PAN, your name and your registered address.

d) Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based login for casting the votes on the e-Voting system of NSDL.
After entering your password, tick on Agree to “Terms and Conditions” by selecting on the check box.

Now, you will have to click on “Login” button.

After you click on the “Login” button, Home page of e-Voting will open.

Details on Step 2 are given below:

How to cast your vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system?
1.

2.

After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see the Home page of e-Voting. Click on e-Voting. Then, click on Active Voting Cycles.

After click on Active Voting Cycles, you will be able to see all the companies “EVEN” in which you are holding shares and whose voting
cycle is in active status.

Select “EVEN” of company for which you wish to cast your vote.
Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page opens.

Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. assent or dissent, verify/modify the number of shares for which you wish to cast your
vote and click on “Submit” and also “Confirm” when prompted.

Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed.
You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option on the confirmation page.

Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.

General Guidelines for shareholders

1.

Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to send scanned copy (PDF/JPG Format) of the relevant
Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc. with attested specimen signature of the duly authorized signatory(ies) who are authorized to vote, to

the Scrutinizer by e-mail to nilesh@ngshah.com with a copy marked to investor.care@futureconsumer.in and evoting@nsdl.co.in.

It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care to keep your password confidential.
Login to the e-voting website will be disabled upon five unsuccessful attempts to key in the correct password. In such an event, you will
need to go through the “Forgot User Details/Password?” or “Physical User Reset Password?” option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com to
reset the password.
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3. In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for Shareholders and e-voting user manual for Shareholders
available at the download section of www.evoting.nsdl.com or call on toll free no.: 1800-222-990 or send a request to Ms. Soni Singh

at evoting@nsdl.co.in.

Process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered with the depositories for procuring user id and password and
registration of e mail ids for e-voting for the resolutions set out in this notice:

1. In case shares are held in physical mode please provide Folio No., Name of shareholder, scanned copy of the share certificate (front
and back), PAN (self attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to

investor.care@futureconsumer.in.

In case shares are held in demat mode, please provide DPID-CLID (16 digit DPID + CLID or 16 digit beneficiary ID), Name, client master or
copy of Consolidated Account statement, PAN (self attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of Aadhar

Card) to investor.care@futureconsumer.in.
THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR e-VOTING ON THE DAY OF THE MEETING ARE AS UNDER:-

1. The procedure for e-Voting on the day of the Meeting is same as the instructions mentioned above for remote e-voting.

2. Only those Members/ Shareholders, who will be present at the Meeting through VC/OAVM facility and have not casted their vote on the
Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be eligible to vote through e-Voting system in the
Meeting.

3.  Members who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend the Meeting. However, they will not be eligible to vote at the
Meeting.

4. The details of the person who may be contacted for any grievances connected with the facility for e-Voting on the day of the Meeting shall
be the same person mentioned for Remote e-voting.

INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR ATTENDING THE MEETING THROUGH VC/ OAVM ARE AS UNDER:

1. Member will be provided with a facility to attend the Meeting through VC/ OAVM through the NSDL e-Voting system. Members may access
the same at https://www.evoting.nsdl.com under Shareholders/ Members login by using the remote e-voting credentials. The link for VC/
OAVM will be available in Shareholder/Members login where the EVEN of Company will be displayed. Please note that the members who
do not have the User ID and Password for e-Voting or have forgotten the User ID and Password may retrieve the same by following the
remote e-Voting instructions mentioned in the notice to avoid last minute rush. Further members can also use the OTP based login for
logging into the e-Voting system of NSDL.

2. Members are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops for better experience.
3. Further Members will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good speed to avoid any disturbance during the Meeting.

4. Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop connecting via Mobile Hotspot may experience
Audio/Video loss due to Fluctuation in their respective network. It is therefore recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to
mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches.

Shareholders, who would like to express their views/ have questions may send their questions in advance mentioning their name, demat account
number/ folio number, email id, mobile number at investor.care@futureconsumer.in. The same will be replied by the Company suitably.
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BEFORE THE HON’BLE NATIONAL COMPANY LAW TRIBUNAL
MUMBAI SPECIAL BENCH
COMPANY SCHEME APPLICATION NO. C.A(CAA)/984/MB/2020
In the matter of the Companies Act, 2013 (18 of 2013)
AND

In the matter of Sections 230 to 232 and other relevant provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013

AND

In the matter of Scheme of Arrangement between Athena Lifesciences
Private Limited and Future Consumer Limited and their respective
shareholders and creditors

Future Consumer Limited

)
a company incorporated under the provisions of the Companies )
Act, 1956 and having its registered office at Knowledge House, )
Shyam Nagar, Off. Jogeshwari Vikhroli Link Road, Jogeshwari )

(East), Mumbai — 400 060 )

................... Applicant Company No. 2

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT UNDER SECTION 230(3), 232(1) AND (2) AND 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 READ WITH RULE
6 OF THE COMPANIES (COMPROMISES, ARRANGEMENT AND AMALGAMATIONS) RULES, 2016 TO THE NOTICE OF THE NCLT
CONVENED MEETING AND THE NOTICE FOR REMOTE E-VOTING AND E-VOTING DURING THE MEETING IN THE MANNER SET
OUT UNDER SEBI CIRCULAR NO. CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/21 DATED 10™ MARCH, 2017 FOR THE EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS OF FUTURE
CONSUMER LIMITED (“SHAREHOLDERS”).

1.

Pursuant to an order dated 1t May, 2020 read with order dated 26" June, 2020 the National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai Special
Bench (“NCLT” or “Tribunal”, and such order, the “Order”) in the Company Application No. 984 of 2020, a meeting of equity shareholders
of Future Consumer Limited (hereinafter referred to as “Resulting Company” or “Applicant Company No. 2" or “FCL” or “the Company”)
is being convened through Video Conferencing (“VC”) / Other Audio Visual Means (“OAVM”) on Thursday, 6" August, 2020 at 10.00 a.m.
for the purpose of considering, and if thought fit, approving the Scheme of Arrangement of Athena Lifesciences Private Limited (hereinafter
referred to as “Transferor Company” or “ALPL” or “Applicant Company No. 1”) with Future Consumer Limited and their respective
shareholders and creditors (“Scheme”) under Sections 230 to 232 of the Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013.

Convening and holding meeting of secured and unsecured creditors of the Company is not required since the present Scheme is an
arrangement between the Applicant Companies and their shareholders as contemplated under Section 230(1)(b) of the Companies Act,
2013, as there is no compromise or arrangement with any of the secured and unsecured creditors as no sacrifice is called for. Therefore,
necessity of holding of meeting of secured and unsecured creditors of the Company for approving the Scheme is dispensed with by the
NCLT.

The draft Scheme was placed before the Audit Committee and Board of Directors of the Company at their meeting held on 7™ April, 2019.
Thereafter, upon application made by the Company, for seeking ‘No Objection Certificate’ and in terms of the queries raised by the stock
exchanges i.e. BSE Limited and The National Stock Exchange of India Limited, the draft Scheme was further amended by the Board of
Directors of the Company on 25" October, 2019 and 31t January, 2020. The Board of Directors of ALPL had approved amendments to the
draft Scheme at their meeting held on 24" October, 2019 and 24" February, 2020.

In accordance with the provisions of SEBI Circular No. CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/21 dated 10" March, 2017, the Audit Committee of the Company
vide resolution passed on 7" April, 2019, 25" October, 2019 and 31%t January, 2020 recommended the Scheme to the Board of Directors of
the Company inter-alia taking into account:

a) The Valuation Report issued by Mr. Nikhil Singhi, Chartered Accountant dated 7™ April, 2019 read with Report dated 4™ October, 2019
and 22" November, 2019 for issue of shares pursuant to the Scheme;

b) The Fairness Opinion issued by D & A Financial Service (P) Limited, an independent SEBI Registered Merchant Banker dated 7" April,
2019 and Addendum to the Fairness Opinion dated 25" November, 2019, on the fairness of the Valuation Report;

c) Statutory Auditors’ certificate dated 7" April, 2019 read with Certificate dated 7" October, 2019 issued by M/s. S R B C & Co. LLP,
Chartered Accountants, Statutory Auditors of the Company, in relation to the accounting treatment prescribed in the Scheme.

Copy of the Valuation Report and the Fairness Opinion are enclosed to this Notice.

Based upon the recommendations of the Audit Committee and having evaluated the same, the Board of Directors of the Company have come
to the conclusion that the Scheme is in the interest of the Company and its shareholders and creditors. A copy of the Scheme, as approved
by the Board of Directors of the respective companies taking into account the Valuation Reports and the independent recommendation of
the Audit Committee of the Company, is enclosed herewith to this Notice.




In terms of the Order, the quorum for the Meeting shall be 30 (thirty) Shareholders, (including through authorised representative). In case
the quorum as noted above for the Meeting is not present, then the Meeting shall be adjourned to the same day in the next week at the
same time and place, or to such other date and such other time as may be directed by the NCLT and thereafter the persons present and
voting shall be deemed to constitute the quorum. In terms of the Order, the NCLT has appointed Mr. G. N. Bajpai to be the Chairperson of
the Meeting and failing him, Mr. Kishore Biyani to be the alternate Chairperson of the Meeting.

Background of the companies involved in the Scheme is as under:

Future Consumer Limited (“Resulting Company” or “Applicant Company No. 2” or “FCL” or “the Company”)

The Company was incorporated on 10" day of July, 1996 under the Companies Act, 1956 under the name and style of “Subhikshith
Finance and Investment Limited” in Madras. The name was changed to “Subhikshith Finance and Investment Private Limited” on 17" day
of September, 2001. The name was again changed to “Future Ventures India Private Limited” on 9" day of August, 2007. Subsequently,
the name was changed to “Future Ventures India Limited” on 7" day of September, 2007. The Registered office was subsequently changed
from the State of Tamil Nadu to the State of Maharashtra vide Certificate of Registration of Regional Director order for change of State on
28™ day of April, 2009. Further, the name was changed to “Future Consumer Enterprise Limited” on 30" day of September, 2013. Further,
the name was again changed to “FUTURE CONSUMER LIMITED” on 13" day of October, 2016. Thereafter, there has been no further
change in the name of the Company. The Corporate Identification Number of the Company is L52602MH1996PLC192090. Permanent
Account Number of the Company is AABCS0279B. Email ID of the Company is investor.care@futureconsumer.in

a) The Registered Office of the Company is situated at Knowledge House, Shyam Nagar, Off. Jogeshwari Vikhroli Link Road, Jogeshwari
(East), Mumbai - 400 060. There has been no further change in the registered office address of the Company in the last five (5) years.

b) The details of the Authorised, Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up share capital of the Company as on 31% March, 2020 are as under:

Particulars Amount (Rs.)

Authorised Capital

5,65,00,00,000 equity shares of Rs. 6/- each 33,90,00,00,000
1,67,00,00,000 unclassified shares of Rs. 10/- each 16,70,00,00,000
Total 50,60,00,00,000
Issued, Subscribed and paid-up capital

1,92,11,09,680 equity shares of Rs. 6/- each fully paid-up 11,52,66,58,080
Total 11,52,66,58,080

After 315t March, 2020, there is no change in the capital structure of the Company. The shares of the Company are currently listed on
BSE Limited (“BSE”) and The National Stock Exchange of India Limited (“NSE”).

c) The Company is engaged in the business of manufacturing, branding, marketing, sourcing and distribution of fast-moving consumer
goods, food and processed food products.

d) The objects for which the Company has been established are set out in its Memorandum of Association. The main objects of the
Company are set out hereunder:

1. To carry on the business, whether in India or abroad, of sourcing, processing, manufacturing, branding, distributing, selling,
marketing, promoting, trading, buying, importing, exporting, using, improving, developing, storing, preserving, packing, repacking,
refining, transporting and otherwise dealing in all, manner in all types of food, beverages and edible products including cereals,
spices, masalas, vegetables, fruits, vegetarian and non-vegetarian food products, dairy products, milk products, bakery products,
flours and mixes, frozen foods, packed foods, canned or tinned convenience foods, ready to eat foods, processed foods, drinks
of all kind and every description, and all kind of fast moving consumer goods and products including personal care products,
health care products, home care products such as soaps, body washes, shampoos, laundry products, wipes, creams, lotions
and other similar products of all kind and every description, providing and availing incidental and ancillary services in relation
thereto and carrying out any and all such activities as may be necessary or related to or in connection with the business of the
Company including by way of acting as agents, principals, contractors, warehousers, dealers, distributors, stockists, transporters,
marketers, cultivators, convertors, franschisors, brokers, consultants, collaborators, job workers, service providers of all nature
and/or otherwise.

2. To construct, build, establish, erect, promote, undertake, acquire, own, operate, transport, equip, manage, renovate, reconstruct,
develop, set up, turn to account, maintain, keep, operate and run or engage into multiple food processing units, establishments,
factories for manufacturing, processing, preparing, preserving, refining, buying, selling, packing, re-packing, directly or
subcontracting and otherwise dealing in any manner in all type of food and food related products including cereals, spices,
masala, beverages, dairy products, milk products, convenience foods and processed foods of all kind and every description, all
kind of fast moving consumer goods and products and providing or availing incidental and ancillary services in relation thereto
and to act as buyer, seller, stockiest, distributor, dealer, importer, exporter or otherwise and to establish, promote, develop,
acquire, license and manage multiple brands, trade name, trademarks and other intellectual property rights in relation to the
business of the Company and to appoint franchisee, representative, distributor or otherwise within and outside India.




a) ALPL was incorporated on 15" day of January, 2014 under the Companies Act, 1956 under the name and style of Athena
Lifesciences Private Limited in Ahmedabad. There has been no change in the name of the Transferor Company since its
incorporation. The Corporate Identification Number of ALPL is U24233MH2014PTC315619. Permanent Account Number of
ALPL is AAMCA3424D. Email ID of ALPL is service@athenalife.com.

b) The Registered office was subsequently shifted from Ahmedabad to Mumbai vide Certificate of Registration of Regional
Director order for change of State on 10" day of October, 2018.

c) The details of the Authorised, Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up share capital of ALPL as on 31t March, 2020 are as under:

Particulars Amount (Rs.)
Authorised Capital
6,50,00,000 equity shares of Rs. 10/- each 65,00,00,000
Total 65,00,00,000

Issued, Subscribed and paid-up capital
6,38,06,336 equity shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid-up 63,80,63,360
Total 63,80,63,360

After 315t March, 2020, there is no change in capital structure of ALPL

d) The Transferor Company is engaged in the business of marketing, selling and distributing fast moving consumer goods and
services in the cosmeceutical and healthcare space, which includes but not limited to, brands like D’ Free, Hair for Sure,
Safe and Sure, Just for Moms, Iraya, Fab Fit etc.

e) The objects for which the Transferor Company has been established are set out in its Memorandum of Association. The
main objects of the Transferor Company are set out hereunder:

To manufacture, formulate, process, develop, refine, import, export, market in wholesale and/or retail trade all kinds of
pharmaceuticals, antibiotics, drugs, medicines, cosmetics, biological, neutraceuticals, healthcare, ayurvedic and dietary
supplement products, medicinal goods, medicinal preparations, vaccines, liquors, soups, broths and other restoratives
and also to deal in medicinal goods such as contraceptives, oils, perfumes, patent medicines, soaps, hospital requisites,
proprietary medicines, veterinary medicines and tinctures extracts and to carry on the business of vialling, bottling, repacking,
processing tablets, capsules, syrups, injections, ointments and also to carry on the business of chemists, druggists, buyers,
sellers, agents, distributors and stockists of all kinds of pharmaceuticals and allied products.

9. Rationale of the Scheme:

The Board of Athena and FCL believes that this Scheme would result in benefit to members, creditors and employees of Athena and FCL
and the same will not be detrimental to the public. Further, the proposed Scheme would inter alia achieve the following:

a)

b)

c)

Combination of Identified Undertaking with FCL is a strategic fit and will help expand the business of FCL in the growing markets of
India;

Consolidation of the Identified Undertaking with FCL, thereby making available the increased resources and assets for the Identified
Undertaking, which should help in pursuing a long term and aggressive growth path for its portfolio products; and

Enhance competitive strength, achieve cost reduction, efficiencies and productivity gains by pooling the technologies and resources
of FCL and the Identified Undertaking, helping contribute to the future growth and targeting a wider base of customers.

In view of the aforesaid, the Board of Athena and FCL have considered and proposed this Scheme under the provisions of Sections 230 to
232 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (as amended).

10. Salient features of the Scheme are set out as below:

This Scheme of Arrangement is presented under Sections 230-232 read with Section 66 of the Companies Act, 2013 and other
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, as may be applicable;

“Appointed Date” for the purpose of this Scheme means 1%t April, 2019 or such other date as the Hon’ble NCLT, Mumbai Bench or other
competent authority may approve / fix;

“Effective Date” means the last of the dates on which the certified copy of the Order of the Tribunal sanctioning the Scheme of
Arrangement is filed with the Registrar of Companies by the Transferor Company and the Transferee Company;

“Identified Undertaking” means the marketing, selling and distribution business of the Transferor Company in relation to the portfolio
products/brands namely, D’Free, Hair for Sure, Iraya and Safe & Sure, as a going concern and free of encumbrances of any nature
(“Business”), together with all undertakings, businesses, activities, operations, assets and liabilities of whatsoever nature and kind,
relating to the Business as on the Appointed Date and more particularly mentioned in the Scheme of Arrangement;
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1.

12.

Upon the Scheme coming into effect, the Transferee Company shall, in consideration of transfer and vesting of the Identified
Undertaking, without any further application, deed, action or thing, issue and/or allot on proportionate basis to each Shareholder /
Member of the Transferor Company, whose name is registered in the Register of Members as on the Appointed Date (which shall
be considered as the Record Date for the purpose of allotment of shares), 13 (Thirteen) fully paid up equity shares of the Transferee
Company, each of a face value of Rs. 6 (Rupees Six only) for every 83 (Eighty Three) fully paid up equity share(s) held by such
Shareholder /Member in the Transferor Company;

Upon the Scheme coming into effect and upon the arrangement becoming operative with effect from the Effective Date, the demerger
of Identified Undertaking of Athena with FCL shall be accounted for in the books of account of FCL in accordance with ‘Acquisition
Method’ of accounting as per Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 103 (Business Combination) prescribed under Section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013; and

It is clarified that the Remaining Business and all the assets, liabilities and obligations of the Transferor Company, other than those
transferred pursuant to this Scheme with the Identified Undertaking, shall continue to belong to and be managed by the Transferor
Company.

You are requested to read the entire text of the Scheme to get fully acquainted with the provisions thereof. The aforesaid are only some of
the key provisions of the Scheme.

Approvals:
11.1 Pursuant to the SEBI Circulars read with Regulation 37 of the SEBI Listing Regulations, the Company had filed necessary applications

before BSE and NSE seeking their No-Objection to the Scheme. The Company has received the observation letters from BSE
and NSE dated 24™ January, 2020 conveying their No-Objection to the Scheme (“Observation Letters”). Copies of the aforesaid
Observation Letters are enclosed to this Notice.

11.2 As required by the SEBI Circular, the Company has filed Complaint Report dated 16" October, 2019 and 13" December, 2019 with

BSE and Complaint Report dated 16™ October, 2019 and 2™ January, 2020 with NSE. A copy of the aforementioned Complaint Report
are enclosed to this Notice.

Pre Scheme and Post Scheme Shareholding Pattern:

The pre and post scheme shareholding pattern of the Company as on 31t March, 2020 is as follows:

Particulars Pre - Amalgamation Post - Amalgamation

Sr. No. | Description No. of Shares | Percentage (%) | No. of Shares | Percentage (%)
PROMOTER/PROMOTER GROUP
INDIAN
Individuals / Hindu Undivided Family 1,66,788 0.01 1,66,788 0.01
Central Government/ State Government(s) 0 0.00 0 0.00
Financial Institutions/ Banks 0 0.00 0 0.00
Any other — (Body Corporates & Trusts) 87,04,16,310 45.31 87,04,16,310 45.07
Sub-Total A(1): 87,05,83,098 45.32 87,05,83,098 45.08
FOREIGN
Individuals (NRI/ Foreign Individuals) 0 0.00 0 0.00
Government 0 0.00 0 0.00
Institutions 0 0.00 0 0.00
Foreign Portfolio Investor 0 0.00 0 0.00
Any Other (specify) 0 0.00 0 0.00
Sub-Total A(2): 0 0.00 0 0.00
Total A=A(1) + A(2) 87,05,83,098 45.32 87,05,83,098 45.08
PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING
INSTITUTIONS
Mutual Funds 2,36,60,377 1.23 2,36,60,377 1.23
Venture Capital Funds 0 0.00 0 0.00
Alternate Investment Funds 4,00,000 0.02 4,00,000 0.02
Foreign Venture Capital Investors 0 0.00 0 0.00
Foreign Portfolio Investors 33,38,59,452 17.38 33,38,59,452 17.29
Financial Institutions / Banks 37,66,470 0.20 37,66,470 0.20
Insurance Companies 7,56,778 0.04 7,56,778 0.04
Provident Funds/ Pension Funds 0 0.00 0 0.00
Any other 0 0.00 0 0.00
Sub-Total B(1): 36,24,43,077 18.87 36,24,43,077 18.78
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Particulars

Pre - Amalgamation

Post - Amalgamation

Sr. No. | Description No. of Shares | Percentage (%) | No. of Shares | Percentage (%)
B2 CENTRAL/STATE GOVT(S)/ PRESIDENT OF INDIA 0 0.00 0 0.00
Sub-Total B(2): 0 0.00 0 0.00
B3 NON-INSTITUTIONS
Public 24,15,69,312 12.58 24,15,69,312 12.51
Shareholders of Athena Lifesciences Private 0 0.00 99,93,764 0.52
Limited
NBFCs registered with RBI 6,28,001 0.03 6,28,001 0.03
Employee Trusts 0 0.00 0 0.00
Overseas Depositories (holding DRs) 0 0.00 0 0.00
Any Other
- Hindu Undivided Family 99,562,277 0.52 99,562,277 0.52
- Non Resident Indians (Non Repatriable) 50,15,573 0.26 50,15,573 0.26
- Non Resident Indians (Repatriable) 94,70,938 0.49 94,70,938 0.49
- Directors 72,77,422 0.38 72,77,422 0.38
- Clearing Members 10,37,034 0.05 10,37,034 0.05
- Trusts 7,967 0.00 7,967 0.00
- Office Bearers 45,64,374 0.24 45,64,374 0.24
- Foreign Company 20,45,87,517 10.65 20,45,87,517 10.59
- Bodies Corporate 19,05,20,297 9.92 19,05,20,297 9.87
Sub-Total B(3): 67,46,30,712 35.12 68,46,24,476 35.45
Total Public Shareholding (B)= (B)(1)+(B)(2)+(B)(3) | 1,03,70,73,789 53.98| 1,04,70,67,553 54.22
(C) Employee Benefit Trust (under SEBI (Share based 1,34,52,793 0.70 1,34,52,793 0.70
Employee Benefit) Regulations, 2014)
Sub-Total C: 1,34,52,793 0.70 1,34,52,793 0.70
Total (A+B+C) 1,92,11,09,680 100.00 | 1,93,11,03,444 100.00

The pre and post scheme shareholding pattern of the Transferor Company as on 31t March, 2020 is

as follows:

Particulars Pre - Amalgamation Post - Amalgamation
Sr. No. | Description No. of Shares | Percentage (%) | No. of Shares | Percentage (%)
(A) PROMOTER/PROMOTER GROUP
1 INDIAN
Individuals / Hindu Undivided Family 18,57,727 2.91 18,57,727 2.9
Central Government/ State Government(s) 0 0.00 0 0.00
Financial Institutions/ Banks 0 0.00 0 0.00
Any other — (Trust) 100 0.00 100 0.00
Sub-Total A(1): 18,57,827 2.91 18,57,827 291
2 FOREIGN
Individuals (NRI/ Foreign Individuals) 0 0.00 0 0.00
Government 0 0.00 0 0.00
Institutions 0 0.00 0 0.00
Foreign Portfolio Investor 0 0.00 0 0.00
Any Other (specify) 0 0.00 0 0.00
Sub-Total A(2): 0 0.00 0 0.00
Total A=A(1) +A(2) 18,57,827 2.91 18,57,827 291
(B) PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING
B1 INSTITUTIONS
Mutual Funds 0 0.00 0 0.00
Venture Capital Funds 0 0.00 0 0.00
Alternate Investment Funds 0 0.00 0 0.00
Foreign Venture Capital Investors 0 0.00 0 0.00
Foreign Portfolio Investors 0 0.00 0 0.00
Financial Institutions / Banks 0 0.00 0 0.00
Insurance Companies 0 0.00 0 0.00
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13.

Particulars

Pre - Amalgamation

Post - Amalgamation

Sr. No. | Description No. of Shares | Percentage (%) | No. of Shares | Percentage (%)
Provident Funds/ Pension Funds 0 0.00 0 0.00
Any other 0 0.00 0 0.00
Sub-Total B(1): 0 0.00 0 0.00
B2 CENTRAL/STATE GOVT(S)/ PRESIDENT OF INDIA 0 0.00 0 0.00
Sub-Total B(2): 0 0.00 0 0.00
B3 NON-INSTITUTIONS
Public Individuals 86,37,849 13.54 86,37,849 13.54
NBFCs registered with RBI 0 0.00 0 0.00
Overseas Depositories (holding DRs) 0 0.00 0 0.00
Any Other
Hindu Undivided Family 0 0.00 0 0.00
Non Resident Indians (Non Repatriable) 0 0.00 0 0.00
Non Resident Indians (Repatriable) 0 0.00 0 0.00
Clearing Members 0 0.00 0 0.00
Trusts 0 0.00 0 0.00
Foreign Company 0 0.00 0 0.00
Bodies Corporate 5,33,10,660 83.55 5,33,10,660 83.55
Sub-Total B(3): 6,19,48,509 97.09 6,19,48,509 97.09
Total Public Shareholding (B)= (B)(1)+(B)(2)+(B)(3) 6,19,48,509 97.09 6,19,48,509 97.09
(C) Employee Benefit Trust (under SEBI (Share based 0 0.00 0 0.00
Employee Benefit) Regulations, 2014)
Sub-Total C: 0 0.00 0 0.00
Total (A+B+C) 6,38,06,336 100.00 6,38,06,336 100.00

Extent of Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

13.1

13.2

The Directors and Key Managerial Personnel (“KMP”) and their respective relatives of the Company may be deemed to be concerned
and/or interested in the Scheme only to the extent of their shareholding in the Company, or to the extent the said Directors / KMP are
the partners, directors, members of the companies, firms, association of persons, bodies corporate and/or beneficiary of trust that
hold shares in the Company. Save as aforesaid, none of the Directors, Managing Director or the Manager or KMP of the Company

have any material interest in the Scheme.

The details of the Directors and KMP of the Company and their respective shareholdings in the Company and the Transferor

Company as on 318 March, 2020 are as follows:

Name of Directors /| KMP Designation

Equity Shares of Rs. 6/-
each in the Company

Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each
in the Transferor Company

Mr. G. N. Bajpai Independent Director & Non- 250,000 NIL
Executive Director

Mr. Kishore Biyani Vice-Chairman & Non- NIL NIL
Executive Director

Mr. Frederic de Mevius Non-Executive Director NIL NIL

Ms. Ashni Biyani Managing Director 67,169 NIL

Mr. K K Rathi Non-Executive Director 2,275 NIL

Mr. Adhiraj Harish Independent Director & Non- NIL NIL
Executive Director

Mr. Deepak Malik Non-Executive Director & NIL NIL
Nominee Director

Mr. Narendra Baheti Executive Director 4,203,267 NIL

Mr. Harminder Sahni Independent Director & Non- NIL NIL
Executive Director

Mr. Manoj Gagvani Company Secretary & Head-Legal 500,000 NIL

Mr. Rajnikant Sabnavis Chief Executive Officer 110,000 NIL
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14.

13.3 The details of the Directors and KMP of the Transferor Company and their respective shareholdings in the Company and the

Transferor Company as on 31t March, 2020 are as follows:

Name of Directors / KMP Designation Equity Shares of Rs. 6/- each | Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each
in the Company in the Transferor Company
Mr. Trushit Indravadan Chokshi Director NIL 100 (as a trustee of Athena
Family trust)
Mr. Amarendra Vashishtbhai Tiwari Director NIL NIL

13.4 Relationship between the Companies involved in the Scheme: There is no relationship between the Transferor Company and
the Company.

General:

14.1 The Company and the Transferor Company have made joint application before the NCLT for the sanction of the Scheme under
Sections 230-232 of the Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

14.2 The amount due from the Company to its Secured Creditors as on 31t December, 2019 is Rs. 5,37,21,57,016/-

14.3 The amount due from the Company to its Unsecured Creditors as on 31t December, 2019 is Rs. 3,02,79,64,922/-.

14.4 The amount due from the Transferor Company to its Secured Creditors as on 31t December, 2019 is NIL.

14.5 The amount due from the Transferor Company to its Unsecured Creditors as on 31t December, 2019 is Rs.1,33,33,201/-.

14.6 In relation to the Meeting, Shareholders of the Company whose names are appearing in the records of the Company as on cut-off
date i.e. 30" July, 2020 shall be eligible to attend and vote at the Meeting as per the directions of the Tribunal or cast their votes using
remote e-voting facility.

14.7 None of Directors and KMPs of the Company or their respective relatives are in any way concerned or interested in the aforesaid
resolution except to the extent of their respective shareholding, if any.

14.8 The unaudited financial results for the quarter ended 31t December, 2019 of the Company indicates that it is in a solvent position
and would be able to meet liabilities as they arise in the course of business. Hence, the Scheme will not cast any additional burden
on the shareholders or creditors of the Company, nor will it adversely affect the interest of any of the shareholders or creditors.

14.9 There are no winding up proceedings pending against the Company as of date.

14.10 No investigation proceedings are pending or are likely to be pending under the provisions of Chapter XIV of the Companies Act, 2013
or under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 in respect of the Company except that the Company had received an Order for
furnishing of information of the Company from the office of Registrar of Companies, Mumbai, dated 6" December, 2018 bearing
number ROC.M/Inq206(4)/17/05/2018/8922 under Section 206 (4) of the Companies Act, 2013 to which the Company had submitted
reply on 14" January, 2019. Thereafter no communication has been received by the Company in the said matter.

14.11 The Company and the Transferor Company are required to seek approvals / sanctions / no- objections from certain regulatory and
governmental authorities for the Scheme such as the Registrar of Companies, Regional Director, Securities and Exchange Board of
India, BSE, NSE and Income-tax authorities as may be applicable and it will obtain the same at the relevant time.

14.12 In the event that the Scheme is withdrawn in accordance with its terms, the Scheme shall stand revoked, cancelled and be of no
effect and null and void.

14.13 Names and addresses of the Directors and Promoters of the Company as on 31t March, 2020 are as under:

Sr. Name of Director Address
No.
1 Mr. G. N. Bajpai 131, Shaan Apartment, 59 K.D. Road, Prabhadevi, Dadar (W), Mumbai 400 028
2 Mr. Kishore Biyani 406, Jeevan Vihar, Manav Mandir Road, Malabar Hill, Mumbai 400 006
3 Mr. Frederic de Mevius 47-49, Abingdon Road, W8 6AN London W86AN GB
4 | Ms. Ashni Biyani 406, Jeevan Vihar, Manav Mandir Road, Malabar Hill, Mumbai 400 006
5 | Mr. KK Rathi B-72, Dakshina Park, 7" Floor, NS Road 10, JVPD Scheme, Juhu, Mumbai 400 049
6 | Mr. Adhiraj Harish 13, C.C.I. Chambers, Dinshaw Wacha Road, Churchgate, Mumbai 400 020
7 | Mr. Deepak Malik 99, Meyer Road, #16-02 Singapore 437 920
8 | Mr. Narendra Baheti A-702, Govind Complex, Sector-14, Navi Mumbai, Vashi, Thane 400 703
9 | Mr. Harminder Sahni B-1/301, World Spa West, Sector-30/41, Gurgaon 122 001
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14.14

14.15

14.16

14.17

Sr. Name of Promoter Address
No.
1 Mr. Kishore Biyani 406, Jeevan Vihar, Manav Mandir Road, Malabar Hill, Mumbai 400 006
2 | Future Capital Investment Private Limited 2" Floor, SOBO Central Mall, Pt. Madan Mohan Malviya Road, Haji Ali,
Tardeo, Mumbai - 400 034
3 | Future Enterprises Limited Knowledge House, Shyam Nagar, Off. Jogeshwari Vikhroli Link Road,
Jogeshwari (East), Mumbai — 400 060
4 | PIL Industries Limited* # amalgamated with Future Brands Limited vide order passed by NCLT
5 | Future Knowledge Services Limited* Mumbai Bench dated 9" March, 2017
6 | Future Corporate Resources Limited* * amalgamated with Suhani Trading and Investment Consultants Private
Limited (now known as Future Corporate Resources Private Limited) vide
order passed by NCLT Mumbai Bench dated 18" October, 2017
Names and addresses of the Directors and Promoters of the Transferor Company as on 31t March, 2020 are as under:
Sr. Name of Director Address
No.
1 Mr. Trushit Indravadan Chokshi 8, Aarohi Bunglows, Nr. Ashwamegh Bunglow-1, Satellite Road, Ambawadi Vistar,
Ahmedabad - 380 015, Gujarat
2 | Mr. Amarendra Vashishtbhai Tiwari L/188/2252, Mahatma Gandhi Vasahat, Near Water Tank, Gota,
Ahmedabad - 380 061, Gujarat
Sr. Name of Promoter Address
No.
1 Mr. Trushit Chokshi (As a Trustee of | 8, Aarohi Bunglows, Nr. Ashwamegh Bunglow-1, Satellite Road, Ambawadi Vistar,
Athena Family Trust) Ahmedabad - 380 015, Gujarat
2 | Mr. S. Raghunandan 142, Park West, Sindhubhavan Road, Ahmedabad - 380 054.
Details of Directors of the Company who voted in favour / against / did not participate on resolution passed at the meeting of the

Board of Directors of the Company where the Scheme was approved are given below:

Sr. Name of Director Voted in favour/ against/ did not participate
No. 7t April, 2019 25 October, 2019 31t January, 2020
(Circular Resolution)

1. | Mr. G. N. Bajpai Voted in favour Voted in favour Voted in favour

2. | Mr. Kishore Biyani Voted in favour Voted in favour Voted in favour

3. | Ms. Ashni Biyani Voted in favour Voted in favour Voted in favour

4. | Mr. KK Rathi Voted in favour Voted in favour Voted in favour

5. | Mr. Adhiraj Harish Voted in favour Voted in favour Voted in favour

6. | Mr. Narendra Baheti Voted in favour Voted in favour Leave of absence in the meeting
7. | Mr. Frederic de Mevius Leave of absence in the meeting Voted in favour Voted in favour

8. | Mr. Deepak Malik Leave of absence in the meeting Voted in favour Leave of absence in the meeting
9. | Mr. Harminder Sahni Leave of absence in the meeting Voted in favour Voted in favour

10. |Ms. Neha Bagaria* Leave of absence in the meeting Voted in favour Voted in favour

* Resigned w.e.f. 28" March, 2020.

Details of Directors of the Transferor Company who voted in favour / against / did not participate on resolution passed at the meeting

of the Board of Directors of the Transferor Company where the Scheme was approved are given below:

Sr. Name of Director Voted in favour/ against/ did not participate
No. 7t April, 2019 24" October, 2019 24t February, 2020
1. | Mr. Prabhu Karthikeyan* Voted in favour NA NA

2. | Mr. Trushit Indravadan Chokshi Voted in favour Voted in favour Voted in favour
3. | Mr. Amarendra Vashishtbhai Tiwari* NA Voted in favour Voted in favour

*Resigned w.e.f. 3¢ June, 2019
#Appointed on 3 June, 2019

Upon the Scheme coming into effect, the Transferee Company shall, in consideration of transfer and vesting of the Identified
Undertaking, without any further application, deed, action or thing, issue and/or allot on proportionate basis to each Shareholder /
Member of the Transferor Company, whose name is registered in the Register of Members as on the Appointed Date (which shall
be considered as the Record Date for the purpose of allotment of shares), 13 (Thirteen) fully paid up equity shares of the Transferee
Company, each of a face value of Rs. 6 (Rupees Six only) for every 83 (Eighty Three) fully paid up equity share(s) held by such
Shareholder /Member in the Transferor Company.
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14.18 The Company has not accepted any deposits from depositors and therefore no deposit trustees have been appointed. The Scheme
will have no adverse effect on the interest of the debenture trustees appointed in connection with the debentures issued by the
Company. There will be no adverse effect on account of the Scheme as far as the employees and creditors of the Company are
concerned.

14.19 A copy of the Unaudited Financial Results of the Company for quarter and nine months ended 31t December, 2019 and Audited
Financial Statements of the Transferor Company as on 31t December, 2019 are attached to this Notice.

14.20 Upon coming into effect of this Scheme, all employees of the Transferor Company engaged in or in relation to the Identified
Undertaking and who are in such employment as on the Effective Date shall become the employees of the Transferee Company and
subject to the provisions of this Scheme, on terms and conditions not less favorable than those on which they are engaged by the
Transferor Company and without any interruption of or break in service as a result of the transfer of the Identified Undertaking.

14.21 The following documents will be available on the website of the Company for inspection of the Shareholders upto the date of the
Meeting:

i.  Copy of the order passed by the NCLT in Company Scheme Application No. 984 of 2020 dated 1%t May, 2020 and Order dated
26" June, 2020 of the Company and the Transferor Company;

i. Copy of the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company and the Transferor Company, respectively;

iii. Copy of the annual reports of the Company for the financial year ended 31t March, 2017, 31 March, 2018 and 31t March,
2019 and the Transferor Company for the financial year ended 31t March, 2019;

iv. Copy of the Unaudited Financial Results of the Company and Audited Financial Statements of the Transferor Company,
respectively, for the period ended 31t December, 2019;

v.  Copy of Valuation Report dated 7" April, 2019 read with Report dated 4™ October, 2019 and 22" November, 2019 submitted by
Mr. Nikhil Singhi, Chartered Accountant;

vi. Copy of the Fairness Opinion dated 7 April, 2019 read with Addendum to the Fairness Opinion dated 25" November, 2019
issued by D & A Financial Services (P) Limited, to the Board of Directors of the Company;

vii. Copy of the Audit Committee Reports of the Company;

viii. Copy of the resolutions passed by the respective Board of Directors of the Company and the Transferor Company, approving
the Scheme;

ix. Copy of the Statutory Auditors’ certificate issued by M/s. SRBC & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants, to the Company and
M/s. Chandulal M. Shah & Co., Chartered Accountants to the Transferor Company;

X. Abridged Prospectus as provided in Part E of Schedule VI of the SEBI (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2018 including applicable information pertaining to Athena Lifesciences Private Limited;

xi. Copy of the Complaint Report dated 16" October, 2019 and 13" December, 2019, submitted by the Company to BSE and
Complaint Report dated 16" October, 2019 and 2" January, 2020 submitted by the Company to NSE;

xii. Copy of the no adverse observations/no objection letter issued by BSE and NSE, both dated 24" January, 2020 to the Company.

This Statement may be treated as an Explanatory Statement under Sections 230(3), 232(1) and (2) and 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 read
with Rule 6 of the Companies (Compromise, Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016.

Sd/-
Mr. G. N. Bajpai
Dated at this 3 July, 2020 Chairman appointed for the Meeting

Registered Office

Knowledge House, Shyam Nagar,
Off. Jogeshwari Vikhroli Link Road,
Jogeshwari (East), Mumbai — 400 060
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Annexure 1

SCHEME OF ARRANGEMENT
UNDER SECTIONS 230 TO 232 READ WITH OTHER APPLICABLE
PROVISIONS OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

BETWEEN
ATHENA LIFE SCIENCES PRIVATE LIMITED
AND
FUTURE CONSUMER LIMITED
AND
THEIR RESPECTIVE SHAREHOLDERS AND CREDITORS

PREAMBLE:

This Scheme of Arrangement is prepared under the provisions of Sections 230 to 232 of
the Companies Act, 2013 read with other applicable provisions of the Companies Act,
2013, for the demerger of Identified Undertaking (defined below) of Athena Life
Sciences Private Limited (hereinafter referred to as “Transferor Company” or
“Athena”) to Future Consumer Limited (hereinafter referred to as (“Transferee
Company” or “FCL”), for the consideration as set out in the Scheme. This Scheme also
provides for various other matters consequential or otherwise integrally connected
therewith.

The Transferor Company will continue to pursue its interests in the Remaining Business
(defined below) as is presently being carried out.

A. Description of Companies:

a. Athena Life Sciences Private Limited (“Transferor Company” or “Athena”)
1. Athena is a private limited company incorporated under the Companies
Act, 1956 (CIN: U24233MH2014PTC315619), having its registered
office presently at Off. No. 406, Accord Building, Phool Bagh, I B Patel

Road, Opp. Rly Stn, Goregaon (East) Mumbai - 400063.

il. Athena is inter alia engaged in the business of marketing, selling and
distributing fast moving consumer goods and services in the
cosmeceutical and healthcare space, which includes but not limited to,
brands like D’Free, Hair for Sure, Safe and Sure, Just for Moms, Iraya,
Fab Fit etc.

b. Future Consumer Limited (“Transferee Company” or “FCL”)

1. FCL is a public limited company, incorporated under the Companies
Act, 1956 (CIN L52602MH1996PLC192090), having its registered
office at Knowledge House, Shyam Nagar, Off. Jogeshwari Vikhroli
Link Road, Jogeshwari (East), Mumbai — 400 060.

1l The Equity Shares of FCL are listed on BSE Limited and the National
Stock Exchange of India Limited.
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FCL is inter alia engaged in the business of branding, marketing,
sourcing, manufacturing and distribution of fast-moving consumer
goods, food and processed food products. Its product portfolio includes
product categories, such as basic foods, snacks, frozen and processed
food products, beverages, personal care and home care under its own
portfolio of brands.

Rationale and Purpose of the Scheme of Arrangement:

The Board of Athena and FCL believes that this Scheme of Arrangement would

result in benefit to members, creditors and employees of Athena and FCL and the

same will not be detrimental to the public. Further, the proposed Scheme of

Arrangement would inter alia achieve the following:

a.  Combination of Identified Undertaking with FCL is a strategic fit and will
help expand the business of FCL in the growing markets of India;

b. Consolidation of the Identified Undertaking with FCL, thereby making
available the increased resources and assets for the Identified Undertaking,
which should help in pursuing a long term and aggressive growth path for its
portfolio products; and

c. Enhance competitive strength, achieve cost reduction, efficiencies and
productivity gains by pooling the technologies and resources of FCL and the
Identified Undertaking, helping contribute to the future growth and targeting
a wider base of customers;

In view of the aforesaid, the Board of Athena and FCL have considered and
proposed this Scheme of Arrangement under the provisions of Sections 230 to 232
of the Companies Act 2013 read with other applicable provisions of the Companies
Act 2013 (as amended).

Parts of the Scheme:

The Scheme is divided into the following parts:

a. PART I sets out the Definitions, Share Capital and date of taking effect of the
Scheme;

b. PART II sets out the provisions for transfer and vesting of Identified
Undertaking of the Transferor Company into the Transferee Company,
Consideration and Remaining Business of the Transferor Company; and

c. PART III sets out the General Terms and Conditions.

PART -1

DEFINITIONS AND SHARE CAPITAL

1.1.DEFINITIONS

In this Scheme of Arrangement, unless inconsistent with the subject or context,
in addition to the terms defined elsewhere in this Scheme, the following
capitalized terms shall have the meaning set out below:
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"Act" or “the Act" means the Companies Act, 2013, the rules and
regulations made thereunder and will include any statutory modification
or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force;

“Appointed Date” for the purpose of this Scheme means 1% April, 2019
or such other date as the Hon’ble NCLT, Mumbai Bench or other
competent authority my approve / fix. ;

“Athena” or “Transferor Company” means Athena Life Sciences
Private Limited, a private limited company incorporated under the
Companies Act, 1956 (CIN: U24233MH2014PTC315619), having its
present registered office at Off. No. 406, Accord Building, Phool Bagh,
I B Patel Road, Opp. Rly Stn, Goregaon (East) Mumbai - 400063;

“Board” or “Board of Directors” means the board of directors of the
Transferor Company or the Transferee Company as the context may
require, and shall include a committee constituted thereof and authorized
thereby, for the purposes of matters pertaining to the Scheme and/or any
other consequential or incidental matter in relation thereto;

. “Companies” means Athena and FCL collectively and “Company”

means Athena or FCL individually, as the context may require;

“Effective Date” means the last of the dates on which the certified copy
of the Order of the Tribunal sanctioning the Scheme of Arrangement is
filed with the Registrar of Companies by the Transferor Company and
the Transferee Company;

“FCL” or “Transferee Company” means Future Consumer Limited, a
public limited company, incorporated under the Companies Act, 1956
(CIN: L52602MHI1996PLC192090), having its registered office at
Knowledge House, Shyam Nagar, Off. Jogeshwari Vikhroli Link Road,
Jogeshwari (East), Mumbai — 400 060;

. “Identified Undertaking” means the marketing, selling and distribution

business of the Transferor Company in relation to the portfolio
products/brands namely, D’Free, Hair for Sure, Iraya and Safe & Sure,
as a going concern and free of encumbrances of any nature (“Business™),
together with all undertakings, businesses, activities, operations, assets
and liabilities of whatsoever nature and kind, relating to the Business as
on the Appointed Date and includes without limitation:

(i)  All assets and liabilities pertaining to the Business, including but
not limited to intellectual property rights, inventories, stock-in-
trade or stock-in-transit and merchandising, including any other
materials, supplies, finished goods, wrapping supply and
packaging items, all earnest moneys and/or security deposits, cash
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(i)

(iii)

(iv)
V)

(vi)

and bank balances, advances, receivables, together with all present
and future liabilities appertaining or relatable thereto;

Without prejudice to the provisions of sub-clause (i) above, the
Business shall also include all properties and assets in connection
with or pertaining or relatable to the Business such as goodwill,
customer details, licenses, permits, quotas, registrations,
agreements, contracts, arrangements, privileges or all other rights
including tax deferrals, tax credits (including business tax losses
and unabsorbed tax depreciation), tax balances and other benefits,
incentives, tenancy rights, if any, and all other rights, title,
interests, copyrights, patents, trademarks, trade names, know-how
and other industrial or intellectual property rights of any nature
whatsoever, consent, approvals or powers of every kind nature and
description whatsoever in connection with or pertaining or
relatable the Business and all statutory licenses, permissions,
approvals or consents to carry on the Business;

All liabilities pertaining to the Business. For the purposes of this
Scheme, it is clarified that liabilities pertaining to the Business
include:

(a) The liabilities, which arise out of the activities or operations of

the Business;
(b) Liabilities other than those referred to in sub-clauses (a) above

and not directly relatable to the Business, being the amounts of

general or multipurpose borrowings of Athena shall be allocated
to the Business in the same proportion, which the value of the
assets transferred under this Clause bears to the total value of the
assets of Athena immediately before giving effect to this
Scheme;
All employees of Athena employed in and/or relatable to the
Business;
All deposits and balances with government, semi government, local
and other authorities, and bodies, customers and other persons,
earnest moneys and / or security deposits paid or received by
Athena directly or indirectly in connection with or relating to the
Business;
All necessary books, records, files, papers, product specifications,
process of manufacture, along with their licenses, manuals, data,
catalogues, quotations, sales and advertising materials, lists of
present and former customers and suppliers, customer credit
information, customer pricing information, and other records
whether in physical or electronic form in connection with or
relating to the Business of Athena.

It is clarified that any question that may arise as to whether a specified
asset or liability pertains or does not pertain to the Business or whether it
arises out of the activities or operations of the Business shall be decided
by mutual agreement between the Board of Directors of Athena and FCL.
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1.2.

1.2.1.

1.1.10.

1.1.11.

1.1.12.

1.1.13.

1.1.14.

1.1.15.

“Registrar of Companies” means the Registrar of Companies, Mumbai,
Maharashtra;

“Remaining Business” means marketing/ selling and distribution
business in relation to the product portfolios/ brands, ‘Just for Moms’
and “Fab Fir’ alongwith all undertakings, businesses, activities,
operations, investments of all kinds and the assets and the liabilities of
Athena, other than in relation to the Identified Undertaking (as defined
in Clause 1.1.8. above);

“Scheme” or “the Scheme” or “this Scheme” or “Scheme of
Arrangement” means this Scheme of Arrangement in its present form as
submitted to the Tribunal or as the case may be this Scheme with such
modification(s), if any made, as per Clause 3.8. of the Scheme;

“SEBI” means the Securities Exchange Board of India;

“SEBI Circular” means the circular issued by SEBI, being circular
CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/21 dated 10" March 2017, and any amendments
thereof, modifications issued pursuant to regulations 11, 37 and 94 of the
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), Regulations,
2015 including Circular CFD/DIL3/CIR/2018/2 dated 3™ January 2018

“Stock Exchanges” means Bombay Stock Exchange (“BSE”) and the
National Stock Exchange of India Limited (“NSE”);

"Tribunal" or “NCLT” means the National Company Law Tribunal,
Mumbai as constituted and authorized as per the provisions of the Act
for approving any scheme of arrangement, compromise or
reconstruction of companies under Sections 230 to 240 of the Act;

SHARE CAPITAL

The share capital of the Transferor Company as on 315 March 2019 is as under:

Share Capital Rs.

Authorized Share Capital

6,50,00,000 equity shares of Rs. 10 each Rs. 65,00,00,000/-

Issued, Subscribed and Fully Paid-up Share Capital

6,38,06,336 equity shares of Rs. 10 each Rs. 63,80,63,360/-

There has been no change in authorized share capital of the Transferor Company
subsequent to 31 March 2019.
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1.2.2. The share capital of the Transferee Company as on 31% March 2019 is as under:

1.3.

2.1.

2.1.1.

Share Capital Rs.

IAuthorized Share Capital

5,65,00,00,000 equity shares of Rs.6/- each and Rs. 50,60,00,00,000/-
1,67,00,00,000 unclassified shares of Rs. 10/- each

[ssued, Subscribed and Fully Paid-up Share Capital

1,92,04,62,680 equity shares of Rs. 6/-each Rs. 11,52,27,76,080/-

There has been no change in authorized share capital of the Transferee Company
subsequent to 31% March 2019.

DATE OF TAKING EFFECT OF THE SCHEME

Each section of the Scheme set out herein in its present form or with any
modification(s) shall be effective from the Appointed Date and operative from
Effective Date.

PART - 11

TRANSFER AND VESTING OF IDENTIFIED UNDERTAKING OF THE
TRANSFEROR COMPANY INTO THE TRANSFEREE COMPANY,
CONSIDERATION AND REMAINING BUSINESS OF THE
TRANSFEROR COMPANY

Upon the Scheme becoming effective and with effect from the Appointed Date,
the Identified Undertaking of the Transferor Company shall stand transferred
to and vested in or deemed to be transferred to and vested in the Transferee
Company, as a going concern, in the following manner:

a)  Upon the Scheme becoming effective and with effect from the Appointed
Date, the whole of the Identified Undertaking and all the properties,
tangible and intangible, relating to the Identified Undertaking shall,
pursuant to the provisions contained in the Sections 230 to 240 and all
other applicable provisions, if any, of the Act and without any further act,
deed, matter or thing, stand transferred to and vested in and/or be deemed
to be transferred to and vested in the Transferee Company on a going
concern basis so as to vest in the Transferee Company all rights, title and
interest relating to the Identified Undertaking.

b) Upon the Scheme becoming effective and with effect from the

Appointed Date , all the immovable properties, if any, of the Identified
Undertaking, whether freehold or leasehold and any documents of title
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d)

and rights thereto shall stand transferred and vested in Transferee
Company and shall become the property and integral part of the Transferee
Company, without any further act, instrument or deed required by either
of the Transferee Company or Transferor Company and without
requirement of any approval or acknowledgement of any third party.

In respect of such assets and properties of the Identified Undertaking as
are movable in nature or incorporeal property or are otherwise capable of
transfer by delivery or possession, or by endorsement and/ or delivery,
including cash-in-hand the same shall be physically handed over by
delivery to the Transferee Company by the Transferor Company upon
coming into effect of the Scheme and shall, ipso facto and without any
other order to this effect, become the assets and properties of the
Transferee Company.

In respect of the assets other than those dealt within sub-clause (c) above
and forming part of the assets, including but not limited to sundry debts,
receivables including tax balances, bills, credits, loans, advances and
deposits, if any, pertaining to the Identified Undertaking, whether
recoverable in cash or in kind or for value to be received, the same shall
stand transferred to and vested in the Transferee Company without any
notice or other intimation to any person in pursuance of the provisions of
the Sections 230 to 240 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with other
relevant provisions of the Act to the end and intent that the right of the
Transferor Company to recover or realize the same stand transferred to the
Transferee Company. The Transferee Company shall, at its sole discretion
but without being obliged, give notice in such form as it may deem fit and
proper, to such person, as the case may be, that the said debt, receivables,
bills, credits, loans, advances or deposits stand transferred and vested in
the Transferee Company and that appropriate modification should be made
in their respective books/ records to reflect the aforesaid changes and the
Transferor Company shall provide all necessary assistance required in this
regard.

Upon the Scheme becoming effective and with effect from the Appointed
Date, all debts, liabilities (other than any liability pertaining to any tax or
tax related litigations), contingent liabilities, duties and obligations of
every kind, nature and description of the Transferor Company pertaining
to Identified Undertaking under the provisions of the Sections 230 to 240
and all other applicable provisions, if any, of the Act, and without any
further act or deed, be transferred to or be deemed to be transferred to the
Transferee Company, so as to become from the Appointed Date, the debts,
liabilities, contingent liabilities, duties and obligations of the Transferee
Company and it shall not be necessary to obtain the consent of any third
party or other person who is a party to any contract or arrangement by
virtue of which such debts, liabilities, contingent liabilities, duties and
obligations have arisen in order to give effect to the provisions of this sub-
clause.
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f)  On and from the Effective Date, till such time that the bank accounts in
the name of the Transferor Company in relation to the Identified
Undertaking have been replaced with that of the Transferee Company, the
Transferee Company shall be entitled to maintain and operate such bank
accounts of the Transferor Company, in the name of the Transferor
Company for such time as may be determined to be necessary by the
Transferee Company. All cheques and other negotiable instruments,
payment orders received or presented for encashment which are in the
name of the Transferor Company, in relation to the Identified
Undertaking, after the Effective Date shall be accepted by the bankers of
the Transferee Company and credited to the account of the Transferee
Company, if presented by the Transferee Company.

g)  Upon the Scheme becoming effective and with effect from the Appointed
Date, any statutory licenses, permissions or approvals or consents held by
Athena required to carry on operations of the Identified Undertaking shall
stand vested in or transferred to FCL without any further act or deed, and
shall be appropriately mutated by the statutory authorities concerned
therewith in favour of FCL and the benefit of all statutory and regulatory
permissions, environmental approvals and consents, registration or other
licenses, and consents shall vest in and become available to FCL as if they
were originally obtained by FCL. In so far as the various incentives,
subsidies, rehabilitation schemes, special status and other benefits or
privileges enjoyed, granted by any government body, local authority or by
any other person, or availed of by Athena relating to the Identified
Undertaking, are concerned, the same shall vest with and be available to
FCL on the same terms and conditions as applicable to Athena, as if the
same had been allotted and/or granted and/or sanctioned and/or allowed
to FCL.

h) It is clarified that if any assets, (estate, claims, rights, title, interest in, or
authorities relating to such assets) or any contract, deeds, bonds,
agreements, schemes, arrangements or other instruments of whatsoever in
relation to Identified Undertaking which Athena owns or to which Athena
is a party and which cannot be transferred to FCL for any reason
whatsoever, Athena shall hold such assets or contract, deeds, bonds,
agreements, schemes, arrangements or other instruments of whatsoever
nature in trust for the benefit of FCL to which the Identified Undertaking
is being transferred in terms of this Scheme, in so far as it is permissible
so to do, till such time as the transfer is effected.

2.2. CONSIDERATION

2.2.1. Upon the Scheme coming into effect, the Transferee Company shall, in
consideration of transfer and vesting of the Identified Undertaking, do the
following:
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2.2.1.1. The Transferee Company would, without any further application, deed, action
or thing, issue and/or allot on proportionate basis to each Shareholder /Member
of the Transferor Company, whose name is registered in the Register of
Members as on the Appointed Date (which shall be considered as the Record
Date for the purpose of allotment of shares), 13 (Thirteen) fully paid up equity
shares of the Transferee Company, each of a face value of Rs. 6 (Rupees Six
only) for every 83 (Eighty Three) fully paid up equity share(s) held by such
Shareholder /Member in the Transferor Company.

2.2.1.2. The equity shares allotted to the Shareholders /Members of the Transferor
Company (as per Clause 2.2.1.1), shall be subject to the provisions of the
Memorandum of Association and Articles of Association of the Transferee
Company and shall rank pari passu in all respects with the existing equity
shares of the Transferee Company.

2.2.1.3. The Transferee Company shall apply for listing of the new equity shares on the
Stock Exchanges in terms of and in compliance of SEBI Circular and other
relevant provisions as may be required under applicable law. The new equity
shares shall remain frozen in depository system till listing /trading permission
is given by the Stock Exchange(s).

2.2.1.4 In case any equity shareholder of Athena has holding in Athena, such that it
becomes entitled to a fraction of an equity share of FCL, FCL shall not issue
fractional share certificates to such member but shall instead, round off all
fractional entitlements to the nearest integer for each of the fractional
entitlement.

2.2.1.5 The approval of this Scheme by the shareholders and/or creditors of the
Transferee Company and the Transferor Company, under Sections 230 to 232 of
the Act and other applicable provisions under the Act, shall also be deemed to
be the approval by the shareholders and/or creditors under the applicable
provisions of the Act and the applicable law, for the purpose of issuance and
allotment of the Equity Shares of the Transferee Company to the
Shareholders/Members of the Transferor Company, in accordance with the
Scheme. It is clarified that no additional special resolution under Section 62(1)(c)
of the Act, or any other provision of the Act or applicable law shall be required
to be passed for issuance and allotment of the equity shares of the Transferee
Company to the Shareholders /Members of the Transferor Company under this
Scheme.

2.3. REMAINING BUSINESS OF THE TRANSFEROR COMPANY

2.3.1. It is clarified that the Remaining Business and all the assets, liabilities and
obligations of the Transferor Company, other than those transferred pursuant to
this Scheme with the Identified Undertaking, shall continue to belong to and be
managed by the Transferor Company.
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23.2.

2.3.3.

2.3.4.

2.3.5.

2.3.6.

2.3.7.

2.3.8.

2.4.

All legal and other proceedings by or against the Transferor Company under
any statute, whether pending on the Appointed Date or which may be initiated in
future, relating to the Remaining Business of the Transferor Company (including
those relating to any property, right, power, liability, obligation or duty of the
Transferor Company in respect of the Remaining Business of the Transferor
Company) shall be continued and enforced by or against the Transferor
Company.

After the Effective Date, if any proceedings are taken against the Transferee
Company in respect of matters relating to the Remaining Business, the
Transferor Company shall indemnify and keep indemnified the Transferee
Company against all costs liabilities and obligations incurred by the Transferee
Company in respect thereof.

All assets and properties acquired by the Transferor Company at any time after
the Appointed Date shall, to the extent that the same do not relate to the
Identified Undertaking, form part of the Remaining Business of the Transferor
Company.

All liabilities, debts and obligations incurred by or arising against the Transferor
Company at any time after the Appointed Date shall, to the extent that the same
do not relate to the Identified Undertaking, form part of the Remaining Business
of the Transferor Company.

The Transferor Company shall be entitled to enter into such contracts as the
Transferor may deem fit and proper in respect of the Remaining Business of the
Transferor Company.

All the profits or incomes accruing or arising, and all expenditure or losses
arising or incurred (including all taxes, if any, paid or accruing in respect of any
profits and income) by the Transferor Company in relation to Remaining
Business of the Transferor Company shall, for all purposes, be treated and be
deemed to be and accrue as the profits or incomes, expenditure or losses
(including taxes) of the Transferor Company.

All employees engaged in or relation to the Remaining Business shall continue
to be employed by the Transferor Company and the Transferee Company shall
not in any case, be liable or responsible for any claims whatsoever arising in
relation to such employees.

ACCOUNTING TREATMENT IN THE BOOKS OF THE TRANSFEROR
COMPANY

Upon coming into effect of this Scheme and upon the arrangement becoming
operative and with effect from the Effective Date, the Transferor Company shall
reduce from its books, the book value of the Identified Undertaking and liabilities
thereon as on the Appointed Date and shall be transferred to FCL’s books.
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2.5.

2.5.1.

2.5.2.

3.1.

3.1.1.

3.2.

3.2.1.

ACCOUNTING TREATMENT IN THE BOOKS OF THE TRANSFEREE
COMPANY

Notwithstanding anything contained in the other parts of the Scheme, upon
coming into effect of this Scheme and upon the arrangement becoming
operative and with effect from the Effective Date, the demerger of Identified
Undertaking of Athena with FCL shall be accounted for in the books of account
of FCL in accordance with ‘Acquisition Method’ of accounting as per Indian
Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 103 (Business Combination) prescribed under
Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Applying the acquisition method as per Ind AS 103 requires (a) identifying the
acquirer (b) determining the acquisition date (c) recognising and measuring the
identifiable assets acquired, the liabilities assumed and any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree and (d) recognising and measuring goodwill or a gain
from a bargain purchase. Further, on the effective date of the scheme, in
accordance with the requirement of Ind AS 103 for accounting,
consideration determined in para 2.2.1.1 will be fair valued.

PART - II1

GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

APPROVALS:

The Transferor Company shall be entitled, pending the sanction of the
Scheme, to apply to any Governmental Authority and all agencies,
departments and authorities concerned as are necessary under any law for such
consents, approvals and sanctions which the Transferee Company may require
to own and operate the Identified Undertakings.

. The Transferee Company shall be entitled, pending the sanction of the Scheme, to

apply to any Governmental Authority and all agencies, departments and
authorities concerned as are necessary under any law for such consents,
approvals and sanctions which the Transferee Company may require to own and
run the Identified Undertakings. Further, the Transferor Company shall also
provide its assistance to the Transferee Company for obtaining the aforesaid
consents, approvals and sanctions.

COMPLIANCE WITH TAX LAWS:

This Scheme complies with the conditions relating to “demerger” as defined
under Section 2 (19AA), Section 47, Section 72A and other relevant sections
and provisions, of the Income-tax Act, 1961 and is intended to apply
accordingly. If any terms or clauses of this Scheme are found to be or interpreted
to be inconsistent with any of the said provisions (including the conditions set
out therein) at a later date whether as a result of a new enactment or any
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3.3.

3.3.1.

3.3.2.

34.

34.1.

34.2.

3.4.3.

3.5.

3.5.1.

amendment or coming into force of any provision of the Income-tax Act, 1961
or any other law or any judicial or executive interpretation or for any other
reason whatsoever, Parties shall negotiate in good faith to modify this Scheme
in a mutually satisfactory manner that ensures compliance of this Scheme with
such Provisions.

ADMINISTRATIVE CONVENIENCE:

Notwithstanding anything contained in other clauses of this Scheme, the
Transferor Company, shall enter into such documents, agreements; make
applications to various authorities, regulatory bodies to facilitate the
uninterrupted transitions of the business from the Transferor Company to the
Transferee Company.

Notwithstanding anything contained in other clauses of this Scheme but in
accordance with the Act and other applicable laws, the Transferor Company and
the Transferee Company, may enter into such documents, agreements,
arrangements and make applications to various authorities, regulatory bodies to
facilitate the sharing of, infer alia any common services, employees, intellectual
properties and other assets (whether moveable or immoveable).

LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

All legal proceedings by or against the Transferor Company pending and/ or
arising before the Effective Date and relating to the Identified Undertaking,
shall not abate or be discontinued or be in any way prejudicially affected by
reason of the Scheme or by anything contained in this Scheme but shall be
continued and enforced by or against the Transferee Company.

After the Effective Date, if any proceedings are taken against the
Transferor Company in respect of the matters relating to Identified
Undertaking as referred above, it shall defend the same at the cost of the
Transferee Company, and the Transferee Company will reimburse and
indemnify the Transferor Company against all liabilities and obligations
incurred by the Transferor Company in respect thereof.

The Transferee Company undertakes to have all respective legal or other
proceedings initiated by or against the Transferor Company with respect to
the Identified Undertaking post Effective Date, as referred in Clause 3.4.1
and 3.4.2 above transferred into its name and to have the same continued,
prosecuted and enforced by or against the Transferee Company as the case may
be, to the exclusion of the Transferor Company.

CONTRACTS, DEEDS, ETC.

All contracts, deeds, bonds, agreements, memorandum of understandings and
other instruments, if any, of whatsoever nature and subsisting or having effect
on the Effective Date and relating to the Identified Undertaking of the
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3.5.2.

3.6.

3.6.1.

3.6.2.

Transferor Company, shall continue in full force and effect against or in favour
of the Transferee Company and may be enforced effectively by or against the
Transferee Company as fully and effectually as if, instead of the Transferor
Company, the Transferee Company had been a party thereto.

The Transferee Company may, at any time after the coming into effect of
this Scheme in accordance with the provisions hereof, if so required, under any
law or otherwise, enter into, or issue or execute deeds, writings, confirmations,
novations, declarations, or other documents with, or in favour of any party to
any contract or arrangement to which the Transferor Company is a party or any
writings as may be necessary to be executed in order to give formal effect to the
above provisions. The Transferee Company shall be deemed to be authorised to
execute any such writings on behalf of the Transferor Company and to carry out
or perform all such formalities or compliances required for the purposes referred
to above on the part of the Transferor Company.

STAFF, WORKMEN & EMPLOYEES

Upon the coming into effect of this Scheme, all employees of the
Transferor Company engaged in or in relation to the Identified Undertaking
and who are in such employment as on the Effective Date shall become the
employees of the Transferee Company and, subject to the provisions of this
Scheme, on terms and conditions not less favorable than those on which they
are engaged by the Transferor Company and without any interruption of or
break in service as a result of the transfer of the Identified Undertaking.

In so far as the existing provident fund, gratuity fund and pension and/ or
superannuation fund, trusts, retirement fund or benefits and any other funds or
benefits created by the Transferor Company for the employees related to the
Identified Undertaking (collectively referred to as the “Funds”), the Funds and
such of the investments made by the Funds which are referrable to the
employees related to the Identified Undertaking being transferred to the
Transferee Company, in terms of Clause 3.6.1 above shall be transferred to the
Transferee Company and shall be held for their benefit pursuant to this Scheme
in the manner provided hereinafter. In the event that the Transferee Company
do not have their own funds in respect of any of the above, the Transferee
Company may, subject to necessary approvals and permissions, continue to
contribute to relevant funds of the Transferor Company, until such time that
the Transferee Company create their own fund, at which time the Funds and
the investments and contributions pertaining to the employees related to
Identified Undertaking shall be transferred to the funds created by the
Transferee Company. Subject to the relevant law, rules and regulations
applicable to the Funds, the Boards of the Transferor Company and the
Transferee Company may decide to continue to make the said contributions to
the Funds of the Transferor Company.
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3.7.

3.7.1.

3.7.1.1.

3.7.1.2.

3.7.1.3.

3.7.14.

3.7.1.5.

3.7.1.6.

3.7.1.7.

3.7.1.8.

BUSINESS UNTIL EFFECTIVE DATE

During the time between Appointed Date and upto the Effective Date;

All the profits or income accruing or arising to Athena in respect of the
Identified Undertaking or expenditure or losses arising to or incurred by Athena
in respect of the Identified Undertaking, shall for all purposes and intents be
treated and be deemed to be and accrue as the profits or incomes or expenditure
or losses (as the case may be) of Transferee Company;

the Transferor Company shall stand possessed of all the properties and assets
relating to the Identified Undertaking for and in trust for the Transferee
Company;

the shareholders of the Transferor Company shall, save as expressly provided
otherwise in the Scheme, continue to enjoy their existing respective rights under
the Articles of Association of the Transferor Company;

the Transferor Company shall not sell, assign, license or create any
encumbrance over any movable property, intellectual property or any other
assets relating to the Identified Undertaking;

the Transferor Company shall not utilize the profits or income, if any, relating
to the Identified Undertaking for the purpose of declaring or paying any
dividend to its shareholders or issuing bonus shares or for any other purpose
without the prior consent of the Board of Directors of the Transferee Company;

the Transferor Company shall not vary the terms of service of its employees to
their detriment relating to the Identified Undertaking, except in the ordinary
course of business or prevailing policies of the Transferor Company;

the Transferor Company shall preserve the properties, assets, goodwill,
receivables and business of the Identified Undertakings with reasonable
diligence and business prudence and shall not take any decision of material
significance without the prior consent of the Board of Directors of the
Transferee Company.

The Transferor Company shall not undertake any additional financial
commitments of any nature whatsoever, borrow any amounts or incur any other
liabilities or expenditure, issue any additional guarantees, indemnities, letters of
comfort, either for itself or on behalf of its affiliates or associates or any third
party, except in case:

(a) such action is expressly provided in the Scheme; or

(b) such action is in the ordinary course of business; or

(c) written consent of the Transferee Company has been obtained in relation

to such act.
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3.7.1.9. Except with the written consent of the Transferee Company, the Transferor

3.8.

3.8.1.

3.8.2.

3.9.

Company in relation to the Identified Undertaking shall not:

(a) Waive, defer or release any rights that it may have against any person or
any obligations that a person may have towards the Transferor Company,
other than in ordinary course of business;

(b) Commence or settle any litigation, dispute or claim which involves any
amount in excess of Rs. 10 lakh or admit any liability in any litigation,
dispute or claim, where such liability corresponds to any amount in excess
of Rs. 10 lakhs, as the case may be.

MODIFICATION OF SCHEME

Each of the Transferor Company and the Transferee Company by their
respective Board of Directors or any committee thereof or any Director
authorised, in that behalf (hereinafter referred to as the "Delegate") may
together assent to, or make, from time to time, any modification(s) or
amendment(s) or addition(s) to this Scheme which the NCLT may deem fit to
approve or impose certain conditions, which both the parties may in their
discretion accept, or such modification(s) or amendment(s) or addition(s)
both the parties or as the case maybe, their respective Delegate may deem
fit, or required for the purpose of resolving any doubts or difficulties that
may arise in carrying out the purpose of this Scheme and as approved by
the NCLT, and both parties by their respective Board of Directors or
Delegates are authorised to do and execute all acts, deeds, matters and things
necessary for bringing this Scheme into effect, or review the position
relating to the satisfaction of the conditions of this Scheme and if necessary,
waive any of such conditions (to the extent permissible under law) for
bringing this Scheme into effect. In the event any conditions may be
imposed by the NCLT or any authorities, which the Companies find
unacceptable for any reason, then the both parties shall be at liberty to
withdraw the Scheme. The aforesaid powers of the Transferee Company and
the Transferor Company may be exercised by the Delegate of the respective
Companies. It is clarified that any modification or amendment to the Scheme
by the Companies, after the sanction by the NCLT, shall only be made with
the prior consent of the NCLT.

For the purpose of giving effect to this Scheme or to any modifications or
amendments thereof or additions thereto, the Delegates (acting jointly) of the
Companies may give and are authorized to determine and give all such
directions as are necessary including directions for settling or removing any
question of doubt or difficulty that may arise and such determination or
directions, as the case may be, shall be binding on all parties, in the same manner
as if the same were specifically incorporated in this Scheme.

FILING OF APPLICATIONS

Each of the Companies shall with all reasonable dispatch, make and file the
applications/ petitions under Sections 230 to 232 of the Act and/or other
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provisions under the Act as may be applicable, before the NCLT for sanction
of this Scheme and the Companies shall obtain all requisite approvals as may
be required under law to give effect to the Scheme.

3.10. CONDITIONALITY OF SCHEME

3.10.1. This Scheme is conditional upon and subject to:

3.10.1.1. The Scheme being approved by the requisite majority of the members and/or
creditors of the Companies and/or by such other persons as may be required
under the Act and as directed by the NCLT;

3.10.1.2. The requisite sanctions and approvals of any Government Authority including
Stock Exchanges, SEBI and any other regulatory authority, as may be required
by law, in respect of the Scheme being sanctioned,

3.10.1.3. The sanction of this Scheme by the NCLT;

3.10.1.4. Copy(ies) of the order(s) of the NCLT sanctioning the Scheme being filed with
the Registrar of Companies, Mumbai, Maharashtra;

3.11. EFFECTS OF NON-RECEIPT OF APPROVALS / SANCTIONS

3.11.1. In the event of the Scheme not being sanctioned by the NCLT and/or the order
or orders not being passed by 30" September, 2020 or by such later date as may
be agreed by the respective Board of the Companies, the Scheme shall become
fully null and void. Additionally, the Board of Directors of the Transferee
Company and the Transferor Company may mutually waive such conditions as
they consider appropriate to give effect, as far as possible, to this Scheme and
failing such mutual agreement, the Scheme shall become fully null and void. In
such event, no rights and liabilities shall accrue to the parties in terms of the
Scheme, save and except, in respect of any act or deed done prior thereto as is
contemplated hereunder or as to any rights and/or liabilities which might have
arisen or accrued pursuant thereto and which shall be governed and be preserved
or worked out as is specifically provided in the Scheme or as may otherwise
arise in law. In such event, each party shall bear and pay its respective costs,
charges and expenses for and/or in connection with the Scheme.

3.12. SEVERABILITY

3.12.1. Each Part of the Scheme shall be given effect to as per the chronology in which
it has been provided for in the Scheme. Each Section in each Part is independent
of each Section and is severable. However, failure of any one Section of one
part for lack of necessary approval from the shareholders / creditors / statutory
regulatory authorities or for any other reason that the Board of respective
Companies may deem fit, then this shall not result in the whole Scheme failing.
It shall be open to the Board of Directors concerned to consent to sever such
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Section(s) of such part(s) of the Scheme and implement the rest of the Scheme
with such modification.

3.13. COSTS, CHARGES AND EXPENSES

3.13.1. All costs, charges and all expenses of the Transferor Company, and the
Transferee Company arising out of or incurred in carrying out and implementing
this Scheme and matters incidental thereto, shall be borne and paid by the
Transferor Company and the Transferee Company as mutually agreed between
them.

3.13.2. Stamp duty on the order(s) of the Tribunal, if any, shall be borne by the
Transferor Company.
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1. INTRODUCTION
BACKGROUND INFORMATION

Mr Nikhil Singhi (herein referred as ‘I or ‘us’ or ‘our’ or ‘we’) has been engaged to determine the share
entitfement ratio on Proposed Demerger of identified business of Athena Life Sciences Private Limited (herein
referred to as ‘Athena’ or ‘Transferor’) into Future Consumer Limited (herein referred to as ‘FCL’ or ‘the company’
or ‘the transferee’) (collectively called as ‘Companies’ or ‘parties’). ' '

Mr Nikhil Singhi is a Chartered Accountant and Registered Valuer as per Companies Act, 2013. He is a partnerin
Singhi & Co., Chartered Accountants.

FCL is a public limited company, incorporated under the Companies Act, 1956 having its registered office at
Knowledge House, Shyam Nagar, Off. Jogeshwari Vikhroli Link Road, Jogeshwari (East), Mumbai — 400 060. The
Equity Shares of FCL are listed on the Bombay Stock Exchange Limited and the National Stock Exchange of India
Limited.

FCL is engaged in the business of branding, marketing, sourcing, manufacturing and distribution of Fast Moving
Consumer Goods, food and processed food products. FCL also has agri-sourcing operations in India. its product
portfolio includes product categories, such as basic foods, ready to eat meals, snacks, frozen and processed food
products, beverages, personal care and home care under its own portfolio of brands. FCL has also commenced its
operations for marketing and distribution of oats and ocats-based cereal products in India through its subsidiary
company at Sri Lanka. FCL offers food and spice products under the brands, Fresh & Pure, Golden Harvest, Sangi's
Kitchen and Karmig; snacks and beverages under Tasty Treat and Sunkist brands; home care products under Clean
Mate and Paratha brands, and personal hygiene care products under brands, such as Care Mate, Sach, Swiss
Tempelle and Think Skin. '

Athena is a private limited company incorporated under the Companies Act, having its registered office at A-1,
Vikas 31, Ramachandra Lane, Malad {West) Mumbal — 400 064, Maharashtra

Athena is engaged in the business of marketing, selling and distributing Fast Moving Consumer Gooeds and
services in the Cosmeceutical and Heathcare space, and operates under the following product portfolios /brands:

(a)  D’Free: D'Free is a unique, leave on lotion that is superior and different from the current approaches of
treating Dandruff, viz — shampoos. Its products include 100 mi and 50 ml Lotions. S

(b} Hair for Sure: Hair for Sure is clinically proven Hair Tonic that helps in treating consumers in early stages
of Androgenic Alopecia. .

(¢}  Safe & Sure: Safe and Sure is a brand under development to enter the fast-growing female hygiene
segment including products like Sanitary Napkins, etc.

(d) Fab Fit: Fab Fit is a brand under development to enter the Adult Nutrition space including products like
Adult Milk Additives, etc. -

(e}  Just for Moms: This is a unique Gynaecologist Tested solution to help prevent stretch marks among
pregnant mothers,
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{fi Iraya: Iraya operates in the fast-growing space of Premium Ayurvedic products. With a portfolio of over
240 products in both retail and professional salon segments, Iraya’s unique approach to formulations and
focus on quality, makes it a leading name in Premium Ayurvedic Cosmetics.

PURPQSE AND INTENDED USE OF VALUATION

The management of Athena and FCL are contemplating demerger of certain product portfolios/brands, i.e.
D’Free, Hair for Sure, iraya and Safe & Sure (“Identified Business”} which are exclusively owned and operated by
Athena, on a going concern basis ("Proposed Demerger”) and to merge it with FCL. FCL proposed to issue its
equity shares having face value of INR 6 each to the shareholders of Athena based upon the share entitlement
ratio determined. ‘

In this respect; | have been requested by the company to submit a report recommending a fair share entitlement
ratio in event of the Proposed Bemerger for the consideration of the Board of Directors of the companies. The
report may also be produced before judicial, regulatory or government authorities, in connection with the
Proposed Demerger.

The scope of our services Is to conduct the valuation of FCL and the identified business of Athena and to
recommend a fair share entitlement ratio for the Proposed Demerger in compliance with generally accepted
standards for valuation and Valuation Standards as mandated by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
(icar).

This report is subject to the scope, assumptions, exclusions, limitations and disclaimers detailed in the report.
RELEVANT DATES

The Valuation date considered for the above exercise is 1% April 2019,

PREMISE OF VALUE AND STANDARD OF VALUE

The valuation of the instruments and business has been done using the “Going Concern” assumption. The
standard of value applied is the “Fair Valuation” approach.

5 _ ADDRESS CONTACT
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DETAILS OF SHARE CAPITAL AND SHAREHOLDING PATTERN OF THE COMPANIES

The paid-up equity share capital of FCL as on 31" March, 2019 is INR 11,52,27,76,080 divided into
1,92,04,62,680 equity shares having face value of INR 6 each. The shareholding pattern of the company

is as follows:

Name of Shareholder As at 31% March, 2019
No. of shares % of Holding
Future Capital Investment Private Limited 84,52,12,246 44.01
Black River Food 2 Pte, Ltd 14,62,83,195 7.62
Verlinvest SA 14,05,13,969 7.32
Arisaig India Fund Limited 13,43,31 586 6.99
Others holding less than 5% 65,41,21,684 34.06
Total 1,92,04,62,680 100

The paid-up equity share capital of Athena as on 31 March 2019 is INR 63,80,63,360 divided in to 6,38,06,336
equity shares having face value of INR 10 each. The shareholding pattern of the company is as follows:

As at 315t Marc¢h 2019
S1l.No Name of Shareholders No. of Equi
0. of Equity % Shareholding
Shares of Rs. 10/- Each
1 Akash. - Bhanshali (C/O M/s. Enam 5,30,80,653 83.19%
Securities)

2 Manish Balkishan Chokhani 58,97,849 9.2%

3 Sathyanarayan Rao Raghunandan _1857,727 2.9%

4. Rahul Vilas Kale (Sadatan) . 17,40,000 2.7%

5 Prabhu Karthikeyan 10,00,000 1.6%

3 Alder Capital Advisors LLP 2,30,007 0.4%

7 Truslhlt Chokshi {As a Trustee of Athena 100 0.0%
Family Trust)

Total Shares 6,38,06,336 100.00%

INFORMATION CONSIDERED FOR VALUATION

We have considered the following factors and relied on the information provided to us during thecourse of this

assignment.

* Unaudited Financial Statement of Athena for the year ended 31%March 2019
* Certified Financial projections prepared and submitted to us in respect of identified business of Athena

and reviewed by us
e Draft Scheme of Arrangement

* Business outlook and industry reports

* Discussion with management in relation to business plan of companies, their future plans etc.

¢ Information and explanations received from the management and employees of the Companies

¢ Information that is available from public web sites such as the Stock exchange web sites, Company
website and other companies operating in the same industry etc.

* Additional information as is'detailed in the relevant sections of the report
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2. METHODOLOG?ES/APPROACH ES CONSIDERED FOR VALUATION

The following methodologieé and approaches are available for arriving at the fair value of Company and its
shares: : ‘

ASSET BASED APPROACH

The asset-based approach is a general way of determining a value indication of a business, business ownership
interest, security, or intangible asset using one cr more methods based on the value of the assets net of liabilities.
A frequently used method under the asset approach is the adjusted net asset method.

INCOME BASED APPROACH

The income approach is a general way of determining a value indication of a business, business ownership
interest, security, or intangible asset by using one or more methods through which anticipated benefits are
converted into value.

Anticipated benefits, as used in the income approach, are expressed in monetary terms. Anticipated benefits may
be reasonably represented by such items as dividends distributions, or various forms of earnings or cash flow.

Two frequently used valuation methads under the income approach include the capitatization of benefits method
and the discounted future benefits method.

MARKET BASED APPROACH

The market approach is a general way of determining a value indication of a business, business ownérship
interest, security or intangible asset by using one or more methods that compare the subject to similar/
comparable businesses, business ownership interests, securities or intangible assets that have been sold.

In our valuation, we have considered and applied one or more of the above methads to value each entity,
depending on the circumstances which in our opinion were most appropriate to the entity. The valuation
methodology applied for each entity is elaborated in greater detail with the relevant Company valuation provided
subsequently. : '
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3. STATEMENT OF LIMITING CONDITIONS

CONDITIONS

The histarical financial information about the Companies considered in this report is solely for the purpose to
arrive at value conclusion presented in this report, and it should not be used by anyone to obtain credit or for any
other unintended purpose. Because of the Limited purpose as mentioned in the report, it may be incomplete and
may contain departures from generally accepted accounting principles prevailing in the country. This repo'rt is
only to be used in its entirety, and for the purpose stated in the report. No third parties should rely on the
information or data contained in this report without the advice of their lawyer, attorney or accountant.

We acknowledge that we have no present or contemplated financial interest in the Companies. Cur fees for this
valuation are based upon our normal billing rates, and not contingent upen the results or the value of the
business or in any other manner. We have no responsibility to modify this report for events and circumstances
occurring subsequent to the date of this report. ’

In the course of the this exercise/assignment, we were provided with both written and verbal information
including financial and operating data through telephone, emails and in-person interaction with the management
and representatives of the companies. We have evaluated such information provided to us through broad inquiry
and analysis (but have not carried out a due diligence or audit or review of the companies for the purpose of this
engagement, nor have we independently investigated or otherwise verified the data provided). Our work does
not constitute an audit, due diligence or certification of the historical financial statements.

We have, used conceptually sound and generally accepted methods; principles and procedures of valiation in
determining the value estimate included in this report. The valuation analyst, by reason of performing this
valuation and preparing this report, is not to be required to give expert testimony nor to be in attendance in court
or at any government hearing with reference to the matters contained herein, unless prior arrangements have
been made with the analyst regarding such additional engagement and which, the analyst shall be at a liberty to
accept or decline. )

This report and the information contained herein are confidential. This report is to be used in its entirety only‘and
specifically for the purpose stated in the report. Reproducing, copying or otherwise quoting of this report or any
part thereof, other than for the purpose mentioned above, is not permitted.

ASSUMPTIONS

The opinion of exchange ratio given in this Report is based on information provided in part by the management of
the Company/the companies and other sources as listed in the Report. This information is assumed to be accurate
and complete. It is assumed that the Management of the Company/Companies has/have disclosed all relevant
information and data in this matter which may have a bearing on our recommendations. ‘

We have relied upon the management certified/ audited financial statements and projections as well as
representations contained in the public and/or other documents in our possession concerning the value and
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useful condition of all investments in securities or partnership interests, and any other assets or liabilities except
as specifically stated to the contrary in this report.

We have not attempted to confirm whether or not all assets of the business are free and clear of liens and
encumbrances, or that the ewner has good title to all the assets and that book values of assets and liabilities,
unless otherwise stated reflect their fair values. We have also not conducted a tax due diligence and rely on the
tax losses as disclosed to us for the purpose of any valuation impact, if any. We have also assumed that the
business will be operated prudently and that there are no unforeseen adverse changes in the economic
conditions affecting the business, the market, or the industry. This report presumes that the management of the
Companies will maintain the character and integrity of the Companies through any sale, reorganization or
reduction of any owner's/manager's participation in the existing activities of the Companies. .

We have been informed by management that there are no environmental or toxic contamination problems, any
significant lawsuits, or any other undisclosed contingent liabilities which may potentially affect the business
materially, except as may be disclosed elsewhere in this report. We have assumed that no material costs or
expenses will be incurred in connection with such liabilities, except as explicitly stated in this report.

CAVEATS

Provision of valuation or share exchange or share entitlement ratio recommendations and considerations of the
issues described herein are areas of our regular corporate advisory practice. The services do not represent
accounting, financial due diligence review, consulting, transfer pricing or domestic/international tax-related
services that may otherwise be provided by us. ‘

We have assumed that the business continues normally without any disruptions due to statutory or other
external/internal occurrences.

The valuation worksheets prepared for the exercise are proprietary Mr Nikhil Singhi and cannot be shared with
anyone excepting our prior written consent, :

A valuation of this nature involves consideration of various factors including those impacted by prevailing stock
market trends in general and industry trends in particular. The scope of our work has been Limited both in terms
of the areas of the business and operations which we have reviewed and the extent to which we have reviewed
them. The Valuation Analysis contained herein represents the value only on the date that is specificaily stated in
this Report. This Report is issued on the understanding that the Management of the Companies has drawn aur
attention to all matters of which they are aware, which may have an impact on our Report up to the date of
signature.-We have no responsibility to update this Repart for events and circumstances occurring after the date
of this Report. The management has represented that there are no significant changes in the financial position of
the Companies requiring major valuation adjustments subsequent to the valuation date.

Our Valuation Analysis and Entitlement Ratio should not be construed as investment advice; specifically, we do
not express any opinion on the suitability or otherwise of entering into any transaction with the Companies. The

9 ADDRESS CONTACT
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report is subject to laws of India only. We would not be referred to as an expert in any regulatory filings outside
the laws of India or jurisdiction outside India. '

The values arrived at are of indicative nature limited by our scope and availability of information and time, leaving
the final value open to the influence of many extraneous factors that may or may not have been possible to be
considered by us. As such, valuation results are, to a significant extent, subject to the user’s judgment and
continuance of current trends beyond the date of the report. :

The valuation analysis contained herein represents the value only on the da;te that is specifically stated in this
report. This report is issued on the understanding that the Management has drawn our attention to all matters of
which it is aware; which may have an impact on the valuation and the report up to the date of signature. We have
no responsibility to update this report for events and circumstances occurring after the date of this report. Users .
of this report are ex‘pected to exercise their judgment in case of using this report or arriving at a valuation
subsequent to the Valuation Date.

It may be noted that the Management has been provided opportunity to review the draft report {without the
exchange ratio} for the current exercise as part of our standard practice to make sure that factual inaccuracies are
avoided in our report.

DISTRIBUTICN OF REPORT

The Report is confidential and has been prepared for purpose as given in the purpose-and intended use of repart
paragraph above. The same can be shared with requisite authorities as per the purpose and intended use of

. report paragraph above. We are not liable or answerable to any other party other than the management of the

Conmipanies.
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4. VALUATEON ANALYSIS

METHODOLOGY ADOPTED FOR VALUATION

To determine the value of Identified Business of Athena we have applied Discounted Cash Fllow {'DCF) method.
The asset based approach is not relevant in this instance as the business is not asset intensive and the market
based approach is not considered appropriate given the lack of similar comparable transactions in this space. The
DCF method is considered as it is theoretically sound approach and scientificaily acceptable method for
determination of the value of a business. This method of valuation is in principle close to the Earning Capacity
Method. Under this methodology, cash flows are projected for the useful life of the assets or foreseeable future
of the business and discounted back to the present using an appropriate discount rate that reflects the cost of
capital, risk and required return, '

Free Cash Fiow to equity is the cash flows generated by the company that are available to the shareholders of the
company. The discount rate is the risk adjusted rate of return which the shareholders expect from similar
investments having similar risks. The discount rate is weighted average cost of capital for the business. The cost of
equity is computed using the risk free rate of return, beta and risk premium prevalent in the market. The beta has

been computed using the beta of listed companies in similar industry and having similar operations. Adjustment

has been considered in the discount rate for the changes in risk due to difference in the comparative companies
considered and the risk of the business being valued.

We have reviewed the financial projections of the Identified Business of Athena and prepared the projected cash
flows from the identified business. While carrying out this engagement, we have relied upon the Financial
Projections of the identified Business made available to us by the management of the Companies. We did not
carry out any validation procedures or due diligence with respect to the information provided/ extracted or carry
out any verification of the assets or on the achievability of the assumptions underlying the Financial Projections,
other than satisfying ourselves to the extent possible that they are consistent with other information provided to
us in the course of this engagement. The values arrived above are adjusted as appropriate for cash and cash
equivalents and other assets/ liabilities not related to business or cash flows considered, assuming these are
being transferred as part of the Identified business.

Generally when a company is actively traded in the markets then the market approach is considered to be better
representation of the value of the company than any other method. In respect of valuation of FCL, we have
considered the market price of the company to be a better representation of the value of the company. For this

purpose we have considered volume weighted average price of the company as per SEBI Preferential Allotment

Regulation determined using the data of National Stock Exchange {'NSE’) as the traded volumes in NSE is highest
for FCL. The price considered is higher of following:

a) the average of weekly high and low of volume weighted average price of the related equity shares quoted on
NSE during the twenty six weeks preceding the report date.

a) the average of weekly high and low of volume weighted average price of the related equity shares quoted on
NSE during the two week preceding the report date.

The vaiue computed' has been taken upto twe decimal places with upward rounding off.

The values derived for FCL and Identified business of Athena are given as Annexure 1.

ADDRESS CONTACT
¢/o Singht & Co., Chartered Accountants, +91 {22) 6662 5537
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VALUATION CONCLUSION

The Share entitlement ratic is the number of shares of transferor company to be issued to the shareholders of
transferee company for number of shares held in the company. | have determined the value per share of
transferor company and transferee company and the share entitlement ratic has been computed. Based on
values derived above, the sh are entitlement ratio for the Proposed Demerger considering 6,38,06,33 Fully Paid-
up equity shares of INR 10 each is 13 Fully Faid Up Equity Shares of FCL of face value INR 6 each for holding 83
Fully Paid up Equity Shares of Athena of face value INR 10 each.

i

Nikhil Singhi

Chartered Accountant

ICAl Membershlp Number:

IBBI Registered \Ialuer Number: IBBl/RV/06/2019/11089
Date: 7 April 2019
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Annexure 1

The share entitlement ratio considering 6,38,06,336 Fully Paid-up equity shares of INR 10 each

Company ‘| Approach Weights Value per share Share entitlement
' ratio
sp . 0,
|dentifted Business . Income Approach 100% 7.05 13 of FCL for 83
of Athena . shares of Athena
FCL Market Approach 100% 45.02 hald
13 ADDRESS CONTACT
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Addendum to Valuation Report

This Addendum is issued at the request of Future Consumer Limited pursuant to the
requirements received from stock exchanges while seeking ‘No Objection’ for the Scheme of
Arrangement between Athena Life Sciences Private Limited (“Athena”) and Future
Consumer Limited (“Company”) and their respective Shareholders and Creditors for onward
submission to the Stock Exchanges. i.e National Stock Exchange of India Limited and BSE
Limited.

This ADDENDUM is in addition to the Valuation Report on Share Entitlement Ratio on
Proposed Demerger of Identified Business of Athena Life Sciences Private Limited (‘Athena’)
into Future Consumer Limited (‘FCL’) dated as 7t April, 2019 by Mr. Nikhil Singhi, Registered
Valuer, to include the following changes:

On Page 5:

The Heading RELEVANT DATES to be changed and be replaced to ‘RESPECTIVE DATES’. The
aforesaid para is substituted and be read as

“RESPECTIVE DATES

The Valuation date considered for the above exercise is 1t April,2019 and the Relevant date
in terms of the applicable provisions is 7t April, 2019.”

On Page 13: Annexure 1 as given is substituted by the following Annexure | :
Annexure 1

Computation of Fair Share Exchange Ratio

Annexure 2a

FCL Athena

Valuation Approach Value per Share Weight Value per Share Weight
Asset Approach NA NA NA NA
Income Approach NA NA 7.05 100%
Market Approach 45.02 100% NA NA

Relative Value per

Share 45.02 100% 7.05 100%

Exchange Ratio

(rounded off) 13 83
1 ADDRESS CONTACT

Private & Confidential

c/o Singhi & Co., Chartered Accountants,
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NA - Not Applicable/Not Adopted
Note

1. ForFCL-

e In respect of valuation of FCL, we have considered the market price of the
company to be a better representation of the value of the company.Generally
when a company is actively traded in the markets then the market approach is
considered to be better representation of the value of the company than any
other method.

2. For Athena—
e The asset based approach is not relevant in this instance as the business is not
asset intensive.
e The market based approach is not considered appropriate given the lack of
similar comparable transactions in this space.

EXCHANGE RATIO:

13 (Thirteen) equity share of FCL of INR 6 each fully paid up for every 83 (Eighty three)
equity shares of Athena of INR 10 each fully paid up.

i

Nikhil Singhi

Chartered Accountant

ICAI Membership Number:

IBBI Registered Valuer Number: IBBI/RV/06/2019/11089
Date: 4th October 2019

ADDRESS
c/o Singhi & Co., Chartered Accountants,
B2 402B Marathon Innova, Off Ganpatrao

2 CONTACT
+91 (22) 6662 5537

Private & Confidential nsinghi@singhico.com

Kadam Mark, Lower Parel, Mumbai 400013

47



Annexure 2b

NIKHIL SINGHI
Chartered Accountant and Registered Valuer

Valuation report on Share Entitlement Ratio on Proposed Demerger of |dentified
Business of Athena Life Sciences Private Limited into Future Consumer Limited

This Corrigendum is in addition to the Valuation Report on Share Entitlement Ratio on
Proposed Demerger of Identified Business of Athena Life Sciences Private Limited (Athena)
into Future Consumer Limited (FCL) dated as 7" April, 2019 and Addendum dated 3"
October, 2018 by Mr. Nikhil Singhi, Registered Valuer, to include the following clarification:

We have been informed about the query raised by the National Stock Exchange of India
Limited vide its letter dated 7" November, 2019. In this regard, we wish to inform you that as
the meeting of Board of Directors of FCL and Athena was held on Sunday, 7" April, 2019
and for calculation of price of equity shares of FCL as per Market Approach, we had
considered calculation from the week commencing from 1% April, 2019 (Monday) to 5" April,
2019 (Friday) and like-wise basis SEBI circular dated 23" March 2017. However, we have
been informed by FCL management, that the National Stock Exchange has requested to
modify the pricing taking into consideration week commencing from 26" March, 2019, ie.
from 29" March, 2019 (Friday) to 4" April, 2019 (Thursday) and so on as 26 weeks / 2
weeks. Change in the weeks as aforesaid would have effect of one day difference in the
price calculation.

Basis, this request, we have re-calculated the price of FCLin terms of the above requisition,
the details of which are given in the table hereinbelow. We would like to state that the
revised calculation would have a difference of INR 0.16/- per share of FCL. However, the
said change in the price, being insignificant, would not have any impact in the swap ratio of
FCL and Athena i.e 13:83 (rounded off).

We have re-produced the Table with the aforesaid calculation and evidencing that Swap
Ratio would not undergo any change.

Annexure 1

Computation of Fair Share Exchange Ratio

FCL Athena
Value per

Valuation Approach Value per Share Weight Share Weight
Asset Approach NA NA NA NA
Income Approach NA NA 7.05 100%
Market Approach 44 86 100% NA NA

Relative Value per

Share 44.86 100% 7.05 100%

Exchange Ratio

{rounded off) 13 83
NA - Not Applicable/Not Applied lla
1 ADDRESS CONTACT
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Note

1. For FCL -
= |n respect of valuation of FCL, we have considered the market price of the
company to be a better representation of the value of the company. Generally,
when a company is actively traded in the markets then the market approach is
considered to be better representation of the value of the company than any
other method.

2. For Athena -
« The asset based approach is not relevant in this instance as the business is not
asset intensive.
» The market based approach is not considered appropriate given the lack of
similar comparable transactions in this space and the shares of the company
being privately held.

EXCHANGE RATIO:

13 (Thirteen) equity share of FCL of INR 6 each fully paid up for every 83 (Eighty three)
equity shares of Athena of INR 10 each fully paid up.

Nikhil Singhi

Chartered Accountant

ICAI Membership Number:

IBBI Registered Valuer Number: IBBI/RV/06/2019/11089
Date: 22""November 2019

2 ADDRESS CONTACT
fo Singhi & Co., Chartered Accountants, B2 +91(22) 66625537

40238 Marathon Innova, O Ganpatrao nsinghi@singhica, com

Kadam Marg, Lower Parel, Mumbai 400013

49



D & A FINANCIAL SERVICES (P) LIMITED

i Merchant Banking & Corporate Advisory Services
7" April, 2019
The Board:of Directors

Future Consuener Limited

Knowledge House, Shyam Nagar,
Off. Jogeshwari Vikhroli Link Road,
Jogeshwari (Fast), Mumbai — 400 060

The Board of Directors

Athena Life Sciences Private Limited
A<, Vikas 31, Ramachandta Lane,
Malad (West) Mumbaj —400 064

Subject: Fairiess. Opiiioi on proposed share entitlemeit ratig for the piirpose: of. Propased
Schemé of Arrangement with respect 1o Demerger of “Tilentified Underiaking” of Atliena
Life Sciences Private Limited (“Tiqnsferoi Contpaitv’) iit fo. Futuve Coisimier Eimited

H,0. &R%O

Fax:+91 11.26219.

(“Transferez. Conipany) and their respective shareholders und creditors.
Dear Sir/s,

We, M/s. D & A Financial Services (P) Limited, SEBT registered Merchant Banker, having
SEBI Registration No. INMO00011484 have been, appointed by Future Consufner; Litnited to

- provide a fairness opinion on the valuation done by Mr Nikhil Singhi, Chatfered Accountants

and Registered Valuer as per Companies Act, 2013 and, having its office.at BZ2404 b, 4™
Floor, Marathon Innova, Off Ganpatrao Kadam Marg, Lower Parel {West), Miimbai, whao was
the appointed valuer for the captioned proposed scheme of arrangement of Athena Life
Sciences Private Limited and Future Consmnm Limited (Hereinafter Collectively referred to
as the “Companies™).

Since, the scheme of arrangement for the proposed demerger of identified nndertaking of
Athena Life Sciénces Private Limiited in to Future Consumer Limited (Hereinafter referred as
the “Scheme”) is common for both the, Companies, we deem it ‘imperative: to issue a
consolidated fairess opinion on the report for allotment of equity shares of Future Consumer
Limited, as consideration for proposed demerger of identified undertaking of Athena Life
Sciences Private Limited into Future Consumer Limited to botly the companies concerned.

The Scheme shall be subject to (i) Receipt of approval from the National Company Law
Tribunal (“NCLT") and (ii) other stafuitory approval(s} as may be required in this regard.

e and Purpeose of the Scheme of Arrangement:

¢ Mumbai e Admedabad CIN': U74899DL1981PTCO12709

< 13, Community Céntre, 2nd Floor, East of Kailash, New Delhi-110065, Phone:+91 11 26472557, 26419079
1, E-mailiinvestors@dnafinserv.cori, compl(ance@dnaf‘ inserv.com, contact@dnafinserv.com, Website:www. dnafnserv com

Annexure 3
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Tine Board of Athena and FCL believes that this Scheme of Arrangement would result
in benefit to members, creditors: and €mployees of Athena and FCL and the same will
not be detfimental to the public. Further, the propoesed Scheme of Arrangement would
intier alia achieve the following: '

2. #Combination of Identlﬁed Undertaking with FCL is a strategic fit 'md will Thelp
expand the business of FCL in the growing inarkets of India;

b.  Consolidation of the Identified Undertaking with FCL, thereby making available
the increased resources and assets for the Identified Undertaking, which should
help in pursuing a long term and aggressive growth path for its portfalio products;
and

c.  Enhance compelitive strength, dchieve ¢ost réduction, efficiencies and productivity
gditis by pooling the technologies and resources of FCIL. and the Identified
Undertaking, helping contribute to the fiture growth and targeting a wider base of
customers;

Ins wiew of the aforesaid, the Board of Athena and FCL have considered and proposed
this Schéme of Arrangerent uiider the provisions of Sectionts 230 to 232 of the
Ceompanies Act 2013 read w:th other applicable provisions of the Companies Act 2013
(s amended).

“Fdentified Undertaking” means the marketing, selling and distribution business of
the Transferor Company in relation to the portfolio products/brazids namely, D'Free,

Hzii for Sure, Traya and Safe & Sure, as a going concern-and frée of enciimbrances of
any nature {“Business?); together ‘with all undercakings, businesses, activities,

operations; assets and liabilifies of whatsoever nature and ‘kind, reliting to the
Business as on the Appointed Date, and includes without limitation:

(@ All assets and liabilities pettaining to the Business, including bt not limited
to intellectual praperty rights, inventories; stock-in-trade or stock-in-transit
and melchmldlsmg, including any other materials, supplies, fnished goods,
wrapping supply and packag,mg items, all eamest moneys dnd/or secuiity
deposits, cagh and bank balances, advances, receivables, togeiher with all
presentand future liabilities appertdining or relatable-thereto;

{ii)  Without prejudice to the piavisions 6f sub-élause (i), abo.ve, the Business
shall also include:all propeities and assets in connection with or pertaining or
relatable to the Business such as goodwill, customer details, licenses, permits,
quotas, régistrations, agreements, confracts, arrafigements, privilegés or all
other rights including tax deferrals, tax credits (including business tax losses
and unabsorbed tax depreciation), tex balandes and other benefits, incentives,
tenancy rights, if any, and all othér rights, title, interests, copyrights, patents,
trademarks, trade names, kiow-how and other industrial or intellectual
property rights of any nature whafsoever, consent, approvals or powers of
every kind nature and description whatsoever in connéction with or

iging or relatable the Business and all statutory licenses, permissions,

or consents to carry on the Business; w

2

2
2,
H.0. & Regd. OHiceN13 om: Cen!re, 2nd Floor, East of Kailash; New Delhi-110065, Phone: +91 11 26472557, 26419079
Fax+91 1126219491, E-mail] dnafinserv.com, compliance@dnaﬁnserv cam, contact@dnar inserv.com, Website: wwwdnar inserv.com
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(i) Al liabilities pertaining to the Business. For the purposes of this Scheme, it is

clarified that liabilities pertaining:to the Business include; ]

(a) The liabilities, which arise out of the activities or opetations of the Business
upto the Appoirted Date;

(b) Liabilities other than those referred to in sub-clauses (a) above and not
directly relatable to the Business, being the amounts of general or
muliipurpose borrowings of Athena shall be allocated to the: Business iri the
same proportion, which the value of the assets transferred under this Clause
bears to the total value of the assets of Athena iinmediately before giving
effect to this Scheme;

(iv)  All employess of Athena employed in and/or relatable to the Business;

(v)  All.deposits and balances with government, semi goverriiient, local and other

' authorities, and hodies, customers and other persons; earnest moneys.and / of

security deposits paid or received by Athena directly or indirectly iy
contiection with or relating tothe Business ¢n the Appointed Date;,

(vi) All necessary books, 1ecords, files;. papers, product-specifications, proceéss of
" manufacture, alorng with their llcenses tanuals, data, catalogues, quotations,

sales ‘and advemsmw materials, lists of present and former customers and
suppliers, customer credit mfounatlon, customrer. pricing inforniation, and
other fecords whether in pliysical or €lectronic form in connection with -or
relating to the Business of Athena

@y

1t is clarified. that any quesnon that may anse as'to whether a speclﬁed asset or
liabihty pertains or-does not pertain to the Buginess or whether it arises diit of the
getivities-or operations of the Business shall be decided by-mutual agreement between
the Board of Directors of Athena and FCL,.

1. Details of Companies involved in the Scheme of Arrangement.

LI Athena Life'Sciences Private Limited (“Transferor Company™ or “Athena™).

LX1  Athena is a private limited company incorporated under the Companies Act, 1956
(CIN: U24233MH2014PTC315619), baving its registered office presently at A- 1,

: Vikas 31 Ramchandia Lane Nlalad (W), Mumbai ~ 400064,

1.1.2  Athena is inter aliu engaged in the business of marketing, selling and distributing
fast moving consumer goods and servicés in the cosmecentical and Lealthcare
space, which includes but not limited to, Brands like D*Free, Hair for Sure, Safe and

Sure, Tust-for Moms, Iraya, Fab Fit etc,
1.2 Future Consutner Limited (“Transferee Company” or “FCL”)

121 FCL.is apublic limited company, incorporated under the Companies Act," 1956
(CIN L52602MH1996PL.C192090), having its registered office at Knowledge
ouse; Shyam Nagat, Off. Jogeshwari Vikhroli Link Road, Jogeshwari (East),

Baj — 400 060. , Q/

3. Copahi nlty Centre 2nd Floor, East of Kailash, New Delhi-110085, Phonie:+81 11 26472557 26419079
Ve ors@dnaﬁnservccm compliante@dnafinserv.com, contact@dnaf inserv.com, Websntewwwdnaf‘ inserv.com

. Mumbax + Admedabad. CIN :U74899DL1984PTC012709
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122 The Equity Shares of FCL are listed on BSE Limited and the National Stock
Exchange of Indiz Limited, .

12,3  FCL.is infer alia engaged in ihe business of branding, marketing, sotircing,
manufactusing and disteibution of fast maving consuimer Uoods food and
processed food products. FCL also has agri-sourcing operations in India. Its
product portfolio includes product categories, such as basic foods, ready to eat
ineals, siacks, ffozefi and processed food products, beverages, personal care
and home care under its own portfolio of brands. FCL has also comminced its
operations for marketing and distribution of -oats and oats-based cereal
products i India through its subsidiary company dt Sii Laitka. FCL, offers food
“and spice products under the brands, Fresh & Pure; Golden Harvest, Sangi's
Kitchen and Karmig; snacks and bevemces under Tasty Treat and: Sunkist
‘brands; homie care products wnder Clean Mate and Parathia blands, ind:
personal hygiene care products undey blands, such as Care Mate, Sach; Swiss
‘Tempelle and Think Skir, ~

" 2. Scope and Purpose of tlie Opinion

Pursnant to the requiremeiits of SEBI cuculax no. CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/21 dated 10" March,

2017 and subsequent amendmients theréto, a faimess opinion has lo be obtained from an
independenit riveichait banker -on the valuation of asscts/shares done by tlie valuer for the:

listed s well:as unlisted companies. The puipose of the opinion s to safegiiard the interést of

the shareholders and that of the companies. involved in the proposed scheme and this. opinion

shall be madé available: to the shareholders of the relevart Conipanies at. the: time of ‘their
meeting to pass the mecessary resolution for the proposed Schieme and to any othér 1elevant
authority. .

We have notimade, an appraisal or independent valuation of any of the assets ot liabilities of
any of the:Companies and have not conducted an-audit.or due diligence or reviewed! validated
the financial datd except what is provided for in the Valuation Report and financial data
provided to us by the Company or Valuer.

Disclaimer: This report is intended solely for the limited purpose mentioned ¢arlier and
should not be regarded as a recomniendation to the investors to invest in the Companiés
or deal in any form in the securities of the Company and should alse not be considered

" asa final equity value of the Company.

Qﬁr report does not, in any way, guarantee that the equity shares of Companies will
continue:to remain at'thie price on which the valuation of the shares takes place.

This letter is for the benefit of and confidential use by the Company. This reportis not

Jot meéting any other regulatory or disclogure requirements, save and except as
1 Heabove, under any Indian or foreign law, statute, act zuideline or similay

* Mumbai & Admedabad GIN : U74899DL1981PTC012709

&
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instruction. The Management or related parties-of Companies are proliibited from using
this report other than for jts sole limited purpose and not to make a copy of this report
available to any party. other than those required by statute for ¢arrying out the hmlted
purpose of this report.

In ne circumstances whatsoever, will D & A Financial Services (P) Limiited, its Directors

and employees accept amy responsibility of liability towards auy -third party for

cotisequences arisinig out of the use of this report.

3. Sources of the Information

We have received the following information froin the management of the Companies:

1. Propased Draft Scheme of Arrangement.
2. Valuation Report given by M Nikhil Smghl Chartered Accountants and Remstexed
Valugr as per Comparies Act; 2013, dated 7™ April, 2019.

4. Appreach-followed for valuation

The fair value of companies as mentioned in the valuation report has been awrived at by the
consideration of several commonly used and accepted niethods for détermining the fair value
of the equity shares of ‘a company, to the extent relevant -and applicablé and the valuer
consider following:method, ~while arriving at fair exchange ratie:

L. Discounted Cash Flow Method
2. Market Price Method

Eairness Opiiiion

Based on our examination of the: draft of the Proposed Scheme of Alrangement and the
" valuation Report dated 7t Apnl 2019 of Mr Nikhil Singhi, Chartered Accountants and

Registered Valuer as per Companies Act, 2013, we are of the opinion that the proposed ‘share
entitlement ratio-as recommended by the valuer in the ratio-of 13 (Thirteen) equity shares of
face value of Re 6/-each of Future: Consumer Limited against.83 (Eighty Thiee) equity share
of face value of Re. 10/~ each fully paid up held by the shareholders AthenaLife Seiences (P
Limited is fairin relation to the Proposed Scheme of Arrangement.

Tharking You,

Your's faithfully,

- ForD& A 'Pancial Services (P) Limited

5

" ®Mumbal » Admedabad GIN: U74899DL1981PTCE12709

~

54

. .0 Y jge: 13, Communrly Centre; Znd Flaar, East of Kallash, New Deihi-110065, Phone:+91 11 26472557, 26419079
- Fax+91 11 26 fonat —mait investors@dnafinserv.com, comphance@dnafnservcom contact@dnafinserv.com, Websne'wwwdnaf nserv.com




Annexure 3a

A |
DA

D & A FINANCIAL SERVICES (P) LIMITED

Merchant Banking & Corporate Advisory Services

Te,

The Board of Directors

Future Cansumer Limited

Knowledge House, Shyam Nagar,

Off. Jogeshwari Vikhroli Link Road,
Jogeshwari (East), Mumbai — 400 060

The Board of Directars

Athenz Life Sciences Private Limited

OFf. No. 406, Accord Building,

Phool Bagh, I B Patel Road, Opp. Rly 5tn,
Goregaon (East), Mumbai - 4000863.

Dear Sir/s,

We M/s D & A Financial Services (P} Ltd., SEBI registered Merchant Banker,
having Registration no. INMO00011484 had given our fairness opinion report
dated 7" April, 2019 to the companles on the valuation report dated 7" April,
2019 given by Mr. Nikhil Singhi, Chartered Accountants and Registered
Valuer as per Companies Act 2013 and, having its office at B2-404,b, 4™
Floor, Marathaon Innova, Off Ganpatrao Kadam Marg, Lower Pare| (West),
Mumbail, who was the appointed valuer for the captioned proposed scheme of
arrangement of Athena Life Sciences Private Limited and Future Consumer
Limited (Hereinafter Collectively referred to as the "Companies”).

We have been informed by the Future Consumer Limited (“FCL") about the
query raised by the Natlonal Stock Exchange of India Limited vide Its letter
@gﬁ%& November, 2019. In this regard, we wish to inform you that as the
{:, ‘F.g:‘égtﬁ of Board of Directors of Companies which was held gn Sunday, 7.,

\EY .

i #3111 26472557, 26419079

casl of Kailash, New Delhi-110065, Phona 418079

2 13, Community Cenlre, 2nd Floor, East et . 41807

raxﬁ:ii?zaﬁzﬁeaﬂ;cg:ﬁh&vumlﬁumm compliance@dnalinsen.com, macl@mw S0 bisite ww. LCon
. * Mumbai » Admedabad CIN : UT4893DL1981PTCO12T!
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D & A FINANCIAL SERVICES (P) LIMITED

Merchant Banking & Corporate Advisory Services

April, 2018, and for calculation of price of equity shares of FCL as per Market
approach and had considered calculation from the week commencing from 1*
April, 2019 (Monday) to 5% April, 2019 (Friday) and like-wise basis SEBI
circular dated 23™ March 2017,

However, we have been informed by FCL management, that the National
Stock Exchange of India Limited ("NSE") has requested to modify the pricing
taking into consideration week commencing from 29" March, 2019. i.e. from
59" March, 2019 (Friday) to 4™ April, 2019 (Thursday) and so on as 26
weeks / 2 weeks. Change in the weeks as aforesald would have effect of one
day difference in the price calculation.

Basis, this request, the companies have requested valuer to recalculate the
price of FCL in terms of the observation of National Stock Exchange of India
Limited and accordingly the valuer has given its report dated 22™ November,
2019,

1. Scope and Purpose of the Opinion

Pursuant to the reguirements of SEBI circular no. CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/21
dated 10" March, 2017 and subsequent amendments thereto, a faimess
opinion has to be cbtained from an independent merchant banker on the
valuation of assets/shares done by the valuer for the listed as well as
unlisted companies. The purpese of the opinion is to safeguard the Interest of
the shareholders and that of the companies invalved in the proposed scheme
and this opinion shall be made available to the shareholders of the relevant
Companies at the time of their meeting to pass the necessary resolution for
the proposed Scheme and to any other relevant authority.

We have not made an appraisal or independent valuation of any of the assets
or liabilities of any of the Companies and have not conducted an audit or due
diligence or reviewed/ validated the financial data except what Is provided for

.in the Valuation Report and financial data provided to us by the Company or
Jvaluer.
2

H.D. & Regd. Office: 13, Community Cenlre, 2nd Floor, East of Kailash, Naw Delhl-110085, Phone:+31 11 26472557, 26419072
Eax-+91 11 26218451, E-makinvestorsi@dnafinseny.com, compliance@dnafinserv.com, contact@dnafinsens.com, Website:www.dnafingen com

« Mumbai * Admedabad CIN : UT4399DL1981PTCO12709
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D & A FINANCIAL SERVICES (P) LIMITED

Merchant Banking & Corporate Advisory Services

2. Sources of the Information

We have received the following information from the management of the
Companies:
1. Addendum to Valuation Report given by Mr. Nikhil Singhi, Chartered
Accountants and Registered Valuer as per Companies Act, 2013, dated
22™ November, 2019,

3. Valuation Report

The valuer has re-calculated the price of FCL in view of observations of NSE
as described above, the details of which are given in the table herein below.
The revised calculation would have a difference of INR 0.16/- per share of
value of Future Consumer Limited. However, the said change in the price,
being insignificant, would not have any impact in the swap ratio of Transferor
and Transferee companies i.e. 13:83 (rounded off).

Computation of Fair Share Exchange Ratio

Athena Life Sciences (P)
Future Consumer Limited Ltd.
Valuation Value per Value per
Approach Share Weight Share Weight
Asset Approach M MA MA MA
Income Approach M, MA 7.05 1005
Market Approach 44.86 100% A MA
Relative Value per 44.86 100% 7.05 100%
Share
Exchange Ratio
(rounded off) 13 83

MNA - Not Applicable/Not Adopted

H.Q. & Regd. Office: 13, Community Centre, 2nd Fioor, East of Kailash, New Delhi-110065, Phone:+31 11 26472557, 28419079
Fax:+21 11 26219491, E-mailinvesiorsi@dnafinsery.com, compliance@dnafinserv.com, contactBdnalinserv.com, Websile-www.dnalinsery.con

= Mumbai = Admedabad CIN : UT4899DL1981PTCO12709
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D & A FINANCIAL SERVICES (P) LIMITED

Merchant Banking & Corporate Advisory Services

inion:
We in the capacity of SEEBI registered Merchant Banker do hereby certify
based on our examination of the Valuation Report dated 22™ November,
2019 of Mr. Nikhil Singhi, Chartered Accountants and Registered Valuer as
per Companies Act, 2013, we are of the opinion that the proposed share
entitlement ratio as recommended by the valuer in the ratio of 13 (Thirteen)
equity shares of face value of Re 6/- each of Future Consumer Limited
against 83 (Eighty Three) equity share of face value of Re. 10/- each fully
paid up held by the shareholders Athena Life Sciences (P) Limited is fair in
relation to the Proposed Scheme of Arrangement with respect to Demerger of
“Identified Undertaking” of Athena Life Sciences Private Limited (“Transferor
Company”) in to Future Consumer Limited ("Transferee Company).

Thanking You
For D & A Financia (P) Limited

AN S J-{’ \,“' "

(San fawat}{ ~ ,..f "/
Vi Pres:dent!Au\@n@d Signatory

SEBI Registration No. INMOO0011484

Date: 25" November, 2019
Place: Mumbai

4

H.O. & Regd. Office: 13, Community Centre, 2nd Floor, East of Kallash, New Delhl-110065, Phone:+81 11 26472557, 26419079
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DCS/AMAL/SVIR37/1660/2019-20 January 24, 2020

The Company Secretary,

Future Consumer Ltd

Knowledge House, Shyam Nagar,

Off Jogeshwari Vikhroli Link Road,

Jogeshwari (E), Mumbai, Maharashtra, 400060

Sir,

Sub: Observation letter regarding the Scheme of Arrangement between Athena Lifesciences Private
Limited and Future Consumer Limited and their respective shareholders and creditors.

We are in receipt of Draft Scheme of Arrangement by Future Consumer Litd filed as required under
SEBI Circular No. CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/21 dated March 10, 2017; SEBI vide its letter dated January
24, 2020 has inter alia given the following comment(s) on the draft scheme of arrangement:

» “Company shall ensure that the financials of the companies involved in the Scheme is
updated and are not more than 6 months old.”

+  “Company shall ensure that additional information and undertakings, if any, submitted
by the Company, after filing the Scheme with the Stock Exchange, and from the date of
receipt of this letter is displayed on the websites of the listed company and the stock
exchanges.”

«  “Company shall duly comply with various provisions of the Circular.”

+ “Company is advised that the observations of SEBIStock Exchanges shall be
incorporated in the petition to be filed before National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT)
and the company is obliged to bring the observations to the notice of NCLT."

+  “It is to be noted that the petitions are filed by the company before NCLT after
processing and communication of comments/observations on draft scheme by
SEBlistock exchange. Hence, the company is not required to send notice for
representation as mandated under section 230(5) of Companies Act, 2013 to SEBI
again for its comments [ observations / representations.”

Accordingly, based on aforesaid comment offered by SEBI, the company is hereby advised:

+ To provide additional information, if any, (as stated above) along with various documents to
the Exchange for further dissemination on Exchange website.

+  To ensure that additional information, if any, (as stated aforesaid) along with various
documents are disseminated on their (company) website.

+  To duly comply with various provisions of the circulars.

In light of the above, we hereby advise that we have no adverse observations with limited reference to
those matters having a bearing on listing/de-listing/continuous listing requirements within the
provisions of Listing Agreement, so as to enable the company to file the scheme with Hon'ble NCLT.

Further, where applicable in the explanatory statement of the notice to be sent by the company to the
shareholders, while seeking approval of the scheme, it shall disclose information about unlisted
companies involved in the format prescribed for abridged prospectus as specified in the circular dated
March 10, 2017.

Kindly note that as required under Regulation 37(3) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the validity of this Observation Letter shall be six months from the
date of this Letter, within which the scheme shall be submitted to the NCLT.

BSE Limited (Formerly Bombay Stock Exchange Ltd)
Registered Office : 25" Floor , P J Tower, Dalal Street, Mumbai-400 0g
E X T: +81 22 2272 1233/34 E: corp.comm@bseindiacom wwwhbee

Corporate Identity %Jgrgb%{ o%??n??é’WEﬁos

SENS

EXPERIENCE THE NEW
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EXPERIENCE THE NEW
The Exchange reserves its right to withdraw its ‘No adverse observation’ at any stage if the
information submitted to the Exchange is found to be incomplete / incorrect / misleading / false or for

any contravention of Rules, Bye-laws and Regulations of the Exchange, Listing Agreement,
Guidelines/Regulations issued by statutory authorities.

Please note that the aforesaid observations does not preclude the Company from complying with any
other requirements.

Further, it may be noted that with reference to Section 230 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (Act), read
with Rule 8 of Companies {Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules 2016 (Company
Rules) and Section 66 of the Act read with Rule 3 of the Company Rules wherein pursuant to an
Order passed by the Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal, a Notice of the proposed scheme of
compromise or arrangement filed under sections 230-232 or Section 66 of the Companies Act 2013
as the case may be is required to be served upon the Exchange seeking representations or

objections if any.

In this regard, with a view to have a betier transparency in processing the aforesaid notices served
upon the Exchange, the Exchange has already introduced an online system of serving such
Notice along with the relevant documents of the proposed schemes through the BSE Listing
Centre.

Any service of notice under Section 230 (5) or Section 66 of the Companies Act 2013 seeking
Exchange’s representations or objections if any, would be accepted and processed through the
Listing Centre only and no physical filings would be accepted. You may please refer to circular
dated February 26, 2019 issued to the company.

Yours faithfully,

IS Qf g
ar Pujari ) bah aze

Senior Manager Manager

S&P&3SE

SENSEX




QO NSE 25

National Stock Exchange Of India Limited
Ref: NSE/LIST/21937 11 January 24, 2020

The Company Secretary

Future Consumer Limited
Knowledge House, Shyam Nagar,
Off Jogeshwari Vikroli Link Road,
Jogeshwari (East), Mumbai-400060

Kind Attn.: Mr. Manoj Gagvani
Dear Sir,

Sub: Observation Letter for Draft Scheme of Arrangement between Athena Life Sciences Private
Limited and Future Consumer Limited and their respective shareholders and creditors

We are in receipt Draft Scheme of Arrangement between Athena Life Sciences Private Limited (Transferor
Company) and Future Consumer Limited (Transferee Company) and their respective shareholders and
creditors vide application dated September 20, 2019.

Based on our letter reference no Ref: NSE/LIST/21937 submitted to SEBI and pursuant to SEBI Circular
No. CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/21 dated March 10, 2017 (‘Circular’), SEBI vide letter dated January 24, 2020,
has given following comments:

a. The Company shall duly comply with various provisions of the Circular.

b.  The Company shall ensure that the financials of the companies involved in the Scheme is updated and
are not more than 6 months old.

c¢. The Company shall ensure that additional information and undertakings, if any, submitted by the
Company, dfter filing the Scheme with the Stock Exchange, and from the date of the receipt of this
letter is displayed on the website of the listed company.

d. The Company is advised that the observations of SEBI/Stock Exchanges shall be incorporated in the
petition to be filed before National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT) and the company is obliged to
bring the observations to the notice of NCLT.

e. It is to be noted that the petitions are filed by the company before NCLT after processing and
communication of comments/observations on draft scheme by SEBI/ stock exchange. Hence, the
company is not required to send notice for representation as mandated under section 230(5) of
Companies Act, 2013 to SEBI again for its comments/observations/ representations.

It is to be noted that the petitions are filed by the company before NCLT after processing and
communication of comments/observations on draft scheme by SEBI/ stock exchange. Hence, the company
is not required to send notice for representation as mandated under section 230(5) of Companies Act, 2013
to National Stock Exchange of India Limited again for its comments/observations/ representations.

Further, where applicable in the explanatory statement of the notice to be sent by the company to the
shareholders, while seeking approval of the Scheme, it shall disclose information about unlisted companies
involved in the format prescribed for abridged prospectus as specifietf'ifictheceir€ldy daeed March 10, 2017.

Signer: Harshad P Dharod
Date: Fri, Jan 24, 2020 18:42:53 IST

L‘ N EE Location: NSE

Mationet Stock Exalaage of Indha Limited | Esohan g Plaz, C-1, Bleck G, Bandea Kurls Commplas, Bandra (B), Mumlsi - 200 0%]
lesdim + 51 22 2659100 | wanneeindia.com | CIN UeT120MHLY IFLCDEN T8
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Based on the draft scheme and other documents submitted by the Company, including undertaking given
in terms of Regulation 11 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, we conveyed our “No-objection” in terms
of Regulation 94 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, so as to enable the Company to file the draft scheme
with NCLT.

However, the Exchange reserves its rights to raise objections at any stage if the information submitted to
the Exchange is found to be incomplete/ incorrect/ misleading/ false or for any contravention of Rules, Bye-
laws and Regulations of the Exchange, Listing Regulations, Guidelines / Regulations issued by statutory
authorities.

The validity of this “Observation Letter” shall be six months from January 24, 2020, within which the
scheme shall be submitted to NCLT.

Yours faithfully,
For National Stock Exchange of India Limited
Harshad Dharod

Manager

P.S. Checklist for all the Further Issues is available on website of the exchange at the following URL
http://www.nseindia.com/corporates/content/further _issues.htm

This Document is Digitally Signed

Signer: Harshad P Dharod
Date: Fri, Jan 24, 2020 18:42:53 IST

‘3 NSE Location: NSE
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Annexure 5

FUTURE CONSUMER LIMITED (Formerly Future Consumer Enterprise Limited)

FUTURE )

E UH su M E R :: Corporate Office : 247 Park, Tower “C", Bth Fioor, LBS Marg, Vikhroli (W), Mumbai - 400 083

£ (T) +91 22 6119 0000 | www.futureconsumer.in

Regd. Office : Knowledge House, Shyam Magar, Off JWLR, Jogeshwari (East), Mumbai - 400 060
] [Th +01 22 6544 2200 | CIN: L52602MH1S96PLC192090

160 October, 2019

Ta,

The Secretary

Department of Corporate Services
BSE Limited

P. J. Towers, Dalal Street,
Mumbai =400 001.

Serip Code: 533400

Dear Sir,

Sub: Application under Regulation 37 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements), Regulations, 2015 for the proposed Scheme of Arrangement between
Athena Life Sciences Private Limited and Future Consumer Limited and their Respective
Shareholders and Creditors.

This is with reference to the captioned application filed under NEAPS on 20™ September, 2019
and in terms of Para 6(b) of SEBI Circular No. CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/21 dated 10" March,
2017, we hereby submit the Complaints Report relating to the said Scheme of Arrangement as
Annexure | attached to this letter.

The copy of the said report is also available on the website of the Company at

WIWW, CONSUMET.in.

Kindly take the aforesaid on your records and acknowledge receipt of the same.

Y ours truly,
For Future Consumer Limited

;y:ampan} Setretary & Head — Legal

Encl: As above
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F U]'U R E FUTURE CONSUMER LIMITED (Formarly Future Consumer Enterprise Limited)

CGH 3 U M E R & Corporate Dffice : 247 Park, Tower “C”, 8th Floor, LBS Marg, Vikhrali (W), Mumbai - 400 083
d?-' (T} +91 22 6119 0000 | www.futureconsumer.in

_# Regd. Dffice : Knowledge House, Shyam Nagar, Off JVLR, Jogeshwari (East), Mumbai - 400 D60

- gy A (T) +91 22 6644 2200 | CIN: LS2602MH19936PLET32090

Annexure [

Period of Complaints Report: 20™ September, 2019 upto 10" October, 2019

Part A
Sr. Particulars Number
No.
l. | Mumber of complainis received directly Mil
2. | Number of complaints forwarded by Stock Exchange Mil
3. | Total Mumber of complaints/comments received (1+2) Mil
4. | Number of complaints resolved Mil
5. | Number of complaints pending il
Part B
Sr. Name of complainant Date of Status (Resolved/Pending)
No. complaint
L Not Applicable Mot Applicable Not Applicable

For Future Consumer Limited

ry & Head - Legal
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Annexure 5a

FUTURE FUTURE CONSUMER LIMITED (Formerty Future Consume Enterprise Limitad)

c D" s UMER ..' Corparate Dffice : 247 Park, Tower “C", 8th Floor, LBS Marg, Vikhroli (W), Mumbai - 400 083
& (T)+9122 6119 0000 | www.futureconsume.in
x . f“ Regd. Office : Knowledge House, Shyam Nagar, O JVLR, Jegeshwari (East), Mumbai - 400 060
“li, Mt (T) +91 22 G644 2200 | CIN: L52602MH1996PLC 192090

13% December, 2019

Ta,

The Secretary

Department of Corporate Services
BSE Limited

P. J. Towers, Dalal Street,
Mumbai — 400 001.

Secrip Code: 533400

Dear Sir,

Sub: Application under Regulation 37 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements), Regulations, 2015 for the proposed Scheme of Arrangement between
Athena Life Sciences Private Limited and Future Consumer Limited and their Respective
Shareholders and Creditors.

This is with reference to the captioned application filed under NEAPS on 20" September, 2019
and in terms of Para 6(b) of SEBI Circular No. CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/21 dated 10™ March,
2017, in additional to our earlier Compliant Report dated 16™ October, 2019 duly submitted by
us, we hereby further submit the Complaint Report in respect of the said Scheme of
Arrangement as Annexure | attached to this letter.

The copy of the said report is also available on the website of the Company at
www. futureconsumer.in.

Kindly take the aforesaid on your records and acknowledge receipt of the same.

Yours truly,
For Future Consumer Limited

Encl: As above
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FUTURE

FUTURE CONSUMER LIMITED (Formerly Future Consumer Enterprise Limited)
c UHSU M E R Gorporate Office : 247 Park, Tower “C", Bth Floor, LES Marg, Vikhroli (W}, Mumbai - 400 083
& (T) +91 22 6119 0000 | www.futureconsumerin
ra Regd. Office : Knowledge House, Shyam Nagar, OH JYLR, Jogeshwari (East), Mumnbai - 400 060
: (T) +91 22 6644 2200 | CIN: L52602MH1996PLC192090

Natmn

Annexure I

Period of Complaints Report: 19" November, 2019 upto 9 December, 2019

Part A
Sr. Particulars Number
No.
[. | Number of complaints received directly Nil
2. | Number of complaints forwarded by Stock Exchange Nil
3. | Total Number of complaints/comments received (1+2) Nil
4. | Number of camplaints resolved Nil
3. | Number of complaints pending Mil
PartB
[ Sr. Name of complainant Date of Status (Resolved/Pending)
No. complaint
L. Not Applicable Not Applicable Mot Applicable

For Future Consumer Limited

L.

Manoj Gay
Company Secretagy & Head - Legal
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FUTURE FUTURE CONSUMER LIMITED (Formerly Future Consumer Enterprise Limited

CU NSU MER ;' Corporate Office : 247 Park, Tower “C", Bth Floor, LES Marg, Vikhroli (W), Mumbai - 400 083
& (T)+9122 51190000 | www futureconsumer.in
" Regd. Office : Knowledge Houss, Shyam Nagar, Off JVLR, Jogeshwari (East), Mumbai - 400 060
o (T) +01 22 6644 2200 | CIN: LS2602MH1936PLEC1 92000

16™ October, 2019

To,
Asst. Vice President -Listing
Mational Stock Exchange of India Limited
Exchange Plaza,
Bandra Kurla Complex,
Bandra (East), Mumbai-400 051
ri : FCONSUMER

Dear Sir,

Sub: Application under Regulation 37 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements), Regulations, 2015 for the proposed Scheme of Arrangement between
Athena Life Sciences Private Limited and Future Consumer Limited and their Respective
Shareholders and Creditors.

This is with reférence to the captioned application filed under NEAPS on 20" September, 2019
and in terms of Para 6(b) of SEBI Circular No. CFIVDIL3/CIR/2017/21 dated 10® March,
2017, we hereby submit the Complaints Report relating to the said Scheme of Arrangement as
Annexure [ attached to this letter.

The copy of the said report is also available on the website of the Company at
www. futureconsumer.in.

Kindly take the aforesaid on your records and acknowledge receipt of the same,

Yours truly,
For Future Consumer Limited

Manaj Ga

g’j./('.‘ompan:.' Sec

Encl: As above

tary & Head — Legal
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FUTURE FUTURE CONSUMER LIMITED Farmerly Future Consumer Enterprise Limited)
CUHSU M E R ;-" Corporate Office : 247 Park, Tower “C”, Bth Floor, LBS Marg, Vikhroli (W), Mumbsai - 400 083
£ (T) 491 22 6119 0000 | www futureconsumer.in
;*‘u Regd. Office : Knowdedge House, Shyam Nagar, Off JYLR, Jogeshwari (East), Mumbai - 400 080
S (T) 491 22 6544 2200 | CIN: L52602MH1996PLC192090

".'_\ Ly
¥ Fag) Mgt™

Annexure [

Period of Complaints Report: 20" September, 2019 upto 10* October, 2019

Part A
Sr. Particulars | Number
Na.
I. | Number of complaints received directly | Nil
. |
2. | Number of complaints forwarded by Stock Exchange Nil
3. | Total Number of complaints/comments received (1+2) Nil
i' 4. | Number of complaints resolved Nil
5. | Number of complaints pending Mil
Part B
Sr. Name of complainant Date of Status {Resolved/Pending) |
No. complaint |
L. Not Applicable Not Applicable Mot Applicable

For Future Consumer Limited

\

Manoj Gagy
@Cumpan}' Secretaxy & Head - Legal
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F“Tu RE FUTURE CONSUMER LIMITED (Formerly Future Consumer Enterprise Limited)
[:UNSU HER £ Corporate Office : 247 Park, Tower “C", Bth Floor, LBS Marg, Vikhroli (W), Mumbai - 400 083

£ (T)+31226119 0000 | wwvw.lutureconsumer.in

4 Regd. Office : Knowledge House, Shyam Nagar, Off JVLR, Jogeshwari (East), Mumbai - 400 060
B o “:“L..P (T} +91 22 G644 2200 | CIN: LE2602MH1996PLC192090

2™ January, 2020

To,

Asst. Vice President -Listing

MNational Stock Exchange of India Limited
Exchange Plaza,

Bandra Kurla Complex,

Bandra (East), Mumbai-400 051

Serip Code: FCONSUMER

Dear Sir,

Sub: Application under Regulation 37 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements), Regulations, 2015 for the proposed Scheme of Arrangement between
Athena Life Sciences Private Limited and Future Consumer Limited and their Respective
Shareholders and Creditors.

This is with reference to the captioned application filed under NEAPS on 20° September, 2019
and in terms of Para 6(b) of SEBI Circular No. CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/21 dated 10" March,
2017, in additional to our earlier Compliant Report dated 16™ October, 2019 duly submitted by
us, we hereby submit the Complaints Report relating to the said Scheme of Arrangement as
Annexure | attached to this letter.

The copy of the said report is also awvailable on the website of the Company at
www. filureconsumer.in.

Kindly take the aforesaid on your records and acknowledge receipt of the same.
Yours truly,
For Future Consumer Limited

LY

Manoj Ga i
Company Secretary & Head — Legal

Encl: As above
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FUTURE
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FUTURE CONSUMER LIMITED (Formarly Future Consumer Enterprise Limitad)

[ Corporate Diice : 247 Park, Tower “C", 8th Floor, LBS Marg, Vikhroli (W), Mumbai - 400 083
j (T) 491 22 6119 DOOD | www.lulireconsumerin

3

# Regd. Office : Knowledge House, Shyam Nagar, O JVLR, Jogestwari (East), Mumbai - 400 D60
Serireen (T} +81 22 6644 2200 | CIN: L52602MH1996PLC 192090

Annexure [

Period of Complaints Report: 9" December, 2019 upto 30™ December, 2019

Part A
Sr. Particulars Number
No.
1. | Number of complaints received directly Mil
2. | Number of complaints forwarded by Stock Exchange Mil
3. | Total Number of complaints/comments received (1+2) il
4. | Number of complaints resolved Nil
3, | Number of complaints pending il
Part B
Sr. Name of complainant Date of Status (Resolved/Pending)
No. complaint
I Mot Applicable Mot Applicable Mot Applicable

For Future Consumer Limited
=%

Manoj Gagvan
Company Secretary & Head - Legal




Annexure 6

r G Galactico

Corporate Services Limited
L _J A SEBI Registered Category | Merchant Banker

June 24, 2020
Ref. No: MB/2020-21/A01

The Board of Directors,

Athena Lifesciences Private Limited,

Off. No. 406, Accord Building, Phool Bagh,

| B Patel Road, Opp. Rly $tn, Goregaon (East),
Mumbai (MH] - 400063 IN

Subject: Certificate on adequacy and accuracy of disclosure of information pertaining to Athena
Lifesciences Private Limited, in respect of Scheme of Arrangement between Athena Lifesciences Private
Limited {"Transferor Company” or “ALPL"} with Future Consumer Limited (“Transferee Company® or
“FCL") and their respective shareholders and creditors (“Scheme”] under the provisions of Sections 230 to
232 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with other applicable provisionz of the Companies Act, 2013 and the
rules made there under.

Dear Sir,
We, Galactico Corporate Services Limited ("GCSL"), A SEBI Registered Category | Merchant Banker refer to
our engagement letter dated June 22, 2020 for the purpose of Certifying the adequacy and accuracy of
disclosure of information pertaining to ALPL In relation to proposed demerger of marketing, selling and
distribution business of the Athena in relation to the portfolio products/brands namely, D'Free, Hair for
Sure, Iraya and Safe & Sure “ldentified Undertaking” of ALPL inte FCL and their respective shareholders
and creditors the provisions of Sections 230 to 232 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made there under.

Scope and purpose of the Certificate

SEBI vide its Circular no. CFD/DILI/CIRS2017/21 dated March 10, 2017 ("SEBI Circular”) prescribed
requirements to be fulfiled by the listed entities when they propese a Scheme of Arrangement. The SEBI
Circular, amongst other things, provide that in the event a listed entity enters Into a Scheme of
Arrangements with an unlisted entity, the listed entity shall disdose to its shareholders applicable
information pertaining to the unlisted entity in the format specified for Abridged Prospectus as provided
in Part E of Schedule Vi of Securities and Exchange Board of India (lssue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2018 (“ICDR Regulations”), in the explanatory statement or notice or proposal
accompanying resolution to be passed, sent to the shareholders while seeking approval of the Scheme.
SEBI Circular further prescribes that the accuracy and adequacy of such disclosures shall be certified by a
SEBI Registered Merchant Banker after following the due diligence process,

Certification

Based on the information, undertaking, certificates, confirmations and documents provided to us by the
ALPL, we hereby confirm that the information contained in the Abridged Prospectus is the accurate and
adequate, in terms Paragraph 3(a) of Annexure | of the SEBI Circular.

\ Registered Office : 2nd Floor, Shree Guruden Tower, Above Shispur Co-op Bank Lid, Canada Comer, Maghik (MH) - 422005,
Phone ; +91-253-2319714 | Emall; infof@galaciicocorp.com | Websile : www.galaclicocorp. com
CIN No. : UT41108H2015PTC2655TE | SEBI Registration No. : INMD00012519
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Disclaimer and Limitation:
= This certificate is a specific purpose certificate issued in terms of and in compliance with SEBI
circutar and hence it should not be used for any other purpose or transaction whatsoever or to
meet the requirement of any other laws, rules, regulations and statutes.

This certificate contains the certification on adequacy and accuracy of disclosure of information
pertaining to the unlisted entity viz., ALPL and is not an opinion on the Scheme of Arrangement or
its success.

- This certificate is issued on the basis of examination of information and documents provided by
ALPL and information which is available in the public domain and wherever required, the
appraopriate representation or undertakings from ALPL has also been obtained.

= In mo event, will GCSL, its Directors and Employees be liable to any party for any losses whether
financial or otherwise or expenses arising directly or indirectly out of the use of or reliance on the
information set out here in this report.

= Qur opinions is not nor should it be constructed as our opining or certifying the compliance of the
proposed Scheme of Arrangement with the provision of any law including companies, taxation,
capital market, related laws or as regards any legal implications or issues arising thereon, in their
respective jurisdiction except for the purpose expressly mentioned herein.

- The above confirmation is based on the integrity of the information furnished and explanation &
representations provided to us by the management of the company and ALPL assuming the same
i= complete and accurate in all material aspects on an as is basis and have not carried out an audit
or independent verification of such information. Qur scope of work does not constitute an audit
of financial information and accordingly we are unable to and do not express an opinion on the
fairness of any such financials information referred to in the Abridged Prospectus.

- We understand that the management of ALPL during our discussion with them would have drawn
our attention to all such information and matters, which may have impact on our certificate.

- The fee for our services is not contingent upon the result of the proposed arrangement.

- Dur 5cope of Work did not include carrying out a market survey / financial feasibility for the
Business of ALPL.

- This certificate i based on the information as at June 24, 2020, We do not assume any obligation
to update, revise or reaffirm this certificate because of events or transactions occurring
subsequent to the date of this certificate.

We express no opinion whatseever and make no recommendation at all as to the Company’s
underlying decision to effect the scheme or as to how the holders of equity share of both the
companies should vote at their respective meetings held in connection with the Scheme.

Reqizterad Office : 2nd Floor, Shree Gurudeo Tower, Above Sherpur Co-op Bank Lid, Cansda Comer, Mashi (MH) - 422005,
Phone : #31-253-2315714 | Email : info@galaciicocorp.oom | Website @ www.galacticocorp.com
CIN No. : UT4110MH2015PTC2655TE | SEBI Registration No. : INMODDD12519
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- Woe also express no opinion, and accordingly, accept no responsibility for or as to the price at
which the equity shares of company will trade following the Scheme for or as to financial
performance of the Company or ALPL following the consumption of the Scheme.

- We express no opinion whatsoever and make no recommendations at all (and accordingly take no
responsibility) as to whether shareholders\investors should buy, sell or hold any stake in the
Company or any of its related parties (halding company/subsidiaries fassociates etc.).

Trust the above meets your requirements.
Please feel free to contact us in case you require any additional information or clarifications.

For Galactico Corporate Services Limited

Vishal Sancheti |
Vice President = Investment Banking R

Place : Nashik
Date : June 24, 2020

Registered Office - 2nd Floor, Shree Gurudeo Tower, Abova Shirpur Co-op Bank Lid, Cenada Comer, Nashik (MH) - 422005,
Phone : +#91-253-2319714 | Email ; infof@galacicocorp.oom | Website | www.galacticocorm.com
CiN Ne. : UT411OMHZM5PTC2655TE | SEBI Registration No. : INMODD012519

73



Annexure 6a

ABRIDGED PROSPECTUS

This is an abridged prospectus containing salient features/information pertaining to Athena Lifesciences
Private Limited, in respect of Scheme of Arrangement between Athena Lifesciences Private Limited
(“Transferor Company” or “ALPL”) with Future Consumer Limited (“Transferee Company”or
“FCL”) and their respective shareholders and creditors (“Scheme”).

This is an abridged prospectus prepared pursuant to Securities and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”)
Circular bearing no. CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/21 dated March 10, 2017 (“SEBI Circular”’) and Regulation 37
of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), 2015 read with the said Circular and
contains the applicable information in format specified for abridged prospectus as provided in Part E of
Schedule VI of SEBI (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018. You are
encouraged to read the Scheme and other details available on the website of the Transferee Company.

Background of the Scheme of Arrangement

Future Consumer Limited (Transferee/Resulting Company) is Listed Company, whose Equity Shares are
listed onBSE Limited (BSE) and National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE). Athena Lifesciences
Private Limited(Transferor/Demerged Company) is an unlisted Company.

The Scheme of Arrangement is prepared under the provisions of Sections 230 to 232 of the Companies
Act, 2013 read with other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, for the demerger of
Identified Undertaking (as defined in the Scheme) of Athena Life Sciences Private Limited (Transferor
C)into Future Consumer Limited (Transferee Company).

Pursuant to the Scheme, the Transferee Company shall issue Equity Shares to the equity shareholders of
the unlisted Transferor Company. The EquityShares to be issued pursuant to the Scheme shall get listed at
BSE & NSE.There shall be no shares to beissued to any of the shareholder of Future Consumer Limited
(including public category shareholders) as per theaforesaid Scheme of Arrangement.

It is clarified that the Remaining Business and all the assets, liabilities and obligations of the Transferor
Company, other than those transferred pursuant to this Scheme with the Identified Undertaking, shall
continue to belong to and be managed by the Transferor Company. And the Transferor Company shall
continue to be in existence.

THIS ABRIDGED PROSPECTUS FORMING PART OF THE NOTICE CONSISTS OF
TWELVEPAGES. PLEASE ENSURE THAT YOU HAVE RECEIVED ALL THE PAGES.

You may download the Abridged Prospectus along with the Scheme, approved by the Board of Directors
of the Transferor Company and the TransfereeCompany along with all other relevant documents from the
website of the stock exchanges at www.nseindia.com and www.bseindia.com, where the shares of the
TransfereeCompany are listed or from the website of the TransfereeCompany at www.futureconsumer.in
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ATHENA LIFESCIENCES PRIVATE LIMITED
Registered and Corporate Office: Off.No. 406, Accord Building, Phool Bagh, I B Patel Road, Opp. Rly
Stn, Goregaon (East) Mumbai - 400063
Contact Person: AmarendraVashishtbhai Tiwari
Telephone: +91-96649 57267Email:accounts@athenalife.com
Website: http://www.athenalife.com/
CIN: U24233MH2014PTC315619

NAME OF THE PROMOTER OF ATHENA LIFESCIENCES PRIVATE LIMITED

Athena Family Trust and Mr. S. Raghunandan are the promoters of Athena Lifesciences Private Limited.
Mr. TrushitIndravadanChokshi is the Trustee and Settler of the Athena Family Trust.

SCHEME DETAILS, LISTING AND PROCEDURE

The Scheme of Arrangement is prepared under the provisions of Sections 230 to 232 of the Companies
Act, 2013 read with other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, for the demerger of
Identified Undertaking (as defined in the Scheme) of Athena Life Sciences Private Limited (hereinafter
referred to as “Transferor Company” or “Athena”) to Future Consumer Limited (hereinafter referred to as
(“Transferee Company” or “FCL”).

TransferAndVestingofldentified Undertaking

Upon the Scheme becoming effective and with effect from the Appointed Date, the Identified
Undertaking of the Transferor Company shall stand transferred to and vested in or deemed to be
transferred to and vested in the Transferee Company, as a going concern, in the following manner:

a) Upon the Scheme becoming effective and with effect from the Appointed Date, the whole of the
Identified Undertaking and all the properties, tangible and intangible, relating to the Identified
Undertaking shall, pursuant to the provisions contained in the Sections 230 to 240 and all other
applicable provisions, if any, of the Act and without any further act, deed, matter or thing, stand
transferred to and vested in and/or be deemed to be transferred to and vested in the Transferee
Company on a going concern basis so as to vest in the Transferee Company all rights, title and
interest relating to the Identified Undertaking.

b) Upon the Scheme becoming effective and with effect from the Appointed Date , all the immovable
properties, if any, of the Identified Undertaking, whether freehold or leasehold and any documents of
title and rights thereto shall stand transferred and vested in Transferee Company and shall become the
property and integral part of the Transferee Company, without any further act, instrument or deed
required by either of the Transferee Company or Transferor Company and without requirement of any
approval or acknowledgement of any third party.

¢) In respect of such assets and properties of the Identified Undertaking as are movable in nature or
incorporeal property or are otherwise capable of transfer by delivery or possession, or by endorsement
and/ or delivery, including cash-in-hand the same shall be physically handed over by delivery to the
Transferee Company by the Transferor Company upon coming into effect of the Scheme and shall,
ipso facto and without any other order to this effect, become the assets and properties of the
Transferee Company.

d) In respect of the assets other than those dealt within sub-clause (c) above and forming part of the
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g)

h)

assets, including but not limited to sundry debts, receivables including tax balances, bills, credits,
loans, advances and deposits, if any, pertaining to the Identified Undertaking, whether recoverable in
cash or in kind or for value to be received, the same shall stand transferred to and vested in the
Transferee Company without any notice or other intimation to any person in pursuance of the
provisions of the Sections 230 to 240 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with other relevant provisions
of the Act to the end and intent that the right of the Transferor Company to recover or realize the
same stand transferred to the Transferee Company. The Transferee Company shall, at its sole
discretion but without being obliged, give notice in such form as it may deem fit and proper, to such
person, as the case may be, that the said debt, receivables, bills, credits, loans, advances or deposits
stand transferred and vested in the Transferee Company and that appropriate modification should be
made in their respective books/ records to reflect the aforesaid changes and the Transferor Company
shall provide all necessary assistance required in this regard.

Upon the Scheme becoming effective and with effect from the Appointed Date, all debts, liabilities
(other than any liability pertaining to any tax or tax related litigations), contingent liabilities, duties
and obligations of every kind, nature and description of the Transferor Company pertaining to
Identified Undertaking under the provisions of the Sections 230 to 240 and all other applicable
provisions, if any, of the Act, and without any further act or deed, be transferred to or be deemed to
be transferred to the Transferee Company, so as to become from the Appointed Date, the debts,
liabilities, contingent liabilities, duties and obligations of the Transferee Company and it shall not be
necessary to obtain the consent of any third party or other person who is a party to any contract or
arrangement by virtue of which such debts, liabilities, contingent liabilities, duties and obligations
have arisen in order to give effect to the provisions of this sub-clause.

On and from the Effective Date, till such time that the bank accounts in the name of the Transferor
Company in relation to the Identified Undertaking have been replaced with that of the Transferee
Company, the Transferee Company shall be entitled to maintain and operate such bank accounts of
the Transferor Company, in the name of the Transferor Company for such time as may be determined
to be necessary by the Transferee Company. All cheques and other negotiable instruments, payment
orders received or presented for encashment which are in the name of the Transferor Company, in
relation to the Identified Undertaking, after the Effective Date shall be accepted by the bankers of the
Transferee Company and credited to the account of the Transferee Company, if presented by the
Transferee Company.

Upon the Scheme becoming effective and with effect from the Appointed Date, any statutory
licenses, permissions or approvals or consents held by Athena required to carry on operations of the
Identified Undertaking shall stand vested in or transferred to FCL without any further act or deed, and
shall be appropriately mutated by the statutory authorities concerned therewith in favour of FCL and
the benefit of all statutory and regulatory permissions, environmental approvals and consents,
registration or other licenses, and consents shall vest in and become available to FCL as if they were
originally obtained by FCL. In so far as the various incentives, subsidies, rehabilitation schemes,
special status and other benefits or privileges enjoyed, granted by any government body, local
authority or by any other person, or availed of by Athena relating to the Identified Undertaking, are
concerned, the same shall vest with and be available to FCL on the same terms and conditions as
applicable to Athena, as if the same had been allotted and/or granted and/or sanctioned and/or
allowed to FCL.

It is clarified that if any assets, (estate, claims, rights, title, interest in, or authorities relating to such
assets) or any contract, deeds, bonds, agreements, schemes, arrangements or other instruments of
whatsoever in relation to Identified Undertaking which Athena owns or to which Athena is a party
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and which cannot be transferred to FCL for any reason whatsoever, Athena shall hold such assets or
contract, deeds, bonds, agreements, schemes, arrangements or other instruments of whatsoever nature
in trust for the benefit of FCL to which the Identified Undertaking is being transferred in terms of this
Scheme, in so far as it is permissible so to do, till such time as the transfer is effected.

Consideration

Further upon the Scheme coming into effect, the Transferee Company shall, in consideration of transfer
and vesting of the Identified Undertaking, do the following:

The Transferee Company would, without any further application, deed, action or thing, issue and/or allot
on proportionate basis to each Shareholder /Member of the Transferor Company, whose name is
registered in the Register of Members as on the Appointed Date (which shall be considered as the Record
Date for the purpose of allotment of shares), 13 (Thirteen) fully paid up equity shares of the Transferee
Company, each of a face value of Rs. 6 (Rupees Six only) for every 83 (Eighty Three) fully paid up
equity share(s) held by such Shareholder /Member in the Transferor Company.The equity shares allotted
to the Shareholders /Members of the Transferor Company shall be subject to the provisions of the
Memorandum of Association and Articles of Association of the Transferee Company and shall rank pari
passu in all respects with the existing equity shares of the Transferee Company.

The Transferee Company shall apply for listing of the new equity shares on the Stock Exchanges in terms
of and in compliance of SEBI Circular and other relevant provisions as may be required under applicable
law. The new equity shares shall remain frozen in depository system till listing /trading permission is
given by the Stock Exchange(s).

In case any equity shareholder of Athena has holding in Athena, such that it becomes entitled to a fraction
of an equity share of FCL, FCL shall not issue fractional share certificates to such member but shall
instead, at its absolute discretion, round off all fractional entitlements to the nearest integer for each of the
fractional entitlements.

The approval of this Scheme by the shareholders and/or creditors of the Transferee Company and the
Transferor Company, under Sections 230 to 232 of the Act and other applicable provisions under the Act,
shall also be deemed to be the approval by the shareholders and/or creditors under the applicable
provisions of the Act and the applicable law, for the purpose of issuance and allotment of the Equity
Shares of the Transferee Company to the Shareholders/Members of the Transferor Company, in
accordance with the Scheme. It is clarified that no additional special resolution under Section 62(1)(c) of
the Act, or any other provision of the Act or applicable law shall be required to be passed for issuance and
allotment of the equity shares of the Transferee Company to the Shareholders /Members of the Transferor
Company under this Scheme.

Remaining Business

It is clarified that the Remaining Business and all the assets, liabilities and obligations of the Transferor
Company, other than those transferred pursuant to this Scheme with the Identified Undertaking, shall
continue to belong to and be managed by the Transferor Company.

Procedure:
The procedure with respect to public issue would not be applicable as the Scheme does not involve issue
of equity shares to public at large. The issue of equity shares of the Transferee Company is only to the
shareholders of the Transferor Company, in accordance with the Scheme. Hence the processes and
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procedures applicable to public issues with respect to General Information Document (“GID”) is not
applicable.

ELIGIBILITY FOR THE ISSUE

Whether the Company is compulsorily required to allot at least 75% of the net offer to public, to qualified
institutional buyers —Not Applicable

INDICATIVE TIMETABLE

The Abridged Prospectus is issued pursuant to the Scheme and is not an offer to public at large. The time
cannot be established with absolute certainty, as the Scheme is subject to approval of the regulatory
authorities including the National Company Law Tribunal.

GENERAL RISKS

Investments in equity and equity-related securities involve a degree of risk and investors should not invest
any funds in this Issue unless they can afford to take the risk of losing their investment. Investors are
advised to read the risk factors carefully before taking an investment decision in this Issue. For taking an
investment decision, investors must rely on their own examination of the Issuer and this Issue, including
the risks involved. The Equity shares have not been recommended or approved by the Securities and
Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”), nor does SEBI guarantee the accuracy or adequacy of the contents of
the Abridged Prospectus, Specific attention of the investors is invited to the section titled “Internal Risk
Factors” onPage 5of this Abridged Prospectus.

PRICE INFORMATION OF BRLM’S*

Not Applicable, since the proposed issue is not to public shareholders but to the shareholders of the
Transferor Company, pursuant to the Scheme.

o’ Statutory Auditors of Athena Lifesciences Pvt
‘I‘ Ltd
C 7)) Chandulal M Shah & Co

A-6, Wing-A, 6th Floor, Safal Profitaire, Opp.
Auda Garden, Corporate Road, Prahladnagar,
Ahmedabad-380052

Merchant Banker: Galactico Corporate
Services Limited
Contact person: Vishal Sancheti

Email: cmshah@cmshah.com

Telephone: +91-253-2319714

. . . ite: . hah.
Email ID: info@galacticocorp.com Website: www.cmshah.com

SEBI Registration No: INM000012519

Syndicate Members: Not Applicable Registrar: Not Applicable
Credit Rating Agency: Not Applicable Non-Syndicated  Registered = Brokers:  Not
Applicable

Debenture Trustee: Not Applicable

Self-Certified Syndicate Bansks: Not Applicable
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PROMOTERS OF ATHENA LIFESCIENCES PRIVATE LIMITED

Athena Family Trust and Mr. S. Raghunandan arethe promoters of Athena Lifesciences Private Limited.
Mr. TrushitIndravadanChokshiis the Trustee and Settler of the Athena Family Trust.

Mr. S. Raghunandan is an MBA from Indian Institute of Management, Kolkatta and has over twenty
eightyears experience in FMCG industry. He has worked in various leadership roles in companies like
Unilever, Dabur, Paras and his latest assignment was as CEO of Jyothy Labs till May 2016. Raghunandan
is a leader par excellence with proven experience in leadership roles and was instrumental in turnaround
of Jyothy Labs post Henkel acquisition and also led Actis Controlled Paras Pharma business which was
successfully sold to FMCG giant Reckitt Benckiser .Prior to Paras, he was a CEO of Dabur International
business based at Dubai and has also handled Indian Operations of Dabur as a Vice President -Sales. He
is an expert in the areas of Strategy, Sales & Marketing, Channel Management, Mergers & Acquisition
and Change Management.

Mr. S. Raghunandan holds 18,57,727 shares (2.9115% of the total shareholding) and Athena Family Trust
holds 100 shares (0.0002% of the total shareholder) of Athena.

Athena was founded in 2014 by Mr. S. Raghunandan (Ex CEO Jyothy Laboratories, Ex CEO Paras
Pharma, Ex CEO Dabur International) and Mr. Prabhu Karthikeyan (Sara Lee, Kraft Foods, Dabur,
Henkel, Paras), both industry veterans having OTC and Personal care industry.

BUSINESS MODEL/BUSINESS OVERVIEW AND STRATEGY

Athena is engaged in marketing, selling and distribution of FMCG productsin the over the counter (OTC),
cosmeceutical and healthcare space, with Iraya as its flagship brand that operates in the space of premium
Ayurvedic products. Athena also had other brands like D’Free, Hair for Sure, Safe and Sure, Just for
Moms, Fab Fit etc.

Athena was founded in 2014 by Mr. S. Raghunandan and Mr. Prabhu Karthikeyan, both industry veterans
having OTC and Personal care industry experience.Athena is a private limited company incorporated
under the Companies Act, 1956 (CIN: U24233MH2014PTC315619), having its registered office
presently at Office No. 406, Accord Building, PhoolBaug, I B Patel Road, Opp. Railway Station,
Goregaon (East) Mumbai 400063.

“Identified Undertaking” as part of this scheme of arrangement means the marketing, selling and
distribution business of the Athena in relation to the portfolio products/brands namely, D’Free, Hair for
Sure, Iraya and Safe & Sure. Athena does not own any manufacturing facility and the manufacturing of
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the products is carried out by third parties under by contract manufacturing arrangement.

Athena owns the Intellectual Property for the formulations and brands / trademarks of the above products.

Key Brands:

Iraya, the flagship brand of Athena, is an Ayurvedic ethical personal care brand launched in FY
2017 with 97 Retail Products and 80 Professional Spa Range products for hair, skin and body.
Iraya embodies the sensibilities of luxury Ayurvedic products at affordable prices making it
accessible to the Indian consumer. Iraya’s unique approach to formulations and focus on quality,
makes it an emerging name in premium Ayurvedic Cosmetics.

D’Free is a shampoo and lotion with anti-dandruff formula.D’Free is a unique, leave on lotion
that is superior and different to current approaches to treating Dandruff, viz — shampoos.
Clinically testing and proven to give results in 14 days, its long residence time and unique 3
Ingredient formula truly delivers even to a chronic sufferer. Its products include 100ml and 50ml
Lotions.

Hair For Sure is a Hair Re-growth Tonic and Shampoo. Hair Fall remains the leading problem in
the Hair Category, largely addressed by Hair Oils. Hair for Sure is clinically proven Hair Tonic
that helps in treating consumers in early stages of Androgenic Alopecia. With a Tonic and a
Shampoo; Hair for Sure is a well-recognized brand among sufferers.

Safe and Sure is a brand under development to enter the female hygiene segment.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Name Designation (Independent/ Experience including
Whole time/ Executive/ current/past position held in

Nominee) other firms (20-40 words for
each Director)

TrushitIndravadanChokshi Non-Executive Director Apracticing Chartered Accountant
having an experience of over three
decades (33 years), TrushitChokshi
heads his own firm in Ahmedabad.
He specializes in the field of
Auditing (Statutory, Tax and other
special audits of private as well as
public listed entities), Taxation,
Company Law, GST Compliance,
Corporate Planning, Structuring and
Restructuring of units, Consultancy
and Advisory services. He holds a
wide range of clientale operating in
different  industries  such as
Automotive, Telecom and Software.

He was appointed as a director from
March 23, 2015.
DIN: 01365792

AmarendraVashishtbhai Executive Director Mr. AmarendraVashishtbhai Tiwari

Tiwari has a Master’s Degree in Human
Resources from Sikkim Manipal
University, India. He has worked in
various industries like Construction,
Real Estate, Finance, FMCG
&Healthcare. He started his career
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with JMC Projects (India) Ltd and
he was previously associated with
Advantmed India LLP (USA Health
Care). He joined Athena
Lifesciences Pvt Ltd. as an Assistant
Manager in 2017 and was appointed
as Director from June 3, 2019.

DIN: 08464921.

OBJECTS OF THE SCHEME

The Scheme of Arrangement is prepared under the provisions of Sections 230 to 232 of the Companies
Act, 2013 read with other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, for the demerger of
Identified Undertaking (as defined in the Scheme) of Athena Life Sciences Private Limited (hereinafter
referred to as “Transferor Company” or “Athena”) to Future Consumer Limited (hereinafter referred to as
(“Transferee Company” or “FCL”).

The Board of Athena Lifesciences Private LimitedandFuture Consumer Limitedbelieves that this Scheme
of Arrangement would result in benefit to members, creditors and employees of Athena Lifesciences
Private LimitedandFuture Consumer Limitedand the same will not be detrimental to the public. Further,
the proposed Scheme of Arrangement would inter alia achieve the following:

(a) Combination of Identified Undertaking with Future Consumer Limitedis a strategic fit and will
help expand the business of Future Consumer Limitedin the growing markets of India.

(b) Consolidation of the Identified Undertaking with Future Consumer Limited, thereby making
available the increased resources and assets for the Identified Undertaking, which should help in
pursuing a long term and aggressive growth path for its portfolio products; and

(c) Enhance competitive strength, achieve cost reduction, efficiencies and productivity gains by
pooling the technologies and resources of Future Consumer Limitedand the Identified
Undertaking, helping contribute to the future growth and targeting a wider base of customers.

Details of means of finance: Not Applicable
Name of Monitoring Agency, if any: Not Applicable
Terms of Issuance of Convertible Security, if any: Not Applicable

Shareholding Pattern:

Sr. No. | Particulars Pre-Scheme number of shares | % Holding of Pre issue
1. Promoter & Promoter Group 18,57,827 29117 %
Public 6,19,48,509 97.0883 %

Total 6,38,06,336 100%

Number/amount of Equity Shares proposed to be sold by selling shareholders, if any:Not Applicable
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RESTATED AUDITED FINANCIALS (Amount in Rupees)
For period | For the year For the year For the year For the year For. the
. ended ended ended period ended

Particulars ended March ended March

December March 31, 31. 2018 March 31, 31. 2016 March 31,

31,2019 2019 i 2017 > 2015
Total income
from 14,792,267 12,177,434 40,032,474 173,467,116 180,427,003 4,846,583
operations
Net Profit /
(Loss) before _
tax and . -23,527,023 | -30,228,912 -157,453,362 459,633,684 -312,112,486 -49,359,083
extraordinar
y items
Net Profit /
(Loss) after )
tax and . -21,467,480 | -29,909,777 -154,509,813 460,616,378 -309,366,388 -49.370,194
extraordinar
y items
E‘;;;lemre 638,063,360 | 638,063,360 | 430,387,830 | 265,387,830 | 230,001,770 | 172-300:000
Reserves and - - -
Surplus 542,284.999 | 520817,518 | 10370307 | 306 660494 | 01263193 | 49305 040
Net worth 95,778,361 | 117,245,842 | -61,432,477 | -71,922,664 | 138,738,577 | 123,104,960
Basic
earnings per (0.34) (0.65) (3.69) (18.58) (13.95) (862.62)
share (Rs.)
Diluted
earnings per (0.34) (0.65) (3.69) (18.50) (13.95) (862.62)
share (Rs.)
Return on Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
net worth Nil
(%)
Net Asset
Value Per 1.50 1.84 (1.43) (2.71) 6.03 7.14
Share (Rs)

RISK FACTORS

The below mentioned risks are top 3 risk factors:

Internal Risks:

Manufacturing Risk: Athena does not own its own manufacturing facility and relies on third party
contract manufacturers for production. Company’s inability to seek renewal or extension of such
manufacturing arrangement may disrupt our operations and adversely affect our business and results of

operations.

Raw Material Risk: Increased cost of raw materials including special herbs and ayurvedic ingredients
used in Iraya product range and interruption in their availability may affect our business and results of

operations.
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Competitive Intensity:Company operates in a very competitive FMCG industry and there are many
companies offering products that compete with Athena’s products. Company also faces competition
from new entrants who may market similar products in the brick and mortal and e-commerce channels.
Competition in our businesses can be based on, among other things,pricing, innovation, perceived
value, brand recognition, promotional activities, advertising, special events, newproduct introductions
and other activities. It is difficult for us to predict the timing and scale of our competitors’actions in
these areas. Our failure to successfully introduce new products and carry out product innovation to
meet the changing needs of the consumer may also adversely affect our business.

Negative Cash Flows: Our Company had negative cash flow in recent fiscals, details of which are
given below. Sustained negative cash flow could adversely impact our business, financial condition and
results of operations.
The detailed break up of cash flows is summarized in below mentioned table and our Company has
reported negative cash flow in certain financial years and which could affect our business and growth:
(Amount in Rs.)
Particul | PE Dec. | FY 2018-19 FY 2017-18 FY 2016-17 FY 2015-16 FY 2014-15
ars 31,2019
Net cash | 13,67,133 | (14,11,64,630)| (19,01,23,981) (23,66,25,165)| (43,89,70,626)| (5,29,94,939)
from
operating
activities
Net Cash | 20,28.873 | (95,47,021) 20,33,354 (64,59,990) | 1,34,14,918 | (71,20,935)
(used in)
/ from
investing
activities
Net Cash - | 15,35,71,905 | 17,51,43,730 24,64,94,130 32,33,11,252 | 17,14,00,000
used in
financing
activities
Net 33,96,006 28,60,255 | (1,29,46,896) 34,08,974 | (10,22,44,456)| 11,12,84,127
increase/(
decrease)
in cash
and cash
equivale
nts

Brand Image: Our brands and their reputation are among our most important assets and we believe our
brands serve in attracting customers to our product in preference over those of our competitors. We
also believe that continuing to develop awareness of our brand, through focused and consistent
branding and marketing initiatives, among retail consumers, is important for our ability to increase our
sales volumes and our revenues, grow our existing market share and expand into new markets.
Consequently, any adverse publicity involving us, or any of our products may impair our reputation,
dilute the impact of our branding and marketing initiatives and adversely affect our business and our
prospects.

External Risks:
Slowdown in economic growth of India: Acontinued slowdown in economic growth in

10
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Indiaespecially in the backdrop of the Covid19 pandemiccould cause our sales to suffer. A weak
consumer sentiment resulting from the aftereffects of lockdown and slowdown in the economy and
lower dispensable income of the consumers in India may affect our business adversely.

Changes in government regulations or their implementation could disrupt our operations and
adversely affect our business and results of operations: Our business and industry is regulated by
different laws, rules and regulations framed by the Central and State Government. These regulations
can be amended/ changed on a short notice at the discretion of the Government. If we fail to comply
with all applicable regulations or if the regulations governing our business or their implementation
change adversely, we may incur increased costs or be subject to penalties, which could disrupt our

operations and adversely affect our business and results of operations.

SUMMARY OF OUTSTANDING LITIGATIONS, CLAIMS AND REGULATORY ACTION

A. Total number of outstanding litigations against the company and amount involved.
B. Brief details of top 5 material outstanding litigations against the company and amount involved.

Sr. Particulars Litigations filed | Current status Amount involved

No. by

1 Recovery suit filed | Jahanvi Enterprise | Legal suit pending | Rs. 5,28,128/-
against the company before Delhi Civil | payable with

court interest @ 18%

2 Recovery suit filed | Narmada Medical | Legal suit pending | Rs. 12,88,024/-

against the company Agency before Delhi Civil | payable with
court interest @ 18%

3 Appeal  u/s  246A | Athena Pending with the | For disallowance

against  order  no. CIT(A), CIRCLE | of loss amounting
ITBA/AST/S/143(3)/ 1(1)(1), to Rs. 85,05,029/-
2019-20/1022966721 Ahmedabad. for AY 2017-18
(1) dated December 23,
2019 for disallowance
of loss amounting to Rs.
85,05,029/- for AY
2017-18

4 Appeal  u/s  246A | Athena Pending with the | For disallowance
against  order  no. CIT(A), CIRCLE | of loss amounting
143(3)/2018-19/10142 1(1)(1), to Rs. 81,02,358/-
71943(1) dated Ahmedabad.Pending | for AY 2016-17
December 13, 2018 for
disallowance of loss
amounting to  Rs.

81,02,358/- for AY
2016-17 is

C. Regulatory Action, if any — disciplinary action taken by SEBI or stock exchanges against the
Promoters in last 5 financial years including outstanding action, if any: (200-300 word limit in

total)

Not Applicable
D.  Brief Details of outstanding criminal proceedings against Promoters:(200-300 word limit in total)
Not Applicable

11
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ANY OTHER IMPORTANT INFORMATION AS PER ATHENA LIFESCIENCES PRIVATE
LIMITED

None

DECLARATION BY THE COMPANY

We hereby declare that all the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 1956, the Companies Act, 2013
and the guidelines/regulations issued by the Government of India or the guidelines/regulations issued by
the Securities and Exchange Board of India, established under section 3 of the Securities and Exchange
Board of India Act, 1992, as the case may be, have been complied with and no statement made in the
Abridged Prospectus is contrary to the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956, the Companies Act, 2013,
the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 or rules made or guidelines or regulations issued
there under, as the case may be. We further certify that all statements in the Abridged Prospectus are true
and correct.

For and on behalf of ATHENA LIFESCIENCES PRIVATE LIMITED

TRUSHIT

N CHOKSHI

Name: TrushitIndravadanChokshi
Director

DIN: 01365792

Date: June 24, 2020

Place: Ahmedabad

AMARENDR
AV TIWARI

Name: AmarendraVashishtbhai Tiwari
Director

DIN: 08464921

Date: June 24, 2020

Place: Ahmedabad
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SRBC&CO LLP

Dadas @ Nes
Chartered Accountants Mumbai - 400 028, india

Tel : +%1 22 6819 BOOO

Independent Auditor's Review Report on the Quarterly and Year to Date Unaudited Standalone
Financial Results of the Company Pursuant to the Regulation 33 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended

Review Report to
The Board of Directors
Future Consumer Limited

1.

We have reviewed the accompanying statement of unaudited standalone financial results of
Future Consumer Limited (the "Company") for the quarter ended December 31, 2019 and
year to date from April 01, 2019 to December 31, 2019 (the ‘Statement”) attached herewith,
being submitted by the Company pursuant to the requirements of Regulation 33 of the SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended (the
‘Listing Regulations').

This Statement, which is the responsibility of the Company's Management and approved by
the Company's Board of Directors, has been prepared in accordance with the recognition and
measurement principles laid down in Indian Accounting Standard 34, {Ind A5 34) “Interim
Financial Reporting” prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 as amended,
read with relevant rules issued thereunder and other accounting principles generally
accepted in India. Our responsibility Is to express a conclusion on the Statement based on
our review,

We conducted our review of the Statement in accordance with the Standard on Review
Engagements (SRE) 2410, “Review of Interim Financial Information Performed by the
Independent Auditor of the Entity” issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.
This standard requires that we plan and perform the review to obtain moderate assurance as
to whether the Statement is free of material misstatement. A review of interim financial
information consists of making inquiries, primarily of persons respansible for financial and
accounting matters, and applying analytical and other review procedures. A review Is
substantially less in scope than an audit conducted In accordance with Standards on Auditing
and consequently does not enable us to obtaln assurance that we would become aware of all
significant matters that might be identified in an audit. Accordingly, we do not express an
audit opinion.

Based on our review conducted as above, nothing has come to our attention that causes us
lo believe that the accompanying Statement, prepared in accordance with the recognition
and measurement principles laid down in the aforesaid Indian Accounting Standards (‘Ind A5
specified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 as amended, read with relevant
rules issued thereunder and other accounting principles generally accepted In India, has not
disclosed the information required to be disclosed in terms of the Listing Regulations,
including the manner in which it is to be disclosed, or that it contains any material
misstatement.

ForSREC&COLLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm registration number: 324982E/E300003

per Fra%'o Kumar Bapna

Partner

Membership No.: 105497

UDIN: 20\ OEqqI A A AL A EIFLE
Place: Mumbai

XX

Date: January 31, 2020

5RBCLCOLLP, & Lemied Lshiity Par narihg sih LLP enldy Mo AAI-E1 18
R Oflse | 22, Cambe Sireet, oo W, Jrd Fioor, Kolkats- 700 016
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SRBC&COLLP 29 Sunapai Bopat Marg

Charbered Accountants Dasdar {Westh

Murmibai - 400 028, India
Tel = +91 22 6819 BDOO

Independent Auditor's Review Report on the Quarterly and Year to Date Unaudited Consolidated
Financial Results of the Company Pursuant to the Regulation 33 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Requlations, 2015, as amended

Review Report to
The Board of Directors
Future Consumer Limited

1.

We have reviewed the accompanying Statement of Unaudited Consolidated Financial Results of
Future Consumer Limited (the “Holding Company™) and its subsidiaries (the Holding Company
and Its subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group™), its associate and joint ventures for the
guarter ended December 31, 2019 and year to date from April 01, 2019 to December 31, 2019
(the “Statement™) attached herewith, being submitted by the Holding Company pursuant to the
requirements of Regulation 33 of the SEBI (Listing Cbligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Requlations, 2015, as amended (the “Listing Regulations™).

This Statement, which is the responsibility of the Holding Company’s Management and approved
by the Holding Company's Board of Directors, has been prepared in accordance with the
recognition and measurement principles laid down in Indian Accounting Standard 34, {Ind AS
14) “Interim Financial Reporting” prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 as
amended, read with relevant rules issued thereunder and other accounting principles generally
accepted in India, Our responsibility is to express a conclusion on the Statement based on our
review.

We conducted our review of the Statement in accordance with the Standard on Review
Engagements (SRE) 2410, "Review of Interim Financial Information Performed by the
Independent Auditor of the Entity” issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.
This standard requires that we plan and perform the review to obtain moderate assurance as to
whether the Statement is free of material misstatement. A review of interim financial
information consists of making inquiries, primarily of persons responsible for financial and
accounting matters, and applying analytical and other review procedures. A review is
substantially less in scope than an audit conducted in accordance with Standards on Auditing
and consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all
significant matters that might be identified in an audit. Accordingly, we do not express an audit
apinion,

We also performed procedures in accordance with the Circular No. CIR/CFD/CMD1/44/2019
dated March 22, 2019 issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India under Regquiation
33(8) of the Listing Reguiations, to the extent applicable.

The Statement includes the results of the entities as detailed out in Annexure I.

The accompanying Statement includes unaudited interim financial results and other unaudited
financial information of 11 subsidiaries,whose interim financial results reflect total revenues of
R, 23,856.84 Lakhs and Rs 74,257.02 Lakhs, total net loss after tax of Rs, 1,465.02 Lakhs
and Rs 3,959.37 Lakhs, total comprehensive loss of Rs. 1,474.27 Lakhs and Rs 3,985.29 Lakhs,
for the quarter ended December 31, 2019 and for the period from April 01, 2019 to December
31, 2019, respectively. The Statement also includes the Group's share of net loss after tax of
Rs. 927.93 Lakhs and Rs. 2,626.23 Lakhs and total comprehensive 10ss of Rs. 927.38 Lakhs
and Rs 2,624.73 Lakhs, for the quarter ended December 31, 2019 and for the period from April
01, 2019 to December 31, 2019, respectively, as considered in the Statement, in respect of 10
associate and joint ventures, whose interim financial results have been reviewed by their
respective independent auditors, The independent auditor's reports on interim financial results
of these entities have been furnished to us by the Management and our conclusion an the

Statement, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures in respect of these subsidiaries,

SRECACOLLE, & LimSed Liskiity Parinerihin with LLP ientSy Mo, AAB-43 18
Regs. OfMce ; 22, Comac Sinest, Black I, Jea Fiooe, Moluls- 700 016
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SRBC&COLLP

Chartered Accountants

Future Consumer Limited
Limited Review Report on Consolidated Financial Results

joint ventures and associate is based solely on the report of such auditors and procedures
performed by us as stated in paragraph 3 above.

Our conclusion on the Statement in respect of matters stated in para above is not modified with
respect to our reliance on the work done and the reports of the other auditors.

6. Based on our review conducted and procedures performed as stated in paragraph 3 above and
based on the consideration of the review reports of other auditors referred to in paragraph 5
above, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that the accompanying
Statement, prepared in accordance with recognition and measurement principles laid down in
the aforesaid Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS" specified under Section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013, as amended, read with relevant rules issued thereunder and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India, has not disclosed the information required to
be disclosed in terms of the Listing Regulations, including the manner in which it is to be
disclosed, or that it contains any material misstatement,

ForSRBC &COLLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm registration number: 324982E/E200003

[

per Pramod Kumar Bapna

Partner

Membership No.: 105497

UDIN: 201054 TAAAAAF (AL

Place: Mumbai
Date; January 31, 2020
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SRBC&COLLP

Chartered Accountants

Future Consumer Limited
Limited Review Report on Consolidated Financial Results

Annexure 1
List of Subsidiaries

1) Aadhaar Wholesale Trading and Distribution Limited

2) Bloom Foods and Beverages Private Limited

3) The Wilgiri Dairy Farm Private Limited

4) Appu Nutritions Private Limited

5) Milgiris Mechanised Bakery Private Limited

&) Nilgiris Franchise Limited

7) Integrated Food Park Limited

B8) Affluence Food Processors Private Limited

9) FCL Tradevest Private Limited

10} Future Food and Products Limited

11} Future Consumer Products Limited

12} Future Food Processing Limited

13) FCEL Overseas FZCD

14) FCEL Food Pracessaors Limited

15) Genoa Rice Mills Private Limited (w.e.f September 20, 2019)
16) Delect Spices and Herbs Private Limited (w.e.f July 18, 2019

List of Jaint Venture

1) Fontera Future Dairy Private Limited

2) Sublime Foods Limited

3) MNS Foods Limited

£) Avante Snacks Foods Private Limited

5) MAussee Oats India Limited

&) Aussee Qats Milling {(Private) Limited

T} Mibelle Future Consumer Products AG

8) Hain Future Matural Products Private Limited

%) Mibelle India Consumer Products Private Limited

100 Genoa Rice Mills Private Limited (upto September 20, 2019)

List of Associate

1) Sarjena Foods Private Limited

Page3of 3
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Annexure 8

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the Members of Athena Lifesciences Pyt Ltd

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
Qualified Opinlon

We have audited the standalone financial statements of Athena Lifesciences Pyt Ltd, ("the Company”), which
comprise the balance sheet as at 31* December 2019 and the statement of Profit and Loss, and statement of cash
flows for the period of nine months then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policles and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our infarmation and according ta the explanations Biven Lo us, except for the
passible effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Cpinion paragraph, the aforesaid standalone
financial statements give the informatian required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair
view in canformity with the acegunting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company
as at December 31, 2019 and loss and its cash fiows for the year ended on that date,

Basls for Qualified Opinion

The campany has invested In share capital of Vitalic Nutrition Pyt Ltd, an associate company. As per the |atest
audited financial statement, the net worth of Viralic Mutrition Pvt Ltd has been erodad substantially. In view of
this-and in absence of other convin cing evidence, in our opinion, there is a permanent diminution in the value
of Investment, Thisinvestment is carried at ks 91,66,670/- In the financial statement as.on 317 Decem ber 2019,
The management has not determined the realizable value of the investment and therefore we are unable to
determine any adjustment to the carrying value of Investment,

We conducted our audit In accordance with the Standards on Auditing (54s) specified under section 143(10) of the
Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibllities for the Audit of the Financiol Stotements section of our report. We are independent of the Company
in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the
Companles Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with these requirements and the Code of Ethics, We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified opinion.

Responsibility of Management for Standalone Financlal Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Companies Act,
2013 ("the Act”) with respect to the preparalion of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair
vlew of the financial position, financial performance, and cash flows of the Company In accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the accounting Standards specified under section 133
of the Act, This responisibility also includes maintenance of adeguate accounting records In accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and
other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates
that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statement that Bive a true and fair view and are free
fram material misstatement, whether due to fra dbele
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In preparing the finandal statements, management i responsible for assessing the Company's ability 1o continue
as a going concern, disclosing, a5 applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company of to cease operations, ar has no realistic
alternative but te do so,

Those Board of Directors are alsa respansible for overseeing the company’s financlal reporting process,

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether dug to fraud or error, and to Issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Heasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but s nat 3 guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with Sas will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or errorand
are considered material If, individually or In the apgregate, they could reasonably be expected to Influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements,

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

1. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statemants, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than fer one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
eollusion, forgery, Intentional cmissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control,

il, Obtain an understanding of intermal control relevant to the audit in order o design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the droumstances. Under section 143(3) i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also
respansible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial cantrals
system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

fii. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policles used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

fv. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
an the audit evidence obtalned, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, If we conclude that a
material uncertainly exlsts, we are required to draw attenlion in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events ar conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concem,

v. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events In a
manner that achieves fair presantstion,

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among ather matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal cantrol that we
identify during our-audit,

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant athical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 {"the Order”), issued by the Central Government of
India in terms of sub-section [11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 20 13, we give in the Annexure a statement
an the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief
were necessary far the purposes of our audit.

(a)
(b)

c)

(d)

le}

(f)

In our opinion, proper books of account a5 reguired by law Have been kept by the Company so far as it appears
fram our examination of those books.

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report
are In agreement with the books of account,

In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified
under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Compantes. (Accounts) Rules, 2014, except for the
provision on account of permanent diminution in the value of Investment as required under AS -13,

Qn the basis of the written representations received from the directors 85 on 31" December, 2019 taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 December, 2019 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2] of the Act.

This report does not include 3 statement on the internal financial controls under clause (1) of sub-section 3 of
section 143 of the Act as the reporting requirements are not applicable to the company in terms of notification
dated 13 June, 2017, issued by Ministry of Corporate Affairs

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies {Audit and Auditors} Rules, 2014, In our opinion and to the best of gur information and accarding
to the explanations given to us:

i The Campany has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its financial
staterments — Refer Note 23 to the financial statements;

ii. The Company did not have any lang-term contracts inchuding derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses, except as reported in Note No, 23 to the financlal statement

iii. There has been no defay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

For, Chandulal M. Shah & Co.

M. No. 109606
Ahrmedabad, 24" February 2020

UDIN - 2004 ko6 ANAAP
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Annexure to the Independent auditors’ report

Refer to the "Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements® Paragraph of the independent auditors’ report
of even date to the members of Athena Lifesciences Pvt. Ltd. on the financial statements for the vear ended on 31
December 2019,

i

7.

Fixed Asset

i, Thecompany has maintained proper recards showing full particulars, including quantitative details and
situation of fixed assets.

fi. . The company has not carried out physical verification of the fixed assets, during the period under audit.
However, the fixed assets have been physically verified by the management at reasonable intervals;
Material discrepancies noticed on such verification have been properly dealt with in the books of
accounts.

fil. Based upon the audit procedure performed by us and according to the record of the campany, the
company does not have any immovable properties,

Inventany

I. Physical verification of inventory has been conducted at reasonable intervals by the management.

fl.  The pracedure of physical verification of inventary followed by the management is reasonable and
adeguate in relation 1o the size of the company and the nature of its business.

il. On the basis of our examination of the inventory records, in'our opinion, the company is maintaining
proper records of inventory, The discrepancies noticed on physical verification were adjusted to the
accaunts.

Unsecured Loan

According 1a the information and explanation given to us the campany has not granted any loans, secured
or-unsecured to companies, firms or other parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of
the Companies Act. Therefore, clause (W1} {a},(b] and (c} of the order are not applicable and hence not
commented upan,

Compliance of Sec 185 and 186

In our opinion and according to the infarmation provided to us the company has complied with the
provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013, in respect of lpans, investments, guarantees
and security to the extent applicable to the company.

Acceptance of Depots

The company has nat accepted any deposit from the public within the meaning of section 73 to section 76
of the act and the rules made there under during the period under audit and therefore, provisions of the
clauge 3(V) of the order ks not applicable and hence not commented upar.

Costing Records
The Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under section 148(1) of the
Act.

Statutony dues

L the company is generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including provident fund,
employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, wealth tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of
excise, value added tax, and any other statutory dues with the appropriate authorities., except for
deposit of provident fund, ESI and TDS, which are paid late.

i, According to the infermation and explanation provided to us, no undisputed amounts payable [n
respect of provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, wealth tax, service tax,
duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, and any other statutory dues were outstanding at the
year end, for a period of more than six months from the dates they become payable,

fil. According to the information and explanation given to us, there are no dues of provident fund, ESI
dues, income tax, sales tax, service tax, duty of customs, value added tax, cuss and any other statutary
dues which have not been deposited o aunt of any dispute.
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8. Default in Repayments
In cur opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the company has not defaulted
in repayment of dues to a bank. The company has nat obtained any loan from financial institution or
Debenture holders.

9. Utilization of Fund
The company has not raised fund through public offer, the fund raised thraugh term loans were applied for
the purpese for which those funds were raised.

10. Fraud
During the course of our examination of the books of the company carried out in accordance with the
generally accepted auditing practices in Indla; and according to the infermation and explanations given to
us we have neither come across to any material fraud on or by the company nor we are informed of any
such cases by the managemenit,

11. Managerial Remuneraticn
The provisions of section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013
is not applicable to the company and therefore clause [X1) is not applicable and hence not commented
upon,

12. Nidhi Company
In-our apinton, the company is not a Nidhi, therefore the provisions of clause 3{xti] of the Order 5 not
applicable to the company and hence not commented upar,

13, Related Party Transactions
In-our opinton, all the transactions with the related parties are in complisnce with section 177 and 188 of
the act, where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the financial statement as required by the
applicable accounting standards.

14. Mew allotments
According to information and explanations given ta us, the company hias not made any preferential
allotment or private placement of share or partly or fully convertible debenture during the year,
therefore reparting under clause 3(xiv) is not applicable,

15. Non Cash Transactions with Directors
According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the records of
the company, we report that the company has not entered Into any non-cash transaction with directars ar
persons connected with them as referred 1o in section 192 of the Companies Act 2013,

16. Sec. 45-14 of RBI Act
According to the information and explanation provided to us, the provisions of section 45-14 of the Reserve
Bank of India Act 1934 are not applicable to the company.
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ATHENA LIFESCIENCES PRIVATE LIMITED

Balance sheet as on 31 December 2019

Equity and liabilities

Sharehokders' funds
Shace Capital
Risserves and Surplus

Mon current Liability
Other long-term liabilities

Current Liability
Trage Fayahles
Dues of micro and small enterprises creditors:
Dues of creditors other than micre and small enterprises
Qther current fiability
Short Term Provishons

TOTAL

Assets

Non-current assets
Property Flant and Equipment
Tangible assets
Intangible Asseis
Capital Week in Progress

MNon Curnent investments
Deferned Tax Asset
Lorg verm loans and Advances

Current assets
Iventonies
Racervables
Cash and bank balances
Cash and Cash equivalents
Other bank balances
Short term loans and advances

TOTAL

31 December 2013 31 March 2019
Rupees Rupess
63,80.63.360 63,80,63,360
{54,22.84 959) {52,08,17,515)
9 57,78,361 11,72.45,841
217,575 1B,25575
799,790 7.99.750
b.95,275 798,760
29262915 3.57.81,858
2,15,35,000 -
14.82.88,925 15,64,51,834
3861157 44 87,359
80,88 595 97.36.003
1.18.47,752 1,42,23,362
91,685,670 91,866,670
70,85,631 50,726,083
53.86,165 313,719
- 14,23,187
1.04.69,443 91,359,085
68,14.011 3418005
£,56,00,785 7,95.33,750
3,18,18,470 3.42,07.953
14.82,38.935 15,54,51 824

The accompanying notes staterment of significant accounting pedicies are an integral part of the financial statements,

As par gur report of even dite
For Chandulal M. Shah & Co.
Chy i »

el

Athena Lifescignces P
g

For and an behalf of the Boaed of Directars of

CEQ

Amarendra V. Tiwan =
Directar
Db - 8464921 DIN-:= 1365792
Place - Ahmedabad
Date - 24-Feb-2020

Date :- 24-Fab-2020




ATHENA LIFESCIENCES PRIVATE LIMITED

Statement of profit and loss for the period ended 31 December 2019

hotes 31 December 2019 31 March 2019
Rupees Rupees
Income
Aevenue from operations (Gross) 12 14792267 11177434
Lisss; excise duty = s
Revenue from operations (Net] 147,592,267 1,2L,77.434
Other incoms 14 20,92,763 1.04,56,880
Total favenue 1,68,85,028 2,26.34.314
Expenses
Purchase of Finkshed Goods 15 52,50,088 46,75,181
Chamge in Inventory 16 1423187 3.20,52.934
Payment to Employess 17 1955211 1,00.56.457
Depreciation and amartization expense 5 22,7581 16,356,758
Fnance Cost 18 1585 1,238
Other expenses 19 2,94.96 271 2,44, 40.658
Tostal expenses 404,121,082 5,28.63.227
Profit before tax {2,35,27.023) (3,02,28,913)
Curreet Tax - —
Earlier Pariod Tax Adjustmaent - -
Deferved tax (Credit) _ {20,59.543] {3,19,135)
Total Taxes (20,59,543) {3.19.135})
Profit / (Loss) for the year {2.14,67 280) [2,96.09,778)
Earmwngs per equity share [nominal value of share Rs 10/ per Share | 12
- Basic and diluted (Rs) (0.34] {0U6S)

The accompanying notes staterment of significant accounting policies are an integral part of the financial staternants.

As per our report of even date

For and on behalf of the Board pfCirectors of

A

Armarendra V. Tiwari St
Director
QN - 8464921

DN =- 1365792

Place ;- Ahmedabad
Data ;- 24-Feb-2020

Place - Almedabad
Date - 24-Feh-2020
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ATHENA LIFESCIENCES PRIVATE LIMITED

Cash flow statement for the period ended 31 Dec 2019

31 Decemnber 2019 31 March 2019
Aupies Rupees
Cash flows from Opecations
Met Prafit for the year | 2,14,67,480) [ 2,59.00,775]
Adjustments to reconcile net income to'net cash provided by operating activities
Depreciation and amortization 22,75,611 16,356,758
Provision for Doubful debts - 2687452
Prowvision for Annusl Advance Margin 108,282,000 -
Provision for Settlement with Distributors 1,06,53,000 -
Carrying Value of Fiked Asset Written off 3 345870
Prigr period expanses accounted 49,200 9,67,317
Deferrad tax Expense / (Incorne) | 20,59,543) [32,19,135)
Hevarsal of Other Provisions - 191,17 343}
Expenses Reported under obher activity head - 15,00,000
Income Reported under other activity head { 2028873} (8,15,278)
‘Working Capital Adjustment
Change in Curnant & Non Current Assets 1,15.44 301 67,22.855
Changs in Current & Non Current Liability (82.79.618) [ 11,678,619}
Payrmient of Taces { Net) {201,465} {81,528]
Wat cash from operations activities 1367133 | 14,11,64,628)
Cash flows from Investing
Proceeds from sades of tangible assets - 22,047
Purchase of tangitde assots - | 84,745)]
Purchase of intangible assets - ( 1,03,00,000)
tnterest recetved 20,28,873 815,278
et cash from investing activities 20.28.873 | 95.47,020)
Cash flows from Financing
Proceeds from issuing shares - 20,8582 096
Repayment on Cancellation of Share Warrants - [4.27 16,191}
Repayments of barrowings =~ [ 1,08,00,000)
Other inflows {outfows) of cash - [ 15,00,000)
Nat cash from financing activities -— 15,35,71.905
Het increase in cash and cash equivalents 33,96,006 zgisu 256
Cash and cash equivalenis at beginning of year 34,18.005 557,749
Cash and cash equivaients at end of year 68,14,011 34, 18,005
{ 33,96,005] | 28,60,256)

Refer Note Mo, 12 for restrictians ifany, on the (e of cash and cash eguivellant avaiable with the company.

The accompanying notes statemarnt of significant acoounting policies are an integral pan of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date

il
s

For and on behaif of the Board of Directors of

F

Athena Lifesciences Brivate

Amatendra V., Tiwarl, ©
Birectar p
DIN =- 8464921

Flace :- Ahmadabad
Date :- 24-Feb-2020




ATHENA LIFESCIENCES PRIVATE LIMITED
Statement of Significant Accounting Policies adopted by the company in preparation of these financdals
Financial Statements for the Nine months ended on 31" Decernber 2019

1. Corporate Information

Athena Life sciences Private Uimited (‘the Company’] is engaged in the manufacturing, marketing, selling and
distribution of FMCG products.

2. Basis of Preparation

These financial statements are prepared on accrual basis of accounting. fallowing histarical cost convention, in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act’), accounting principles generally accepted in ingia
and comply with the accounting standards specified under section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies
{Aecounts) Rules, 2014, The accounting pelicies have been consistently appliad by the Company and are consistent
with those used In the previous year.

3. Summery of significant Accounting Policies:
& Presentation and disclosure of financial statements
The accounts are presented in accardance with the revised Schedule I notified under the Act.
b, Useofestimates

The preparation of financial staternents in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires the
management to make estimates and assumptions that could affect the reparted amounts of assets, labilities,
revenues or expenses during the reported periods, Actual results could differ from those estimates and the
differences between actual results and estimates are recognized in the pericd In which the results are known /
materialize.

¢ Property Plant and Equipment
Recognition

The cost of an item of progecty, plant and equipment is recognized as an asset if, and only i, it Is probable that
future econemic benefits associated with the item will flow to the company; and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably.

Elements of cost

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import duties and
non —refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates. it also includes any costs directly
attributable to bringing the asset 1o the location and condition necessary for it 1o be capable of operating in the
manner intended by management, and initial estimate of the costs of dismantiing, removing the item and restaring
the site an which it is located, referred to as ‘decommissioning, restoration and similar Habilides’.

Subsequent Recognition
The company has opted for cost model as its accounting policy.
Depreciation

Each part of an item of property, plant and equipment with a cost that is significant in relation to the total cost of
theitem is depreciated separately, and the charge of depraciation is recognized in the statement of Profit and Loss
uniess the depreciation & Included in the carrying amount of another asset.

The depreciable amount of and isem of property, Plant and equipment is depreciated over the wseful life of the
item using WDV method of deprediation, The company has adopted the useful life of the assets as prescribed by
Schedule Il to the Companies Act 2013, The depreciation on addition / deduction in the assets is charged on pro-
rata basts for the period the asset remains available for the use.

d. Intangible assets

The Company capitalizes software and related implementation cost where it Is reasonab imated that the
saftware has an enduring useful life, Software is amortized over a period of 3 years conside i%.
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ATHENA LIFESCIENCES PRIVATE LIMITED

Statement af Significant Accounting Policies adopted by the company in preparation of these financials
Financial Statements for the Nine months ended on 317 Decembaer 2019

a) product Ufe cycles for the asset and public infermation on estimates of useful hes of similar types of
assets that are wsed in 8 similar way;

b} technical, rechnological ar ather types of obsalescence;

¢} the level of maintenance expenditure required to obtain the expected future econamic benefits from the
assetand the company's ability and intent ta reach such a level, etc.

Internally generated brands, publishing titles, customer lists and items similar in substance are not recognized as
intangible assets.

e, Impairment of tangible and Intangible assets

The carrying amaounts of assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date 1o determine whether there ks any
indication of impairment. IF any indications exist, the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An impakrment loss
is racognized wherever the carrying amount of an asset excesds its recoverable amount.

f, Leases

Finance leases, which effectively transfer ta the company substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to
ownership of the leased item, are capitalized at the inception of the lease term at the lower of the fair value of the
leased property and present value of minimum lease payments. Lease payments are apportioned between the
finance charges and reduction of the lease liabillty 5o as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining
balance of the lability, Finance charges are recognized as finance costs in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Lease
management fees, legal charges and other initial direct costs of lease are capitalized.

A leased asset is depreciated on written down value basis over the useful [ife of the asset or the useful life
prescribad in Schedule Il to the Act, whichever s shoner. However, f there |s no reasanable certainty that the
company will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term, the leased amset is depreciated on written down value
method over the shorter of the estmated useful life of the asset, the lpase term or the useful life prescribed n
Echedule 1 to the Act,

Leases, where the lessor effactively retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the leased item,
are classified as operating leases. Operating lease payments ore recognized as an expense in the Statement of
Profit and Loss.

g Investments

Long-term investments are carried at cost. However, provisien for diminution in value is recognized if it is ather
than temporary,

h.  Imventories

Inventaries are valued as follows:
Stock in Trade Lower of cost and net realizable value. The cost of inventony includes
all costs of purchase and other costs incurmed in bringing the
Inventories to their present location and condition.

Net realigable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of
completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale,

Obsciete, slow moving and defective inventories are identified and wherever necessary, provision is made for such
inventories.

L. Revenue Recognition
Sale of Goods

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits wlu f
the revenue can be reliably measured, N i

s

T < _‘ iF
o - =
A s

fi " R b

STV

103



ATHENA LIFESCIENCES PRIVATE LIMITED
Staternent of Significant Accounting Policies adopied by the company In preparation of thews financials
Financial Statements for the Nine months ended on 317 December 2019

Revenue from sale of goods is recognized when all the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods
have been passed to the buyer, usually on delivery of the goods. The company collects sales taxes and value added
taxes [VAT) on behalf of the government and, therefore, these are not econsmic benefits Rowing to the campany.
Hence, they are exclyded from revenus,

Revenue arising from the use by others of enterprise resources yielding interest, royalties and diidends are
recognized when no significant uncertainty as to measurability or collectability exists. The revenue are recognized
on following basis.

Interest: - On a time proportion basis taking nto account the smount outstanding and the rate applicable.
Rovalties:- On an acorual basis in accordance with the terms of the relevant agreement.
Dividends: - When the right 1o receive the payment is established.

J Foreign currency translations
Initial Recognition and Conversion

Foreign curréncy transactions are recorded at the exchange rates prevailing on the date of transaction. Foreign
currenty assets and liabilities are translated in to Indian Rupees at the exchange rate prevalling at the Balance
Sheet date.

Exchange differences

a]  Exchange differences arising on long-term foreign currency monetary items related to scguisition of a fied
asset are capitalized and depreciated over the remaining useful lfe of the asset.

b} Exchange differences arising an other long-term foreign currency monetary items are accumulated in the
“Foreign Currency Monetary Item Transtation Difference Account” and amartized cver the remaining life of
the concerned monetary item,

¢} Al ather exchange differences are dealt with in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

k.  Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of a qualifying asset are capitalized
a5 part of the cost of that asset to the extent incurred up to the date on which the asset is put to use. Other
borfrowing costs are recognized as expense In the Statement of Profit and Loss on accrual basks.

L Retirement and other employes benefits
Defined contribution Plans

Retiremant benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The company has ne abligation,
ather than the contribution payable to the provident fund. The company recognizes contribution payable to the
prevident fund scheme as an expenditure, when an employee renders the related service,

Defined benefit Mans

The company operates gratuity as a defined benefit plans for its employees. The costs of providing benefits under
these plans are determined on the basis of actuarial valuvation at each year-end. Separate actuarial valuation is
carried out using the projected unit credit method. Actuarial gains and losses are recognized in full in the period
in which they orcur in the statement of profit and loss.

Accumulated teave, which is expected to be utilized within the next 12 months, is treated as short-term emploves
benefit. The company measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional amount that it expects to
pay a3 a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date.

The company treats accumulated leave expected to be carried forward bevond twelve months, as long-term
employee benefit for measurement purposes. Such long-term compensated shsences are provided far based on
the actuarial valuation using the prajected unit credit method at the year-end. Actusrial gaing/flasses are
Iimmediately taken to the statement of profitand loss and are not deferred. The company presentsthe e
current fiability in the balance sheet, to the extent it does not have an unconditional right to de er s sotl

L
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for 12 manths after the reporting date. Where company has the unconditional legal and contractual right to defer
the settlement for a period beyond 12 months, the same |s presented as non-current lability,

m. Income Taxes

Provision for curfent taxation s determined i accordance with the provisions of Income Tax Act, 1961

Deferred tax assets and Nahilities are recognized for future tax consequences attributable to timing differences
between financial statements carrying amounts of existing assets and labilities and their respactive tax bases and
eperating loss carry forwards, Deferred tax assets and labilities are measured on the timing differences applying
the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the Balance Sheet date. Changes in
deferred tax assets and labilities between one Balance Sheet date and the nest are recognized in the Statement
of Profit and Loss in the year of change. The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is
recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss In the year of change. Deferred tax assets are recognized only If
there is reasonable certainky that they will be realized by way of future taxable income. Deferred tax assets related
to unabsorbed depreciation and carry forward losses are recognized only to the extent that there is virtual
certainty of realization, Deferred tax assets are reviewed for appropriatensss of carrying amounts at each Balance
Sheet date.

n. Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to -equity
shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.

Far the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the pernod attributable 1o eguity
shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the
effeqts of all dilutive poténtial equity shares.

o, Segment Reporting

The Cempany’s operating businesses are organized and managed separately according to the nature of products,
with each segment representing a strategic business unii that offers different products and serves different
markets, The analysis of geographical segments is based on the geographical location ol the customers,

p. Provisions and Contingencies

& provision s recognized when there is 3 present abligation as a result of past events and it is probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle the abligation, in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made,
Provisions are not discounted to ks present value and are determined based on management best estimates of
the expenditure required to settle the obligation as at the balance sheet date. Provisions are reviewed at each
balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate of each such obligation.

A contingant liability & disclosed when there &8 a possible or present obligation that may, but probably will nat
require an outflow of resources, unbess the possibiity of such outflow is remate,

0. Cash Flow Statement

The Cash Flow Statement is prepared by the Indirect method set out in Accounting Standard 3 on Cash Flow
Statement and presents the cash flows by operating, investing and financing activities of the Company. Cash and
cash pguivalents presented in the cash flow statement consist of cash on hand and short-term investments with
an original maturity of three months or less.
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1 Share caphal
o of Sharet Amani
11 December 215 31 March 3019 31 December 1019 31 March 3019
Rupoes Fupekt

Mughorioed ihares

Tty whaews oF R 100 wach &, 50,00.000 5.50,00,000 5 0000000 5,00, 00, Dog
Ipsued, subseribed and paid-up sharei

Egusy shanes of B 10/ wech fully paid up 63806.336 B.B0.06 236 63,8063, 360 638063360

R S . % S Y T 00

Reconcilanian of the thares outsitanding af the Baginning ard gt the end of the repcrring period

Eguity shaes 31 Datesnber J01% ¥1 Maseh 2015
b of shaces Fuimes oo of shares
A tra beginring ol the peviod e 53,80 63,360 430,38.78 287800
Pt s sz thoting the year - - 20767550 20,76,75.530
Less: Bought Back during the year = - - =
Dxtatanding at the anl of the perd T 53,803,350 _BIRDEIE Eamogan
Hiote
Teema/rights attached to equity shares

The company has anly ane cless of shane Le, equaty shares having 2 par vailue of R 10/-per thare. Dach hokder of oty trares & SnUEied to one vate per
thure. The compary declares and pays dovidescds, if any, in indian rupeet. The deddend, # propaed, by the Board of Directors 5 suljiect to the spproval
of the shateroiders in the ensuing Annual Geneial meetng,

I the event of Spuedaton of i company, the hobder of egusy thares wil be entitied 1 recens remaining agsets of the company, sfter distribubion of
o8 preferentul amaunts. The distributsan will B In proportion to the numbst of squity thares held By the shirsholdars.

The company has net lisued any Bhare sEhout piymers Beng received o cath by wiry of bomut o in pursuant Bo any contract dunng the period of kst
v e

The company P not Bought Back any shate durieg the period of e five years.

Dwrtails o sharetlders hoiding morm than 5% shares in 1he compary

31 Dectrnber 2009 31 Miarch 2009
Mo. ol ghares ¥ holding Mo. of ihams W holdrg
e, Akanh Manek Bhanshali [Eram Sewniny) 5.0 80653 BLIFR 530800653 B3.15%
Wtaraet Balicabun Chokbant B, Yisgita Marsh Choksks SR ST B0 24N S8.97.840 0044
I Reserves and surplus
11 Decermiber 2015 31 hiarch 2008
——pe L SopR
Shase Premiem Atoount
Bafance & per Last Finarcial Ratement 4826, 79878 A33317.31%
atcitinn during the year =i AIGE1568
Ciosing Balarce 48,20.70.078 A8, 29,79 478
Surplus/deficit) in the staternent of profit and less
Balacce 81 per last francial stacemants (L003747.250 BT 3R3T 6N
Profy |Loas) for the year (&84, 57, 480) (2.89.09,778)
Bestributon of Dhvidend - =
tiet defich in the statemand of profit and loss (1025264 877) 11.00,37,97,357
T i 08 sy EFE e R = XTI}
3 Trade Payable
Cunrgnd
31 Daxeenber 2005 31 March 2019
S L]
Diers of priscre s srmall enceraiises creditan:
Trads pavable for Goods. 7,899,750 799,750
Trade pavable lor Sarvices L v,
Duss of crediors athes thae micny and wnsll nierprises }
Trade (uyable fof Gooos 642 BE3BAY
Trade payatde lor Services 115118
1!&5&
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4 Other Lisbsity

Deposis from Conslghmant Agents
Other payabies
Espmrda payahis
Statuttry Liabdgies Pavabie
Salary and Boms Pavable
Sl Traved Expniie relmbureement payakis
frcoma Recetved in Advarce
Advance From Castamersy

Proryion for Annusl Advance Margr
Proseisien far Settiemesnt with distribators

Hote

Wan Curment
K1 Decarrber 2010 31 March 2009 31 Decatmber 2019 81 March 2018
Bupes upes upee hpe
237575 25,575 - -
= - 18158 456 10123456
= - 55,097 142057
- - TR IRLTS B4, 76,855
- - 4,47 659 10,18,516
= - 1687267 59,1959
L17575 Iiﬂ&ﬂ- i,&sﬁ! !.S?Ill.ﬁi
Long Term Enort Term
11 Decamber 2019 11 March 2019 31 December J01% 31 March 2018
Fupes Hupce Fupee — T
= - LOB 2,000 -
- - 106,553,000 -
= SRS . =

Ay g e Marsacruring Agresment entared eio wah Saditin dnarveds Put L. (Contract Minadactures) on 107 Septmier 2018, Company has 1o pay
Sddatan Ayarveds the igher of a foed converion mangin o an dnousl Advaece payabie on § quartery i The Annual Advance pasd tver snd above the sctual
corwrion manpn fiar the entine previous yeer is armitable to carry forward a5 annual advance for the nest year, However loaking 1o Hha phesent racks? trend

of e penducts covened Lrcles thic agrerment, the comoany haa made provision for the Lame.

& Property Plant & Equipmant

Tangible fdssts
Dffice Eqmprwent
Pant & Machinery
Computen
Furmiture & Fisture

irtangible Assets
Computer Soltaumn
Tracke Mark

Capitsl Work In Progress
Capial Wolk i Frogress

Tangisle Amats
Office Eguspmant
Pant B Machnery

Furniture & Fishere

Ealance on Additions Dreletions an
Ji-Mar-19 durrg the period during the pariod ¥1-Dec-19
L1763 - - L1374
8311085 - = B3,11.055
B, 14548 = - &.14,888
1,64 Gag - - 154 680
B0, 384 - - 93,04, 348
1L08,00.000 - §,00,00,000
1.0 00,000 - - 1,003,00,000
155 04 344 — = L‘ﬂi&
100,096,371 1,03,84.746 17,76, 773 155,04, 84
Y
Balurce on Provided Dediactions) ‘Balance on
3-Mar19 T the ¥ __Adjuitments 31-Pec-19
Lua80 57 - L1287
55,358,534 5.4 - #5785 404
550,302 ITET - 57768
L15.038 B9 - LI T5?
AT,16, 584 25,203 - 53,431,187
5,61,997 16,89, 408 - TL18 405
563,957 16,43 408 - I213405
= =
14.08.456 Eﬂm
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Mot Bock
Ast Az at
¥1-Drec-19 B1ahoae-140 Usefud e of the sisets / Other Remaria
e T TN e Pemar
Tangitile Avwets
Cilfice Equipment 13T 1553 Ma
Pt & Machinery 17.85,651 4375121 30V
Comguiters 7m0 #4550 300 GO
Furrstuine & Fistore 59 44741 15025 Y
336115y 44,872,359
Intangitis Assety
Computer Software - = Amortized over s peviod of 3105
Trady Mark BB 545 736,003
e e S e
50,86, 555 57,36,003
Cagital Work in Frogrea
Capitsd Work in Frogress — -
11887 752 I.ﬂ&
Previous year 14271362 58,43 692
T Investmants
e MerCarent Lyt
3L Decermbar 2019 31 March 2019 31 Decermber 2013 31 March 2019
Bupes Bupes Rupes _fuoes
FreREITTac in Equby Indtrumenty; YLERETD 168,670 - -
51,66,670 SLb6.570 = =
Surermary of Cuoted and undgrioted iriruments and Maris Values of guoted instruments
11 December 2019 31 March 2019 31 Decembsr 2019 ¥1 March 2019
L Rupes Puper -
Aggregate of Quoted Investment - - - =
Aggregate of Unguoted investmert 51,66 670 FLELETD - -
ariet Valye of Quoted Inveirant = =5 - ==
51,06,670 TLG6T0 = =
Dateils of Other Imeepimerts
31 December 2015 31 March 2019 3 Decomber 3019 31 March 2019
Units Linits Bupes Rupes
brvestrand in Uscprsriad Equity Shares
Vitals Nutriton P4 Lid. 9,126,667 16 6T 168,670 F166.670
IrvervTmaing in Uncrioted Equity Shanes 5§51 T 1)

Kot
1 Th-mﬁ;mmmﬂ-!dﬂudwduﬂcM—mmmlrﬂ.m!-dnfbmw 2016 The Vitalic Nutrition Pet Lbd has acoumulsted
fosa ol Re. 3,97,53, 4625 on 31st March 2015, {Rx 3,58,61,565/- 24 on 3 st March JU18) againgt its oguity of &, 400,41, 670/ on 31:March
205F(Re 40048 BI0S- a4 an 11z March 2088 and net worth as on 3157 Maveh 20150 Bs. AL -{Re 173705/~ on 31st March 2018)

8 Lloans and sdvances

Tarm _ Shoet Teem
31 December 2019 ¥1 March 2009 31 Detamber 2019 51 March 2019
Rgme Fuapes Rpee _Pupee
{uneatured conaidered goosd)
Security Onposits L4200 FRFREH] - -
Balarce with Gost Aunhetities = - 5N 208 SEENETL
dvamoe Tan |Wet of Provizions) 101468 81518 - =
Advance to Supplers - = 222,040,714 134,26, 845
Advance lor Expenses - - = 000
Agheance o Sulf - - TaE51 B9 484

EACRERE] LI
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9  Deferred Tax
Mo Current
31 December 204G 31 March 2005
— ot
Detorred Tax Asser

Deferred sas sndet/{Liabisty) arived irom diltererce i deprecation {3,53,579) 180,505
Privagion fof tettlement with datribotors 21143148 -
Unpgaid Somus - /e 438 of ncoms Tae Azt 1561 35 =T 40068
Prowision for doubtiul debt 45.45,426 AbAzA)E
Accumulated amounts s $0(n| eharged m PEL a'c bt net claseed (a8 Bt Tax resuen) 10, 7an -
Carried farwarded busrais lndses 3o depreciation {Mese 1) - -

o JUESEX 50,26 064

Kote

I Uner the dncoma Tax Act, the comnpany has carried forwseded losses A, 34,53,33057/- on 311 December 20019, (Re. 56,85.84, 203 & 3152 Warch
2018 s snd Unabsorbed dapreciation fn. 1 18,51 883/ a4 3152 Decesmber 2010 (Rs. 6, 77,936/~ an 315t March 2017) vatable for sduatment
agarst the future profe. However, invew of the atrsnce of virtual certairty thal the company will be skl to Ltilie the benpiits, the deferred tax
nsset o duch carried forwanded b and unabasvbed dep iart iy vt recoghined.

10 inventories
Hon Current Curppnt
¥ Decamier 2019 1 March 2019 11 December 2019 51 March 2005
fupee —tupsa Pupes —rapa
T = = - 14.23,187
- - - 14 L1]
11 Receivables
Hoon Curmint _Eurmnt
31 Datarnber 2010 31 March 3019 31 Decembar 2005 32 March 2009
—Bpa ___Pupos _Pupes _Pupee
- wd good
forless than sin month fram the dats i bicome tie - - TAER:H] 4159089
for mone then six snanth fram the date & becoers due = - 37,55, 712 -
= = 10469843 91, 35, Ol
e
# - d corisdeved doutiful of recovesy
Fer s thvem 300 s Broen the dabe it becoms due = e o -
lor mang then s merth fnom (e date it Become dus - - LB 1338 1B0L40. 487
= i L78.23.55% 180,40 487
Provuacn aget doubtiud debt L — L7330 1.B0A0.487
= = LEEE ETET N
12 Cash and Bank Balances
Mo Current Cisrent
31 December 2019 31 March 2019 31 Desember 2019 31 March 3019
Rupes Rupss Hupes fupee
Cah il cash equivaderty
Caih on fard = = 14 B 81m
Ralance with b
I cLsTent soomt - - 67.75.12% IWITET
Depovts with criginal matuniy < 3 manths. = = (L5 Lt
= = 5834011 3818005
Ouher Cash & Aank Balsrcen
nher Bank Balance
Drposit wilh maturtiy >3 maeths and < 11 manths - - 656,00, Ta% 19533750
Dtposic with marturizy of > 12 imowi - - — —
e - TES 7 T
Tots = = Iapme _amenrs
13 RAevenue

1 Decarnber 2000 31 March 2015
_Fuoes Mpee

LA SLIET LILTT A

et
LATSL26T J1.77 434
g T A
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14 Dther Income

Intenest ircame
Escts Provimeon revessad back
Qi incoma

15  Purchase of Fnished Goods

Purchaie of Rrsshed goode during the yaar
Fresght Inwara

Dty of G Purchased under browd head

16 Changes in inventoriss of finished goods and Stock-in-Trade

Frithad Good
Stock at the eginning of the Tnancisl year
Siock 3 the £rd of the financial yesr

17 Paymants to Employees

Salarsi and incontived
Emplayes Insurgnce Doperses
Comtnibnion to Provident Fund

Irseresl Exirris
Feunzial Charges

19  Other Expensas

Admisistrative Expansen
Computer & Printing Gtat ¥
Communication Exg
Electriciy Expentes
Lieg# K Profewsicnai B
Crher Esperrias
Wrike off of Ralances on rccount of wettiements
Rent Fate and Tawe
Paymants bo Audibors
Exp. For Increase i Share Capital
Cefice Evpperben
Reseadch and Devaloprens Exp.
Caming Vol of Asset Wiritier off
Prosinioe fi Anmdial Advancs Margin

31 Decombar 1019 ¥l March 2015
R Rupee
loinsra E15.27
- 8117343
B350 5,24,259
B S Y-8
31 Decemiber 2010 31 March 2019
— Pupse e
5220088 &6 TH 181
1000
Em a5, 75,181
31 December 3019 3 March 2015
Aupas Hupee
11 December 3715 31 Misech 2015
—_—fps  Puows
14,28 187 L3 NN
- 1423187
18 21187 13052,934
T LigEas
31 Decamber 210 31 March 2008
18.26.530 BEED AT
TS —
27873 6,520
T LA
31 December 3019 31 March 2019
Ii*u I!ﬂ
= L5
2,685 -
258 e
31 Decerpber 2015 31 Cecemmber 2079 ¥1 March 2019 31 March 2019
Lo Fupbs Bpe 1 ..
LOEM 15.450
1261 416,683
T8 53,550
13165m 4010407
12300 Lozexe
167,52, 2809 &6 18,909
126500 5 4% men
La0.000 E.C4.000
- 1500000
13611 53,725
- 50,000
= 145870
LOBELOOG - - =
= bEse

1.26,66. 482
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Siling & Destripution Expenaes
Tewwafling Expermes
Packing Matenisl Experen

Rera Aute and Tawes
Advertnarment snd Salet Promotion Exa.

20  Related party duclosures

Mame of related parties where contral exivts respective of whathar ranssctions have entared ar fot

Witakic Nurtritien Pyt Lid.

e Trishi Endravadsn Cherkad

pAr, Akach Mansk Bhanshali | Enam Secunty)
e, Armirgettn Triman

Datails of Transactians and nature of trarmactions wih related pariss

M. Alagh Manek Branshal [Trsm Seounty]
Mdr, Akaah flangk Bharabill (Eram Security)
WAr, Amvendra Triwan
Fedr, Amrendra Triweh
W, Armreeedra Trvean

Balance payabie/{Recettie] from related parties
Ar. Trushi indravedsn Cholal

21 Details of payment to auditors

Pagment of lees i audton

fior tand matters [Derect tas snd Indinect Tas)
Reimiursernent of Dut of Pocket sxpense
for pther matters

27 Earnings per shace [EPS)

Ban ard giuted
et [loes] after L
weighted sverage nuemnber of equity shares
Pankc sarningy/Tlont} per share of Rs0y- Esch Share

23 Contirgent llability and Capital snd other comitments
Comenfirments

151025 ATLIS
— 1085843
339,197 18,3259
IR95.716 12, 70.677
284096 1678656
563798 510973
137 1.56, 704
et 1687450
LA &) oSG
ITEETTE PREN R
y!-u.ns.z?l Eﬁ EE
Assooiates Company
ey Managerial Person
Ihareing substartsa! Inderest in 1he comoany
ey Mamagenal Penon
11 Decamber 2005 31 Murch 2015
erm of Shurgs - 10.34,00,000
Losn Accepted s 95, 00,000
Fermuniitstion 4,53, 78% -
Retmbnniarnent of Trveling Expentes L2810 -
Sale of Assein - 5812
59,482 5 R
31 December 1019 31 March 2059
L —_Pupes
100,000 350,000
S0000 3,085,000
- a5,000
180,600 B0
3} Decarnber 2019 31 March 2005
Bupes Auges
{2,24,67 4800 |90, TRy
G, 38006336 AGLEG TIL
{034 fa8s}
31 Decarmber 2009 31 March 2018
- fpes

The cfrpany, has entered into a Marufacturning Agresment with the Sadatan Ayurveds Pet Ltd as the cordract manufachaer supolier. With effect
fram 10th Septeenber 2018 under thi agreement the coenpany has committed 10 & faed margin on the supply, with an sidured gaartery mirimam
payment 1o the supplier. Such dured minknum payERents, howver, 3 sdjuslable sgainag tupplies made subsaguent one year.

Contingent Lisbilty

The ompary has racewed a ecovery potoe of Bs. 5,28, 128/ with interest § 185 pa. bom Jahanvi Erterprise Delhi theough Defhi Chel Cout. Procesdings

of the case i the couet s (n very il wtage and sesmation of fingd autedsne of the case i dilficult to worou.

The commpary bk received & recovery notice of R, 12 BRG24/ with Intenest @ 18% p.o. from Narmads Mesiics! Agency Delhi theough Deibi Civil Courn.
Frocescings of he tase i the court i6 m vy initial stags sod estimation of final cutcame of the case i dfficut b workout

24 Price Period Expenses

31 March 3019
— Tpe

16202

anaw
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25 Income Tax
A TS survey was cofducted by Income tax department on 20th Februany 2018 and a show cause notice i awed on the v The company hid o
the pending TOS5 lusiiay thereatter, However, a final order & pending from the iy deparinmnt. Mo demand natice is issusd b the compary,

26 Duwes to micro and small enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act, 2006

31 Decemnbar X118 31 March 7019

Pupts fuped

1 The privcipal snount and the mterest dus theresn femaining g t doy sippler a3 al the end

of sach sotounting yoar: 7.99.700 1.96.790
2 intarest dus fo supplar regitered under the MSMED At aned remaining rgald ot at yesr and 93099 1,70,568
3 Princigal smnaunte paid 1o sunghers registeved under the MSMED Act. bepond the appeinted day

dinng ke year - -
2 intares paid, other thie Lsder Section 16 of MSMED Act. to suppliers regsberad undar the MSMED Act

beryond ke snpoinbed day dufing the i - -
% inetet paid, under Section 16 of MEMED Act, 10 supelien regiitennd under th MSMED Acy beyand the

apponied day during the year - -
6 Interest dus bt puryabie torwards suppien regntered under MSMED Art or payments slready made - -
T Further interest remarieg due and paysble for earie vears 152552 T

27 Leain
Thae compaey has inbg varks s ap W s agr % for the gusit houts, office bikiing and warehouse st Tha amount pad

Fi5,00.136/. (PY. 3. 21,88, 8441/) during the yesr under neh agreemees have been expared 0us (et statament of prof snd foat.
these agteemants are cancollsbie by giving @ shart notics by ether nasty 10 the agreament. There are na jublegsas. There B ro restrction
tmipased by e lease agreatearis f arrangarnent.

28 Segment Repoding
Brimary Sagment - Butiness Segmem
Tree cormpaery i engiged in production and selirg and Satrition of group of related ceoducts Ehat are subject to asme risk §nd return
and thermforg (v company has only one butres sentiment Le. "Saes of FMOG Producti”™ & primary segment
Secondary Sogr BeDE ARyl
Tha comparey acerated in ki, dind thevafee the comganies Businers Bcssvitien {31 within # single gesgrachral segment. Thare sre 7o
additonal tnciosure 10 be made under the felevsnt accounting standard - 45 17

29 PRealirable value of Current Assets
n e airinion af the bowrd, Aasats Orher than Fued Aktets 3nd Monturnent invasteents are spprssimutely of the value soaTed if realized i the oedingny
o ol businesa.

30 SMC Disclasure
The Company it 3 Smad s Mediue dlsed Company [SME] a5 defined i the genersl snstructians bn respect of Accountieg Standards ratified undsr the
Companiet A, 2013, Aszertingly the compary had complied with the Acc W Sandards a1 spplcable to S0

31 Indications of Impairment
In1hie Bpinion of mansgerrand, there e no indicatsans, ierral o estmmel whach could have the elfiect of mmpairing the valhee of sssets 10 sy
maleral gxtent a3 at the Eslance theet dite fequinng recognition in terms of A5-28.

32 Previous year comparatives
These finanicial statemants are prepased by the combairy for the pariad of nine months ended en 115t Deceimber 2019, The cormeiganding previcis year
figures are for the year ended on 3152 March J016. Previoos year figures ace mgrouped and re eranged 10 make them comparabie with the cufment yaar'y
prelentatian,

Foor andd on behalf af the Board of Directars of
ah & Co, Athen sciences Private Limited

W, Tiwari |
Derectmr =41
DN 1 BABART1
Place ;- Anenedabad
Date - 38.Feb-2000
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